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ProfiLe

Reliance Communications Limited is the flagship Company of Reliance Anil

Dhirubhai Ambani Group Indias third largest business house

Reliance Communications is Indias foremost and truly integrated
telecommunications service provider The Company with customer base of over
85 million including over 2.2 million individual overseas retail customers ranks

among the Top Telecom companies in the world by number of customers in

single country Reliance Communications corporate clientele includes 2100 Indian

and multinational corporations and over 800 global regional and domestic carriers

Reliance Communications has established pan-India next generation integrated
wireless and wireline convergent voice data and video digital network that is

capable of supporting best-of-class services spanning the entire communications
value chain covering over 24000 towns and 600000 villages

Reliance Communications owns and operates the worlds largest next generation
IP enabled

connectivity infrastructure comprising over 277000 kilometers of

fibre optic cable systems in India USA Europe Middle East and the Asia Pacific

region

Mission ExceLLence in Communication Arena

To attain global best practices and become world-class communication

service provider guided by its purpose to move towards
greater degree of

sophistication and maturity

To work with vigour dedication and innovation to achieve excellence in service

quality reliability safety and customer care as the ultimate goal

To earn the trust and confidence of all stakeholders exceeding their expectations
and make the Company respected household name

To consistently achieve high growth with the highest levels of productivity

To be technology driven efficient and financially sound organisation

To contribute towards community development and nation building

To be responsible corporate citizen nurturing human values and concern for

society the environment and above all the people

To promote work culture that fosters individual growth team spirit and

creativity to overcome challenges and attain goals

To encourage ideas talent and value systems

To uphold the
guiding principles of trust integrity and transparency in all

aspects of interactions and dealings

This Report is printed on environmentol friendly poper produced from chlorine free pulp mode up of plontotion trees
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Reliance Communications Limited

My dear fettow Shareowners

Reliance Communications has had yet another year of remarkaale

performance despite the financial headwinds and the slowdown

in the economy

The global financial crisis had
significant impact on the economic

environment across all industry sectors and markets These

conditions put pressure on the spending plans of corporate and

individual customers and also impacted the availability of credit

Raising resources and maintaining high growth was thus

significant challenge to telecom companies

It is herefore commendable that the year saw us mak ng

important strides forward in our mission to become one of the

world leading integrated service providers across the entwe value

chain of telecom businesses

We maintained strong growth in our existing businesses We also

launched several initiatives adding new and substantial lines of

revenue This helped us to drive leadership across the entire

spectrum of our operations in India and around the world In

addition as in the past few years we have made conscious and

concerted effort to align our people processes and technological

initiatives more closely with our business strategy thereby gising

ourselves the best chance to capture emerging opportunities in

the sector

Reliance Communications is now one of the fastest growing

telecom companies in the world and also one of Indias most

valuable and trusted servicO brands

Performance review

You will be happy to note that our Company had posted

encouraging financial results arid operational performance du ing

the year

the key highlights on consolidated basis are

Total income of Ps 22948 crore US$ 4525 million as

against Rs 19 068 crore USS 765 million in the previous

financial year an increase of 2034%
Cash Piofit of Rs 9856 crore US$ 943 million against

Ps 9598 crore US$ 2398 million in the corresponding

period last year

Net profit of Ps 6045 ciore US$ .192 million against

Ps 5401 crore US$1350 million in the previous financial

year

Cash Earnings Per Share Cash EPS of Ps 47.75 USS 0.94

against Ps 46 77 USS 11 in the previous year and

Earnings Per Share EPS of Ps 29 29 basiC USS 0.58

against Rs 26.32 basic USS 0.66 in the previous yrar

Net Worth of Rs 37059 crore US$7306 million keeping

Reliance Communications amongst the top Indian private

sector companies

Growth platform

Reliance Communications operates across the full spectrum of

wireless wireline and long distance services that carry voice

data video and internet communication across the globe This is

supported by our extensive network infrastructure

Anit Ambani

Our customer base exceeds 85 million including over 2.2

million overseas retail customers

We rank among the top five
telecom companies in the world

by number of customers in single country

We are the only Indian company to offer nationwide dual

technology wireless services based on CDMA and Next

Generation GSM platforms

We have the largest portfoho of multi-tenancy towers offering

integrated solutions

We operate the worlds largest submarine cable network with

presence in sixty countries

We are one-stop-shop across the entire range of enterprise

connectivity solutions

We are the only Indian DTH operator to provide services in

6500 towns

Restructuring of business

We at Reliance Communications are alive to the needs of

cha ging industry trends and economic environment Our vertical

businesses are being restructured and realigned to make them

meet the requirements of enterprise and individual customers

The demerger of the Optic Fiber Network to Reliance Infratel

the telecom infrastructure subsidiary of Reliance Communications

will enhance our value proposition in the telecom infrastructure

segment and at the same time create simple and transparent

structure

Eaci of the businesses operated by the Company either by itself

or through subidIarie affiliate companies or sttategic investments

in other companies is poised at the cusp of significant

opportunities for growth

WireLess

Our wireless business constitutes beth mobile and fixed wireless

operations We are among Indias tap two operators wth over

79.6 million wireless subscribers across most comprehensive

portfolio of services including mobile PCO fixed wireless and

data card segments During the year we saw substantial minutes

growth on our network Which operates one of the highest Minutes

of Usage in the industry at 830 million minutes day

We delivered the highest wireless subscriber acquisition in the

woild at million in the first month of our GSM launch Following

the launch of our nationwide GSM network we have captured

more than 25% share of net additions in market that already

has seven to eight telecom operators on network that extends

sea nless coverage to over billion Indians across 24000 towns

and 600000 villages

Underlying this rapid subscriber acquisition is the strength of our

brand and the trust our customers bestow on us Reliance Mobile

hat been independeAtly rated as Indias most trusted service brand

by Indias leading financial daily The Economics Times in its annual

Brand Equity survey which we believe is strong testament to

oui competitiveness and leadership

UWe are not just about scale and size

we are also about the pursuft of excettence

the integrity of our values and the quality of our services
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Lettet to Shareowners

In line with our stated objective of profitable growth our margins

in the Wireless business remained amongst the highest in the

industry at 37% This was despite the significant capital

expenditure committed to the business over the last two years

With the unique advantages available to our business we are

now at the forefront of the next wave of growth in the Indian

mobile services market

Reliance GlobaLcom

Reliance Globalcom offers diverse portfolio of global

communication services focused on carrier enterprise and retail

customers globally Reliance Globalcom is positioned to participate

in the substantial growth opportunities generated by the increased

usage of telephony globally as distances shrink and people of the

world collaborate closely for work and for pleasure

We offer our services under four core business segments of Voice

Data WiMax and National Long Distance NLD
Voice

In the Global Voice segment Reliance Global Call offers retail

customers in the US Canada UK Australia New Zealand Hong

Kong and Malaysia calling
services to over 200 countries across

the globe Reliance Passport offers single-SIM-based services

across countries with free incoming calls in 57 countries

We have market share of 30% of the International Long Distance

ILD wholesale inbound traffic and over million customers for

our Reliance Global Call service Usage of Reliance Global Call

accounts for 40% of total retail market calls from the United

States to India

Data

Following the acquisitions of Ylpes Holdings and VANCO Group
Reliance Globalcom has made significant transition from being

bandwidth provider to being managed services company
offering the full range of solutions to global enterprises and telecom

carriers We have unmatched
capabilities

with presence in over

60 countries the worlds largest IP optical network leadership

in Global Ethernet and MPLS VPN diverse base of blue-chip

customers including over 200 carriers ISPs and content providers

and over 1200 leading enterprises We are already top five

global network services provider and our vision is to create one

of the top five global data communication enterprises in the world

NationaL Long Distance NLD
Reliance Communications is the most preferred private NLD

carriage provider in India We are the carrier of carriers Leveraging

the opportunity to monetize our nationwide NLD assets we have

also forayed into bandwidth and telecommunications infrastructure

segments We are targeting substantial revenue share of this

Rs 5000 crore market over the next two years driven by the

launch of new wireless services and technologies

Enterprise Broadband

We offer the most comprehensive range of office telephone

solutions data networking Internet and IT infrastructure services

to premier global and Indian companies addressing their telecom

connectivity and automation requirements Over 900 of the top

1000 companies in India are our customers

We continue to increase our share of wallet from existing

relationships and new acquisitions leading to growing repeat

business and strong new order book position We have more

than 50% market share in highest growth data products like

Centrex solutions and VPN We have by far the largest Internet

Data Center IDC capacity in India with more than 60% market

share across six data centers

TeLecom Infrastructure

We have added 35000 towers over the last two years to expand

our portfolio to 48000 towers We expect the demand for passive

telecom infrastructure to more than double in the next couple of

years and are best-positioned to expand our customer base on

the back of the largest supply base of plug-and-play telecom

infrastructure for our internal network expansion as well as for

other new operators who are launching their wireless services in

the country

Reliance Communications provides integrated solutions including

towers radio electronics network connectivity long distance

transport BPO services data hosting and IT solutions to its

customers creating an additional and profitable revenue

opportunity for us

Recently we have signed long-term infrastructure sharing

agreement with new wireless operator Etisalat DB valued at over

Rs 0000 crore

Home

Our Home business currently comprises Direct to Home DTH
services targeting one of the largest and fastest growing markets

for pay television services in the world

We launched our DTH services Reliance BIG TV in August 2008

and thereafter acquired million subscribers within 90 days of

launch the fastest ramp-up ever achieved by any DTH operator

in the world

Reliance Big TV offers its .7 million customers DVD quality

pictures across bouquet of over 200 channels using the latest

state-of-the-art MPEG technology Our on-demand channels

operate like virtual mega multiplex simultaneously bringing

over 30 movies to viewers

We are looking to expand our portfolio in this space to soon

offer high definition HD television content to customers apart

from launching premium IPTV services in select cities

Way Forward

Last year we made several new beginings We have created

substantial new revenue opportunities by leveraging existing

investments These initiatives will provide sustained positive

contribution to our business operations financial performance
and organisational strength over several years As we expanded

our operating base we maintained profitability and as we expand

further our key focus remains on Profitable Growth

Corporate Governance

Our Company is proud member of the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai

Ambani Group As such we have adopted the Groups Corporate

Governance Practices and Code of Conduct These guidelines

prescribe set of systems processes and principles that conform

to the best global standards and are aimed at promoting the

interests of all our stakeholders

Social Commitment

We have undertaken several important initiatives and measures

in the area of education and healthcare signifying our continued

and long-standing commitment to social and community welfare

Our Commitment

We continue to draw
inspiration

and guidance from the vision of

our legendary founder Shri Dhirubhai Ambani It was one of

Dhirubhais great ambitions in life to see the creation of world

class convergent telecom company in India

Reliance Communications is today realising that ambition by

bringing the latest telecom technology within easy reach of millions

of Indian and foreign consumers at price that would have done

Dhirubhai proud

AniL Ambani

Chairman
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Notwe

Notice is hereby given that the fifth Annual General Meeting of

the Members of Reliance Communications Limited will be held

on Tuesday the 22nd day of September 2009 at 11 00 am at

Birla MaLushri Sabhagar 19 Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg Mumbai

400 020 to transact the following business

Ordinary Business

To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31

March 2009 Profit and Loss Account for the financial year

ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors

and Auditors thereon

To onfirm payment of interim dividend as final
dividend on

equity shares declared by the Board of Directors

To appoint Director in place of Shri Talwar who retirEs

by rotation and being eligible offers himself for

re-appointment

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this

regard to consider and if thought fit to pass with or without

modifications the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution

RESOLVED THAT M/s Chaturvedi Shah Chartered

Accountants and M/s Co Chartered Accountants

be and are hereby appointed as the Auditors of the Company
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General

Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General

Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as may be

fixed by the Board of Directors

By Order of the Board of Directors

Registered Office

Block Floor

Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City

Navi Mumbai 400 710

Hasit Shukla

President and Company Secretary

lótes

8th August 2009

member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General

Meeting the Meeting is entitted to appoint proxy to

attend and vote on poll instead of herself/himself and

the proxy need not be Member of the Company The

instrument appointing proxy should however be deposited

at the Registered Office of the Company not Less than

forty eight hours before the commencement of the

Meeting

Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified

copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representativEs

to attend and vote at the Meeting

Members/proxies should fill-in the attendance slip for

attending the Meeting

In case of joint holders attending the meeting only such

joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be

entitled to vote

Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested

to write their Client ID and DP ID numbers and those who

hold shares in physical form are requested to write their folio

number in the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting to

facilitate identification of membership at the Meetincl

Members are requested to bring their Attendance Slip

alongwith their copy of the annual report to the Meeting

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice

are open for inspection by the members at the Registered

Office of the Company on all working days except Saturday

between 11.00 am and .00 p.m up to the date of the

Meeting The certificate from the Auditors of the Company
in terms of the SEBI Employees Stock Option Scheme and

Employees Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines 999 for

the Companys ESOS Plans will be available
for inspection at

the Meeting

The Company has notified closure of Register of Members

and Transfer Books thereof from Friday the 8th September

2009 to Tuesday the 22nd September 2009 both days

inclusive as per Section 54 of the Companies Act 956

Re-appointment of Director At the ensuing Annual General

Meeting Shri Talwar Director retires by rotation and

being eligible offers himself for reappointment The details

pertaining to Shri Talwar as required to be provided

pursuant to Clause 49 of the
listing agreement are furnished

in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this

Annual Report

Members are advised to refer to the section titled Investor

Information provided in this Annual Report

Pursuant to Circular No SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/2/2007/26/4

dated 26th April 2007 issued by the Securities and Exchange

Board of India the statement containing the salient features

of Balance sheet profit and loss account and auditors report

Abridged Financial Statements is sent to the members

along with the Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements

Any member interested in obtaining copy of the full Annual

Report may write to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the

Company
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Directors Report

Dear Shareowrrers

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the fifth Annual Report and the audited accounts for the financial year ended 31st March
2009

Financial Results

The standalone performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2009 is summarised below

Particulars Financial Year ended Financial Year ended

3lstMarch 2009 3lstMarch 2008

Rs in crore USS in miltion Rs in crore USS in million

Total income 3694.66 2700.05 3426.65 3354.99

Gross
profit before depreciation

amortisation and exceptional items 3288.75 648.41 4463.92 5.42

Less

Depreciation and amortisation 1933.51 381.21 843.66 460.68

Exceptional items and other adjustments 3459.83 682.14 16.17 4.04

Profit before tax 481 5.07 949.34 2604.09 650.70

Less Provis on for

Currenttax 2.10 0.52

Fringe benefit tax 2.40 2.44 554 3.88

Profit after tax 4802.67 946.90 2586.45 646.29

Add Balance brought forward from previous year 4300.24 847.84 2294.90 573.44

Profit available for appropriation 9102.91 1794.74 488135 121 9.73

Appropriations

Proposed Dividend on equity shares 54.80 38.68

Interim Dividend paid on equity shares 165.12 32.56

Dividend Tax 28.06 5.53 26.31 6.57

Transfer to General Reserve 8400.00 1656.15 400.00 99.95

Transfer to Debenture

Redemption Reserve 6.98 1.38

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 502.75 99.12 430024 .074.52

Figures of previous year have been regrouped and reclassified wheever requird

Exchange Rate Rs 50.72 USS as on 31st March 2009 Rs40.02 US%1 as on 31st March 2008

Financial Performance The dividend pay out is in accordance with the Companys policy

During the year under review your Company has earned total
to pay sustainable dividend linked to long term performance

income of Rs 3694.66 crore against Rs.1 3426.65 crore ri

keaping in view the capital needs for the Companys growth plans

the previous year The Company earned net profit of Rs 4802.67
and the intent to optimal financing of such plans through internal

crore compared to Ps 2586.45 crore in the previous year
acruals

Dividend Mrnaqement Discussion and Analysis

Your Directors at their meeting held on 31st July 2009 had Minagement Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under

declared an interim dividend of Re 0.80 6% per equity share
review as stipulated under Clause 49 of the

listing agreement

each of Ps for the financial year ended 31st March 2009 with the Stock Exchanges in India is presented in separate section

year Pe.0.75 per equity share 5% and paid to all forming part of the Annual Report

eligible equity shareholders of the Company on 6th August 2009 The Company has entered into various contracts in the areas of

Your Directors h3ve decided to treat the interim dividend as final telecom and value added service businesses While benefits from
dividend such contracts will accrue in the future years their progress is

peiodically reviewed



ReLiance Communications Limited

Directorst Report

Busines Operations

The Company operates on pan-India basis and offers the fLIl

value chain of wireless wireline national long distance

internat onal voice data video Direct-To-Home DTH and

internet based communications services under various business

units orcanised into three strategic customer-facing business units

Wireless Global and Broadband These strategic business units

are supported by passive infrastructure connected to nationwide

backbone of Optic Fibre Network fuLly integrated network operation

system and by the Largest retail distribution and customer services

facilities The Company also owns through its subsidiaries global

submariie cable netvork infrastructure managed services and

managed Ethernet and application delivery services

During the year under review the Company had launched GSM

services in service areas The Company had received start-up

spectrum to launch GSM services from Department cf

Telecommunications DoT under its existing Unified Access Service

License UASL in service areas DoT had also made necessaiy

amendments to UASL of Rcliance Telecom Limited RTL whol.y

owned subsidiary of the Company to enable RTL to offer CDMA

services in Assam and North East Service Area in addition to existirg

GSM services and made alLotment of start up spectrum to RJL

for prov ding COMA services in Assam and North East

During the year under review Reliance Big TV Limited wholy

owned subsidiary of the Company launched fully Digital Horre

Entertainment Direct To Home DTH Service on the mo
advanced MPEG DTH Platform Reliance Big TV Limited currentLy

has 1.7 million subscribers about 2% of the DTH market

India within short span of launch

Schemes of Arrangement

Scheme of Arrangement with Reliance Infratel Limited

In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement between tte

Company and Reliance Infratel Limited RITL subsidiary

of the Company and their respective sharehoLders ard

creditors the demerger of Optic Fiber Undertaking of the

Company in favour of RITL was sanctioned by the Honb.e

High Court of Judicature at Bombay vide order dated 8t.h

July 2009 The detaled order from the Honble High Court

of judicature at Bombay is awaited The appointed date was

1st ApriL 2008

Scheme of Amalgamation with Reliance Gateway Net Limited

Reliance Gateway Net Limited RGNL wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company amalgamated with the Compaiiy

in terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation sanctioned by the

Honble High Court of Judicature at Bombay vide order dated

3rd July 2009 RGNL stand amalgamated with the Company

effective from 3th July 2009 The appointed date was 31St

March 2009

Issue of Securities

During the year under review the Company had issued 3000
11 .20% Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

NCD5 aggregating to Rs.3000 crore on Private Placement basis

to Life Insurance Corporation of India The NCDs are redeemable

at the end of the 10th year from the date of allotment The said

NCDs are listed on the WDM Segment of the Bombay Stock

Exchange Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India

Limited

The funds raised have been deployed for ongoing projects and

the general corporate purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries

Repurchase of Foreign Currency ConvertibLe Bonds FCCBs

In terms of approval received from Reserve Bank of India the

Company had repurchased 350 Zero Coupon FCCBs each of US

100000 aggregating Rs.1 69.99 crore approx US 35 Million

at discount during the year under review In the current financial

year the Company has also repurchased and cancelled 297 Zero

Coupon FCCBs each of US 100000 at discount

The outstanding FCCBs issued by the Company if converted into

the Equity Shares of the Company would result in increase to the

paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company by 8.91 crore Equity

Shares each of Rs.5/-

Subsidiary Companies

During the year under review Reliance Vanco Group Limited and

its subsidiaries Reliance WiMax World Limited and Gateway Net

Trading Pte Limited became the subsidiaries of the Company

FLAG Telecom France Network SAS FLAG Telecom France Services

EURL FLAG Telecom Korea Limited and FLAG Telecom Espana SA

ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company during the year

In terris of the approval granted by the Central Government under

Section 21 28 of the Companies Act 1956 copies of the Balance

Sheet Profit and Loss Account Report of the Board of Directors

and Auditors of the subsidiaries have not been attached with the

Balance Sheet of the Company However these documents will

be made available upon request by any member of the Company

As directed by the Central Government the financial data of the

subsid aries have been furnished under Financial Information of

Subsiciary Companies which forms part of the Annual Report

The annual accounts of the Company including that of subsidiaries

will be kept for inspection by any member Further pursuant to

Accounting Standard AS-21 prescribed under Companies

Accounting Standards Rules 2006 Consolidated Financial

Statements presented by the Company include financial

information of subsidiaries

EmpLoyee Stock Option Scheme

The E0S Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of

the Company on 6th january 2009 had approved grant of

1321 7975 Options exercisable into equal number of fully paid

up equity shares of the Company to the eligible employees of the

Company its subsidiaries and holding Company based on specified

criteria under Employees Stock Option Scheme ESOS and the

ESOS Plan 2009 In order to be eligible under the ESOS Plan

2009 employees were required to confirm the surrender of

Options to which they were entitled to under the Employees Stock

Options Plan 2008 Plan 2008 Consequently the aggregate

number of Options under Plan 2008 and the Plan 2009 shalL not

exceed 1321 7975 Options

10
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The particulars as required under Clause of SEBI Employee Stock Optior Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines

999 are as follows

Particulars ESOS Plan 2008 ESOS Plan 2009

Total grant auhorised by the ESOS 7500000 Options .321 7975 Options

Compensation Committee

Total Options granted 4991 85 Options 1.321 7975 Options

Pricing formula decided by ESOS Market Price or such other price as Average price of the weekly high and low

Compensation Committee Committee may determine Different the closing price of the equity share of the

Exercise price may apply tc different Company at National Stock Exchange of

Plans India Limited during two weeks preceeding

the date of Grant i.e 6th January 2009

Options vested 607320 Options Nil

Options exercised Nil Nil

Total number 3f equity shares arising Subject to Options exercised by the Subject to Options exercised by the

as result of exercise of Options employees not exceeding 14991 85 employees not exceeding
Equity Shares .321 7975 Equity Shares

Options lapsed surrendered .3383865 Options 938980 Options

Variation of terms of Options None None

Money realised by exercise of N.A N.A

Options_durinc_the_year

Total number Options in force 607320 11 278995
at_the_end_of_the_year

Employee wise details of

Options grantEd to

Senior managerial personnel Nil Shri Hasit Shukla Company Secretary and

Manager .00000 Options

ii Employee who receives grant in any Nil Nil

one year of option amounting to

5% or more of option granted

during the year

iii Identified employees who were Nil Nil

granted options during any one

year equal to or exceeding of

the issued capital excluding

outstanding warrants and

conversions of the company

at_the_time_of_grant

Diluted Earnings Per Share EPS Ps 2228 Rs 2228
pursuant to issue of shares on exercise

of Options calculated in accordance

with Accounting Standard AS 20

The difference between employee

compensation cost using intrinsic value

method and fair value of the Options

and impact of this difference on

Profits Ps 6.64 crore Rs 925 crore

EPS of the Company Rs 21.21 Rs 21.21

Weighted- average exercise prices of Nil Nil

Options granted during the year where

exercise price is less than market price

Weighted- average fair values of Nil Nil

Options granted during the year where

exercise_price_is less than market_price

Significant assumptions made in base Black Scholes model base Black Scholes model

computation of fair value

risk-free interest rate 7.27% p.a 5.00% p.a

ii expected life year year

iii expected volatility 37.58% 70.00

iv expected dividends yield and 0.1 386% 0.4301

the price of the underlying share Rs 541 .1 per share Ps 174 per share

in market at the time of option

grant

the Company has received certificate from the auditors of the Company that the ESOS Plan 2009 has been implemented in

accordance with the Guidelines and as per the resolution passed by the members of the Company authorising issuance of ESOS
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Fixed Deposits

The Comp fly has not accepted any fixed deposit during the year

under review

Directors

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 956
Shri Tlwar Director of the Company retires by rotation and

being eligible offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting

brief resume of the Director retiring by rotation at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting nature of expertise in specific functional

areas and names of companies in which he holds directorship

and/or membership/chairmanships of Committees of the Board

as stipulated under Clause 49 of the
listing agreement with the

Stock Exchanges in India is given in the section on Corporate

Governance forming part of the Annual Report

Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 21 72AA of the

Companies Act 956 with respect to Directors

Responsibility statement it is hereby confirmed that

in the preparation of the accounts for financial year ended

31st March 2009 the applicable Accounting Standards have

been followed alongwith proper explanation relating to

mater al departures

ii the Directors had selected such accounting policies and

applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March

2009 and of the profit of the Company for that Period

iii the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 956 for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing

and detecting fraud and other irregularities and

iv the Directors had prepared the accounts for financial year

ended 31st March 2009 on going concern basis

Group

Pursuant to intimation received from the Promoters the names

of the Promoters and entities comprising group as defined under

the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices Act 969 are

disclosed in the Annual Report for the purpose of the SEBI

Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers Regulations

1997

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements based on the

financial statements received from subsidiaries associates as

approved by their respective Board of Directors have been prepared

in accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated

Financial Statements read with Accounting Standard AS-23 on

Accounting for Investments in Associates notified under Section

211 3C of the Companies Act 1956 read with Companies

Accounting Standards Rules 2006 as applicable

Auditors

M/s Chaturvedi Shah Chartered Accountants and

M/s Co Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of

the Compa iy hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual

General Meeting and are
eligible for re-appointment

The Company has received letters from M/s Chaturvedi Shah

Chartered Accountants and M/s Co Chartered

Accountants to the effect that their appointment if made would

be within the prescribed limits under Section 2241 of the

Companies Act 956 and that they are not disqualified for such

appointment within the meaning of Section 226 of the Companies

Act 1956

ParticuLars of EmpLoyees

In terms of the provisions of Section 21 72A of the Companies

Act 956 read with the Companies Particulars of Employees

Rules 975 the names and other particulars of employees are

set out in the Annexure to the Directors Report However having

regard to the provisions of Section 2191 biv of the Companies

Act 956 the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information

is being sent to all the members of the Company and others

entitled thereto Any member interested in obtaining such

particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered

Office of the Company

Conservation of Energy Technology Absorption and Foreign

Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars required to be furnished under the Companies Disclosure

of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors Rules 988

are as under

Part and pertaining to conservation of energy and

technology absorption are not applicable to the Company

Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the financial

year is as follows

Total Foreign Exchange earnings Rs 1393.54 crore

Total Foreign Exchange outgo Rs 401 7.41 crore

Activities relating to exports Initiatives taken to increase

export development of new export markets for products

and services and export plans

The Company has taken various initiatives for development

of export markets for its international telecom services in

the countries outside India to increase its foreign exchange

earnings

Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group-

Corporate Governance Policies and Code of Conduct which has

set out the systems process and policies conforming to

international standards The report on Corporate Governance as

stipulated under clause 49 of the
listing agreement with the Stock

Exchanges forms part of the Annual Report

Certificate from the Auditors of the Company M/s Chaturvedi

Shah Chartered Accountants and M/s Co Chartered

Accountants conforming compliance with conditions of Corporate

Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid Clause 49 is annexed

to this Report
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Forward tookin statements

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the Company

describing the Companys objectives expectations or predictions

may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities

laws and regulations Forward looking statements are based on

certain assumptions and expectations of future events

The Company annot guarantee that these assumptions and

expectations are accurate or will be realised The Company assumes

no responsibility to publicly amend modify or revise forward

Looking statements on the basis of any subsequent developments

information or events Actual results may differ materially from

those expressed in the statement Important factors that could

influence the Ompanys operations include interconnect usage

charges determination of tariff and such other charges and levies

by the regulatory authority changes in government regulations

tax laws economic developments within the country and such

other factors

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost

convention on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 956 the Act and

comply with the Accounting Standards notified under Section

21 13C of the Act read with Companies Accounting Standards

Rules 2006 The management of Reliance Communications

Limited Reliance Communications or RCom or the Company
has used estimates and judgments relating to the financial

statements on prudent and reasonable basis in order that the

financial statements reflect in true and fair manner the state of

affairs and profits for the year The following discussions on our

financial condition and result of operations should be read together

with our audited consolidated financial statements and the notes

to these statements included in the Annual Report

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires all

references herein to we us our the Company Reliance

RCOM RCOM Group or Reliance Communications are to

Reliance Communications Limited and its subsidiaries and

associates

Macro economics

The Indian economy entered the financial year 2008-09 on

buoyant note During the preceeding three years India witnessed

rapid economic growth with the Gross Domestic Product GDP
growing on an average of around per cent However the growth

momentum was moderated in the year under review because of

the global economic turmoil Like all emerging economies India

too has been impacted by the crisis As per the revised estimates

for the year 2008-09 the GDP for the year grew at 6.7 per cent

as against 9.1 per cent in the previous year

There were some comforting factors well-functioning financial

markets robust rural demand lower headline inflation and

comfortable foreign exchange reserves which buffered the

economy from further adverse impact of the crisis The fiscal

stimulus packages of the Government and the monetary easing

and regulatory action of the Reserve Bank have helped to arrest

the moderation in growth and keep financial markets functioning

normally

Overall review

RCOM is Indias foremost truly integrated and converged

telecommunications service provider We operate across the full

spectrum of wieless wireline and long distance voice data

video and interiet communication services We also have an

extensive international presence through the provision of long

distance voice data and Internet services and submarine cable

network infrastructure globally With customer base of over 85

million including over 2.2 million overseas retail customers RCOM

ranks among the Top telecom companies in the world in terms

of number of customers in single country Our corporate

customers includes 2100 Indian and multinational corporations

and over 800 global regional and domestic carriers

We are Indias first and only telecom service provider offering

nationwide COMA and GSM mobile services RCOM has established

Dan-India integrated wireless and wireline and convergent

voice data and video digital network that is capable of supporting

the full range of best-of-class services spanning the entire

communications value chain It offers the widest network reach

covering over 24000 towns and 600000 villages

OLr nationwide enhanced next generation EDGE GSM network

has digital voice clarity Our mobile portal World offers the

widest range of mobile content spanning entertainment music

neaas cricket Bollywood maps search one-click set-up access

to email and social networking In short it provides the

conmunicatiorr features of PC at the price and convenience of

handset

RCOM owns and operates the worlds largest next generation IP

enabled connectivity infrastructure comprising over 277000 route

kilometers of fibre optic cable systems in India USA Europe Middle

East and the Asia Pacific region In India we provide long distance

business services including wholesale voice bandwidth and

inf-astructure services Globally we provide carriers carrier voice

carriers carrier bandwidth enterprise data and consumer voice

services

RCOM offers the most comprehensive portfolio of enterprise voice

daia video internet and IT infrastructure services which include

nalional and international private leased circuits broadband internet

access audio and video conferencing MPLS-VPN remote access

VPN Centrex toll-free services voice services for offices voice

VPN
for corporate and managed international data centre IDC

services offering unique value added products and services to

large medium and small enterprises for their communications

ne working ard IT infrastructure needs across the country

RCOM launched nationwide Direct to Home satellite TV services

under its wholly owned subsidiary Reliance Big TV Limited which

uses state-of-the-art MPEG technology to deliver over 200

chrnnels including 32 exclusive movie channels to its subscribers

We will also dliver high definition content and Dolby digital voice

quality to our viewers on this platform to create highly

personalised video experience

Strateqic Initiatives

Fastest ever pan-India network roll out

Thi Company commenced commercial operations of its nationwide

GSM service on 30th December 2008 GSM-based wireless

mobile services were initially
launched in 11000 Indian towns

which were later extended to cover 24000 towns in phased

manner We launched GSM services in record time of 11 months

frois the date of allotment of spectrum This is the fastest roll

our ever of such size and scale and was achieved leveraging our

existing nationwide technology-agnostic common infrastructure

Indias Iarqest teLecom tower infrastructure deaL till date

RCOM in significant move entered into long term passive

infrastructure sharing agreement with Etisalat DB Telecom Etisalat
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is one of the largest telecom operator in the Middle East This

strategic alliance will encompass end-to-end tower and

transmission infr3structure for Etisalat DB Telecoms forthcoming

roll-out of telecom services in telecom circles in India The

deal is valued at about Ps 0000 crore for passive infrastructure

sharing over the next years

Created Joint Venture JV with global major AlcateL-Lucent for

outsourced network operations

RCOM along wilh Alcatel Lucent formed joint
venture company

to provide Managed Services to the GSM and CDMA networks of

the Company arid RTL its subsidiary covering 22 circles 24000

towns 600000 villages and over 80 million customers The joint

venture company may provide similar Managed Services to other

telecom companies across the globe The JV is one of the largest

multi-vendor Managed Services deals in the world and first for

multi-technoloqy managed services in India both GSM CDMI\

The JV also focuses on process improvements and business

development opportunities in India and globally

Launch of Indias fastest wireless broadband services

RCOM recently rolled out its fastest Wireless Internet service

Reliance Netconnect Broadband Plus with downlink speed of

up to 3.1 Mbps This makes Netconnect Broadband Plus best

suited for video streaming video surveillance rich media content

and superior Internet browsing Netconnect Broadband Plus service

is available in 35 major cities with seamless handover to high

speed lx service covering 24000 towns and 600000 villages

as well as all major road and rail routes across the country covering

99% of Indias Internet population

AUiance with Kribhco to boost rural sales

PCOM through its wholly owned subsidiary Reliance

Communications Infrastructure Limited formed joint
venture

with Krishak Bharati Cooperative Limited Kribhco premier

co-operative society with an unparalleled marketing network in

rural India This will catalyze tele-density growth and the provision

of state-of-the-art products and services to the rural market in

India Kribhco Reliance Kisan Limited the iv company would create

first-of-its-kind distribution model covering 72 per cent of

Indias population through its network of over 25000 co

operatives 6300 member co-operatives and 60 Krishi Seva

Kendras spread across the length and breadth of the country

The unique distribution model would distribute range of telecom

and non-telecom products and services with the objective of

bridging the urban rural divide

Focused acquisitions to boost global revenues

The acquisition of Vanco Group Limited in May 2008 has

strengthened our position in the global enterprise data market

adding over 220 MNCs to Reliance Globalcoms customer base

The acquisition also gives us significant advantage through access

to Vancos relat onship with over 700 global regional and domestic

carriers capable of offering services in 230 countries Vancos

experienced sales and channel organization structure will further

enhance Reliance Giobalcoms customer delivery capabilities in

important geographies like US UK France Germany Benelux

Singapore and Australia

In
April

2008 we acquired controlling stake in Reliance WiMax

World Limited ormerly eWave World Limited UK headquartered

company focmed on the rapidly developing market for wireless

telephony serv ces using the WiMAX technology standard

Business realignment to improve operations

We continuously look at new opportunities aimed at convergence

and strategic alignments With this in mind RCOM undertook

further restructuring within its group entities during the year under

review The Optic Fibre Undertaking was demerged from Reliance

Communications Limited and vested with Reliance Infratel Limited

ubsidiary of the company The treasury division of Reliance

Communications Infrastructure Limited was demerged and vested

wilh Reliance Telecom Limited both wholly-owned subsidiaries

of RCOM

Alliance to continue dominance in mobile applications

We have tied up with Flytxt leading technology provider for

the implementation of an integrated carrier-class mobile marketing

software platform called Neon on the RCOM Network Flytxt

enables mobile operators and service providers to unlock the huge

potential of mobile as customer engagement channel

We have tied up with SAS for better business intelligence and

analytics and AMDOCS for Customer Self Service systems

We have tied up with Swanbaymtech the U.K based mobile

video services company to launch advertising funded videos on

REliance Mobile platform Swanbaymtech will offer premium

entertainment and sporting events content to subscribers and

keep them connected to the Network

Creation of centralized ITeS and related shared services

As strategic initiative all the Information Technology enabled

services ITeS across RCOM Group were consolidated into the

newly formed Reliance Tech Services Private Limited RTech an

ITeS arm of RCOM All lieS of RCOM were outsourced to RTech

fo operational flexibility scale and quick time-to-market reach

fo products and services RTech provides application development

aid maintenance services Business consulting Telecom Network

Products and solutions ERP Implementation and Development

services Geographic Information services Business Intelligence

arid Data Analytics Network and Internet Security services

Managed Network and Infrastructure services Unified

Communication and Messaging services and nationwide IT support

services

Launch of DTH Satellite TV services

RIOM througi its wholly owned subsidiary Reliance Big TV Limited

Big TV launched its Direct to Home 0TH Satellite TV services

Reliance BIG TV on 9th August 2008 BIG TV acquired

million subscribers within 90 days of launch the fastest ramp up

e\erachieved byany DTH operatorintheworld Ason 3lstMarch

2109 BIG TV has over .5 mn customers BIG TV would be tapping

into the existing customer base of Reliance ADA Group companies

to rapidly gain market share The subscribers can enjoy 200

channels including 32 movie channels which is highest in the

industry The product is available initially in 00000 retail outlets

across 6500 towns

Industry Structure and Regulatory Developments

Industry structure

Wireless

The total base of landline and wireless subscribers in India surged

by whopping 43 per cent during the year ended 31st March

2009 to reach 429.7 million according to the Telecom Regulatory

Authority of India TRAI This growth was driven primarily by rural
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expansion and the availability of cheaper devices

During the last two years 10 operators got licences to launch

operations in various service areas The 3G auction wilt throw up

new challenges and open up further opportunities It will also

intensify the focus on Value-added Services and Data in the

saturated urban marets

The all-India blended ARPU per month figure has shown declining

trend reflecting the continuing pressure on margins on account

of fierce competition

Internet Broadband

Internet subscribers in India grew moderately to 13.5 million and

broadband subscribe-s to 6.2 million as on 31st March 2009

Telecom Infrastructure

The demand for the telecom infrastructure services is driven by

the robust growth of the mobile industry in 2G migration to EDGE

3G and steady subscriber usage trends The need for telecom

infrastructure is necessitated by the focus on growth in the rural

and new markets

The number of players in the mobile industry is expected to increase

significantly i.e from players today to 11 players with

the issue of over 20 licenses to the new operators These new

operators have been allotted spectrum in about to 20 circles

and some of them have now got joint venture tie-ups with the

large global players thereby getting the necessary impetus to roll

out their services The roll-out of mobile services by these new

players further increases the demand for telecom infrastructure

Regulatory developments

Dual technology petition quashed by TDSAT

TDSAT on 31st March 2009 dismissed the petition filed by

the Cellular Operators Association of India COAl challenging

the Government of Indias decision allowing dual technology

CDMA and GSM services to RCOM and other COMA
operators and upheld the decision to offer dual technology

spectrum to companies like RCOM Tata Sistema etc RCOM

is providing unrestricted mobile services on GSM and CDMA

platform through out the country in association with its

subsidiary company RTL IDSAT has also stated that GSM
operators have no vested right to get the radio frequency

beyond 6.2 MHz

IUC Regulation by TRAI

TRAI has amended the IUC Interconnect and Usage Charges

regulation by an amendment dated 9th March 2009 The

revised IUC rates have become effective from 1St April 2009

Termination charges have been revised to 20 paise per minute

from 30 paise per minute earlier However termination

charges for international incoming calls to India have been

raised to 40 paise per minute from the earlier value of 30

paise per minute NLD Carriage charges have been kept the

same as earlier i.e at ceiling of 65 paise per minute Carriage

charges for calls with in LDCA Long Distance Charging Area

have been reduced from 20 to paise per minute The

transit charges have also been revised from less than 20

paise per minute to less than paise per minute

Mobile Number Portability MNP
Based on the recommendations of Telecom Regulatory

Authority of Ind TRAI on MNP dated 8th March 2006

the Department of Telecommunications DoT issued

guidelines for MNP implementation in the country on

1st August 2008 in phased manner starting from Metros

ard category service areas followed by and category

service areas Subsequently the DoT selected two companies

as MNP Service providers each serving in designated zone

in the country

DoT on 6th May 2009 issued amendment in the licenses

of Unified Access Service UAS Cellular Mobile Telephone

Service CMTS National Long Distance NLD International

Long Distance ILD and basic service licenses to facilitate

timely implementation of mobile number portability service

in the licensed service area as per the regulations/orders made

or directions issued by TRAI under TRAI Act 997 or any
irutructions issued by the licensor from time to time

TPAI indications are that porting fee and porting regulation

will be finalised by August 2009 end Accordingly MNP will

be delayed slightly

QoS regulation for wireline and Cellular Mobile Telecom

services

TPAI has issued revised QoS Quality of Service regulation

for CMTS and wiretineservices on 20th March 2009 The

existing benchmarks have been tightened and some of the

parameters like Service access delay have been taken off

Scme new parameters like BTS accumulated Downtime
Worst affected BTSs due to downtime worst affected cells

having more than per cent TCH drop -are the new

parameters which have been added The benchmark for Call

drop ratio has been reduced to from per cent earlier The

revised regulation has come into effect from 1St July 2009

Penalty on Subscriber verification

DoT has revised the penalty in case of non verification of

suscribers by its circular dated 24th December 2008

slab based penalty system which came into effect from
1St April 2009 has replaced the earlier flat fine of Rs 1000

per unverified subscriber

Roll out obligation

DoT has amended the Unified Access Service License on

0th February 2009 with respect to the roll out norms As

per the amendment the existing norms on in building

coverage have been removed and the service providers have

been given the advantage of the period lost in getting SACFA

clearance With this amendment the obligations of the

company on account of roll out has reduced
drastically

Auctioning of 3G and Broadband Wireless Access BWA
spectrum

The auctionin5 of 3G and BWA spectrum which was originally

plsnned in January 2009 was postponed by DoT and is now

scheduled before the end of FY 2009-10 DoT has referred

55 jes related to the amount of spectrum to be auctioned

anJ its reserve price to the Group of Ministers RCOM is the

only existing national operator which has 3G ready network

nabonwide giving it head start in offering 3G services in

the country

Mobile Virtual Network Operator MVNO

In August 2008 TRAI issued recommendations in favour of

the entry of MVNOs It also prescribed the definition terms
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and cond tions of MVNO license License fee entry fee etc

The DoT after taking into account the industrys views on

the recommendations had referred some of the issues back

to TRAI on 27th February 2009 After considering the

suggestions/ changes suggested by the DoT TRAI has issued

revised reommendations on 2th March 2009 But DoT is

yet to take final decision in the matter

48th Telecom Tariff order by TRAI

TRAI had issued consultation paper on Plethora of Tariff

plans in February 2008 After consulting the industry the

Authority issued the 48th Amendment to the Telecom Tariff

Order Under the new order service providers cannot charge

an administration fee of more than Rs on top up recharge

The maximum number of tariff plans in circle has been

capped at 25 The black out days the days when no

concessional vo ce rate/ SMS late apply- cannot be more

than per calendar year In case of promotional pLan the

start date and end date of the plan has to be indicated For

migration of prepa to postpaid platform and vice versa- no

migration fee can be levied by the service provider

10 Lockin period of years for promoters equity

The DoT vide its Circular dated 23rd JuLy 2009 inter alia

provided or lock-in-period for sale of equity of person

whose share capital is per cent or more in the UAS Ucensee

company on the effective date of UAS Ucence and whose

net-worth has been taken into considerabon for determining

the
eligibility for grant of UAS license till completion of three

years from the effective date of the UAS licence or till

fulfilment of all the rollout obligations whichever is earlier

11 Merger guideLines for Intra service area

DoT issued revised guidelines for ntra service area merger on

22nd April 2008 These guidelines have replaced the earlier

guidelines issued on 21st February 2004 The threshold level

for any merger to take place has been revised to 40 per cent

of revenue market share and subscriber market share For

considering the number of subscribers wireline and wireless

subscribers will be considered separately The merged entity

has to ju the total amount of spectrum held by the

merging entities with respect to spectrum allotment guidelines

which are based on subscriber based criteria period of

months will be given to the merged entity to meet the

subscriber number shortfall if any for justifying the total

spectrum held by it Excess spectrum if any will have to be

surrendered Any permission for merger shall be given only

after completion of years from the effective date of license

The duration of license of merged entity in the respective

areas will be equal to the remaining duration of the license

of the two merging Ucenses whichever is less on the date of

the merger

Internet telephony

TRAI had issued recommendations on Internet telephony on

8th August 2008 It recommended that ISPs with Internet

telephony should be allowed to interconnect with Public

Switched Telephone network through NLD operator without

payment of any additional entry fee DoT had referred the

recommendations back to TRAI on account of level playing

issue with respect to Unified Access Service Licensees

However TRAT has reaffirmed its earlier recommendations

on 31st March 2009 DoT has to take final decision in this

matter

Acess Deficit Charge ADC

TRAI has completely phased out the ADC with effect from

1st October 2008

14 Provisioning of Internet ProtocoL TeLevision Services IPTV

Ministry of Information Broadcasting on the basis of

recommendation of TRAI issued Guideline on 8th September

2008 inter alia providing for provisioning of IPTV services by

Telecom Service Providers under Unified Access Services

License UASL and Cellular Mobile Telephony Service CMTS
License or Internet Service Providers ISP with net worth

more than Rs.1 00 Crore and having permission from DoT to

provide IPTV or Cable TV Operators registered under Cable

Television Network Regulation Act 1995 Cable Act
Ministry of Information Broadcasting also modified the

guideline for down-linking of television channels to enable

broadcasters to provide their content to IPTV service providers

Key DeveLopments in the Company

WireLess business

CSM Launch

UCOMs GSM launch has been the fastest network roll-out covering

cver 11000 towns within 11 months having received start-up

CSM spectrum only in January 2008 The Company commenced

commercial Jperations of its nationwide GSM service on 30th

Liecember 2008 with unique Customer Experience Program

CEP that re ulted in record addition of million new subscribers

iii January 2009 the highest ever monthly customer acquisition

iii the histoni of telecom any where in the world Perhaps the

most succesful product launch of this scale

Civerall 11.3 nilkon new subscribers were added in quarterJanuary

to March 2009 and achieved 11 3% growth in quarter-on-quarter

sibscriber acdrtions

RCOMs GSM network now covers over 24000 towns and

00000 villages The fastest roll-out of this scale and size was

achieved by Uveraging the existing nationwide sharable technology

agnostic corrrmon infrastructure

ReLiance Netconnect Netconnect Broadband Plus

Ouring the lear under review we rolled out CDMA wireless

broadband srvice Reliance Netconnect Broadband Plus Indias

fastest Wireless Internet service Netconnect Broadband Plus has

downhnk r.peed of upto 3.1 Mbps This makes Netconnect

Eroadband best suited for video streaming video surveillance

rich media content superior Internet browsing

Netconnect Broadband service is available in 35 cities with

saamless harrdover to high speed lx service covering 24000
towns and 00000 villages as well as all major road and rail

routes across the country covering 99% of Indias Internet

population the company retails Netconnect Broadband in

2000 IT rrtail outlets across India as well as 2300 exclusive

Reliance Corimunication retail stores and nearly 240 Reliance

World outlets

etconnect Broadband Plus is targeting about million Road

Warriors who need Internet access on the move with their laptop

and about million Home PC users who access entertainment

and educational content
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Handsets

New models were introduced both as bundled and open market

3rd party handsets initiatives alongside the high-end models to

give consumers adequate choice We introduced high-end

handsets some with touch screen to effectively tap into the

upgrade and high end market

We have also been aggressively forging partnerships with open

market handset vendors to ensure high visibility and reach With

the launch of our GSM operations we bundled our SIMs with

other handset manufactures and this contributed to increasing

the number of customers who have come onto our GSM network

In September 2008 we launched Indias first prepaid service for

BlackBerry on the prepaid platform This pay as you use pricing

model with cost-effective options will give the consumer

flexibility and control over expenses

Wortd Roaming To offer worldwide Voice and Data Roaming for

our Blackberry and high-end customers we tied up with Leading

operators across the world for dual network roaming Today

Reliance offers International Roaming in 242 countries and 535

networks with full-fledged Data Roaming Services across 82

countries and 380 networks

Range of unlimited usage plans We Launched range of unlimited

usage plans following the creation of additional network capacity

during the year The fiist product Unlimited local calls was

Launched across Pre-paid mobile Post-paid mobile and Fixed

Wireless Phones After acquiring over haLf million customers in

the unlimited product cinge we have launched our unlimited STD

product These products offer complete peace of mind for high

volume individual users Corporate and SME segment etc and create

very strong Reliance Community of users

GLobat Business

Reliance Globalcoms vendor and carrier agnostic hybrid network

provisioning approach has been enthusiastically received across

the world By offering full portfolio of IP Multiprotocol Label

Switching MPLS Ethernet and Managed Services all through

single point of management utilizing best-in-breed partners across

230 countries and territories in the world our customers have

not only reduced total cost of ownership of their networks but

enhanced functionality

Reliance Communications owns and operates the worlds largest

next generation IP enabled connectivity infrastructure comprising

over 277000 kilometers of fibre optic cable systems in India

USA Europe Middle East and the Asia Pacific region

GLobaL data services

The Company continues to be leading provider of international

connectivity and data services to telecom operators content

providers internet communities and enterprises around the globe

Our International Data ousiness is underpinned by our ownership

of the largest private submarine cable system in the world directly

connecting 60 countries from the East coast of United States to

Europe the Middle East India South and East Asia through to

Japan The network seamlessly interconnects with our over

90000 kilometers fibre optic cables We are further expanding
our global network with implementation of the Next Generation

Network NGN cable system Construction of NGN Mediterranean

cable system between Egypt and France is underway Upon

completion of NGN Med we will be the only service provider

with multi-terabit ownEd cable on the busy traffic route between

India Middle East and Lurope U.S

Our acquisition of Yipes Holdings Inc and Reliance Vanco Group

Limited has strengthened our position in the global enterprise

data market We are leading provider of connectivity to worlds

top exchanges in the U.S and U.K through our fLagship Global

Ethernet brand FinancialConnect We are leading global

Managed Network Services provider serving over 60000 sites in

over 60 countries We continue to win new business from large

MNCs to rollout and manage complex MPLS VPN networks in

stiff competition with global competitors

We have over 1500 large enterprise customers globally

NationaL Long Distance

We offer NLD carriage and termination to other carriers and on

an inter-segment basis to other business units of Reliance

Communiations Witri the entry of new telecom operators there

is growin opportun ty in bandwidth and infrastructure sales

Leveraging the opportunity to monetize our nation-wide NLD

assets we have forayed into bandwidth and telecommunications

infrastructure segment

Voice

In Voice segment we offer International Long Distance carriage

and termination to other carriers as well as on an inter segment

basis to cther business units of Reliance Communications as part

of the wholesale product offering We entered the long distance

market in India in mid-2003 and are one of the largest carriers of

international voice minutes with market share of 30% for

Internatioial Long Distance wholesale inbound traffic

As part of our retail offering in voice we offer virtual international

calling services to retail customers for calls to 200 international

destinatiois including India under the brand Reliance Global Call

Our retail services are available to customers in several countries

including the United States Canada the United Kingdom Australia

New Zeabnd Hong Kong and Malaysia We have over million

customerr for our Relance Global Call service Usage of Reliance

Global Call accounts -or 40 per cent of total retail market calls

from the Jnited States to India

Enterprise Broadband

The number of our Internet subscribers increased by 0.28 million

during the year with tie broadband subscriber base reaching 1.40

million

Network coverage th the increased focus on directly connecting

buildings the top 44 cities in India our Broadband business

now has almost million buildings directly connected to our

network nscording mo-e than 18% growth in the network coverage

during the year

During the year the Enterprise Broadband business augmented
its building connectivity program with the deployment of WiMax

802.1 6d based last mile access technology Our Broadband

business currently series top 10 cities in the country using this

wireless technology so
Our robust nationwide network backbone is continiously controlled

and monitored at National Operating and Control Center NOCC
located at Mumbai This NOCC facility is replicated at Hyderabad

to guard against any catastrophe as redundancy measure

Infrastructure

Our infrastructure subsidiary Reliance Infratel Limited RITL signed

long term contract with Etisatat DB Telecom EDB for passive

infrastructjre and transmission connectivity for over 30000 sites
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to be taken in phased manner over months This will get

further enhanced with EDBs expansion plans for coverage and

capacity RITL will also explore other B2B services of Bandwidth

Carriage NLD and ILD and co-location of field and core network

The EDB tenancy for passive services and connectivity of sites is

likely to enhance RCOMs revenues by about Ps 0.000 crore

over the next years Additionally RCOM will also be signing

contracts with other key operators

With this cleat our total tenancy goes up to 2.2 tenants per

tower

PIlL now owns 90000-Km optical fiber network providing

more economical and better quality Linking for tenants

compared to microwave

RCOMs current utilization of tower slot assets is 40-50 per

cent and chis provides significant potential for 3rd party

tenants It complements the existing passive infrastructure

and providas an integrated solution to tenants

As such we offer our customers an extensive and diverse

portfolio of well-positioned assets and we believe that our

wide and expanding portfolio of tower sites positions us to

be able to address the needs of nationaL regional local and

emerging wireless service providers in India

Home 0TH

We launched Indias fully Digital
Home Entertainment Service on

worlds most advanced MPEG4 Direct-To-Home 0TH Platform

Reliance BIG TV DTH offers over 200 channels including 32

exclusive cinema channels with
digital quality picture and sound

The feature-rich BIG TV 0TH Service is available at over 00000
outlets across 500 towns making it by far the countrys largest

retail rollout of Home Entertainment product and service

Tracing the ethos and philosophy of Reliance ADA Group BIG TV

0TH at launch nas retail presence of 2-3 times more than any

other DTH operator and offers services in more than double the

number of cities than any other 0TH operator

Content and value added services

Our quest for enhancing content for our value added chain provides

an easy access for our subscribers to the favorite content and

applications from wherever they are and on whatever device

theyre using giving multiple choices and delivering additional

capabilities to the wireless devices

We continue to pioneer new ways for providing content services

and conic devices to our subscribers

Recently we have tied up the following

Exclusive mobile games based on world celebrities and

Hollywood movies focusing on the stars glamorous side on

Reliances COMA and GSM networks across WAP/Brew

Blackberry platforms

Advertisinc funded videos on its Reliance Mobile platform

Tie-up with Oxigen Indias first and single point recharge

service This tie up will offer its customers the entire portfolio

of Oxigen easy recharge option

Alliance th BBC World Service to offer Live Audio service

through R.aliances P-World VAS platform This is the first

such international offering to be launched by an Indian

telecom company

Opportunities and Challenges

Opportunities

Convergence Our full fledged convergence model will hold key

to the overall success of the value chains built across the businesses

process that is primarily driven by technology and demand

Convergence in Service Network will drive the Telecom value chains

through capacity coverage quality and Corporate Convergence

II activate consolidations mergers acquisitions or collaborations

among the operators

Entry into GSM During the year under review Reliance reached

historic landmark with launch of GSM services in telecom

circles in addicion to operating in existing circles

Dual Technology While offering dual technology COMA and GSM

services Relkrnce will also benefit from the massive network

e.ecution already completed in COMA This will enable the

Company to offer highly attractive tariffs and products leveraging

the available capacity and provide multiple choices to subscribers

Prssive Infrastructure The expected technology rollouts in this

yEar are drivcn by 20 3G and WiMAX needs of the new and

isting
mobile operators as well as for the ISP operators This

translate into the current demand of over 300000 slots to more

than double no 700000 slots in the next couple of years for

passive infrastructure as well as other telecom infrastructure range

of services Our next generation infrastructure is favorably positioned

to capture this opportunity

Unique Positions in India

We currr ntly have tower sites in each of Indias 22 circles

and 48000 telecommunication towers as on 31St March

2009

Current verage age of our telecommunication towers is

years

All of ojr existing telecommunication towers have the

capacitiEs to host multiple wireless service providers as

tenants which is unique capability of our infrastructure sharing

business model

Our mult tenancy tower infrastructure has average capability

to host tenants on our towers As on 31st March 2009

we had the captive tenancy of .6 which puts us in unique

position the industry to offer more capacity/tenancy to

the grd p3rty operators existing and new in the B2B space

World Content Our Reliance Mobile World World is virtual

oriestop-shcp for entertainment communication gaming and

m-commerce Thanks to the wide range of applications it has

endeared itself to users from all walks of life Reliance Mobile

V\brld has ovEr hundreds of useful applications and over 200000

content titles which include Mobile TV videos cricket updates

music ringtones phonebook transfer and back-up service

commerce sevices like Mobile Banking bill payments mobile

mail and instant messenger city and TV guides booking gas

cylinders tracking Speed Post Airlines and Railway reservations

eamination results and much more

Rrech Rlech is poised to provide end-to-end lies and

management capabilities across the entire ICT value chain to the

Group companies while continuing to provide services to various

RCOM Busincss Units RTech also offers fast track managed IT

sclutions for new telecom operators for market entry The unique

arid competitive edge of RTech is the unique project management

Management Discussion and Analysis
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capabilities ability to infuse enormous domain and operational

experience with technology and customer focus and operational

transparency

Association with Botlywood and Cricket thereby attracting

youth

The association with ICC rind other Cricket tournaments and also

with leading Bollywood erents have made the Company and its

brand much sought after by the youth segment This will enable

the Company to increase its business in this highly profitable and

growing market segment

RetaiL

the Company has one cf the most extensive distribution and

service networks amongst all telecom players in India consisting

of nearly 2300 Reliance World and Reliance Mobke Stores

throughout India equipped to sell wireless handsets and service

packages customer service centers with multilingual capabilities

that have over 6000 agents In addition nearly million retail

outlets sell recharges of which approximately 90 per cent are

electronic recharge enabled The Company also has altance with

4000 ATMs for electronic recharge

Our 24 arrangement for contact center facility provides full

customer care interface and redressal measures

ChaUenes

Entry of many new competitors

The year 2008 09 saw the entry of several new players in the

mobile industry It is also possible that some of the players who

have acquired license recently and have tie-ups with leading

international service providers will enter the wireless market These

events will intensify competition and may lead to pressure on

tariff The Company is uniquely positioned to meet the situation

with its superior and world class network roll-out and expansion

plans

Entry of MobiLe VirtuaL Network Operator MVNO Brand

franchisees

It is possible that the Government may progressively relax MVNO

norms and more players may access to Indian markets through

this route These operatois may put pressure on tariffs

Risks and concerns

Some of the licences are subject to regulatory compliance

under the Terms and conditions of licences grant over different

part of World The rules and regulations issued by the

respective government and regulatory authorities having

jurisdiction over the Companys operations and licenses

schedules and obligations require it to meet specified

conditions network build-out requirements However the

Company does not perceive any default on this account

Mobile Number
Portability

MNP mandated by DoT expects

to implement number portability
in phased manner starting

with all the Metro and category circles This move is

bound to be beneficial for congestion free new networks as

they can use aggressive pricing strategies to lure existing

subscribers

Rapid technological changes may increase competition and

render the Companys technologies products or services

obsolete We are at present using the latest technology and

do not foresee obsolescence at present

The telecommunication services industry is capital intensive

Capital Expenditure CAPEX on adaptation to latest

technology may put pressures on deliverables However the

Company is constantly assessing such changes in the

technologies and taking immediate action through timely

CAPEX programs

The Company may be adversely affected by changes in tariff

structuies for services subjected to government and regulator

mandated regulations prevailing in the areas of services

The Company faces significant and intense competition in its

market which could aggravate with entry of new licensees

that may result in decreases in current and potential

customers revenuEs and profitability

We arc subject to market risks primarily from changes in

interest rates anc foreign currency exchange rates In

managing exposurE to these fluctuations we may engage in

various hedging transactions that have been authorized

according to documented internal policies
and procedures

FinanciaL Pvrformance Overview

ResuLts of operations

The Audited Consolidaned Financial Results are given for the

Financial year ended cn 31St March 2009 This is the third

reporting year of consotdated operations of the Company

Revenues and operating expenses

The Company on consclidated basis earned total revenues of Rs

2294846 crore USS 1524.54 million and the net
profit after

tax recorded by the Company was Rs 6044.93 crore CUSS

1191.83 reillion The Company incurred total operating expenses

of Rs 36L352 crore USS 268997 million

Operating profit before finance charges depreciation and

amortisation excepticnat items and provision against fixed

assets EBITDA

The Comprny earned EBITDA of Rs 9304.94 crore USS
1834.57 million The EBITDA margin for the year under review

is 40.55%

Depreciation and amotisation

Total of such charges was Rs 3607.70 crore 055 711 .30 mithon

Profit befole tax

The profit before tax was Rs 61 96.72 crore USS 1221.75

million The provision for taxes was gain of Rs 51.79 crore

USS O2 million Tee net profit after tax was Rs 6044.93

crore CUSS 11 91.83 million

BaLance sheet

As at 31 St March 2009 the Company had total assets of

Rs 102207 crore USf 201 5122 million Stakeholders equity

was Rs 42280.32 crore CUSS 8336.03 million while net debt

excluding ash and cash equivalents was Rs 2257825 crore

USS 4451 .55 million giving net debt to equity ratio of 0.53

times

Segment Wise Performance

WireLess Segment

Customer acquisition

During the year the Company added 26.88 miflion wireless

customers net additions The customer base grew by

58.70% during the year under review As at 31St March

2009 the Company had 72.67 million wireless customers

on its network During the year under review the Company
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Msnament Dn and Ana
reached out aggressively to rural areas on the back of major

network expansion that contributed to the Companys strong

customer acquisition

Revenues and profit

Revenues for the financiaL year ended 31st March 2009

were Ps 7367.63 crore USS 3424.22 million EBITDA

during the year was Ps 6673.95 crore USS 131 5.84

million Earning before Interest and Tax EBIT during the

year was Ps 4279.21 crore USS 843.69 million

GLobal 5ement

Minutes of use ILD and NLD operations

Operations in ILD and NLD maintained consistent traffic

growth rates in-line with the growth of the overall market

ILD minutes of use annually were around 7.6 billion NLD

minutes of use annually were around 32 billion The Company

maintained its leadership position for ILD inbound India traffic

with market share of around 30% During the year Reliance

Global Call maintained over 2.2 million international

customers Reliance India Call continued to be the largest

retail service with over 40% market share in the U.S.A for

India Calling

Revenues and profit

Revenues for the financial year ended 31St March 2009

were Rs 6790.94 crore USS 1338 91 million EBITDA

during the yearwas Ps 1624.71 crore USS 320.33 million

Earning before Interest and Tax EBIT during the year was

Ps 855.66 crore USS 68.70 million

Enterprise Broadband Segment

We maintained our position as premium integrated solutions

provider for Top Corporate in the Broadband segment Our

Enterprise Broadband business maintained its leadership in

Centrex Virtual Private Network and International Data Centre

products

The Companys Enterprise Broadband segment continued to

maintain its growth path and gained significantly during the

year even in the midst of aggressive competition in the data

and voice segments and especially in the internet bandwidth

segment from many other telecom service providers Of

current portfolio of more than 41 products our Enterprise

Broadband business has not only positioned larger number

of products within the top corporate but also increased its

share of wallet

New products launched during the year included Reverse

ITFS Managed WAN EWAN Global MPLS and Global

Ethernet etc

Broadbands innovative services assurance model of

TechCheck continued to gain further impetus during the

year 2008-09 in providing pro-active feedback to its

subscribers on the service levels provided by the Company

Customers have rated Broadband Products and Services at

high customer satisfaction and delight rating The CSAT

Customer Satisfaction Score increased steadily as Sample

Customers were out called

Broadbands Business IT Systems are ISO 27001 2005

Certified an Information Security Management System

Standard

Wireline

Our Optical Fiber Cable network of 90.000 route-km supports

seamless last mile Broadband connectivity

Our Broadband Access network is one of the largest networks in

the world having approx 3000 nodes currently and additional

7000 nodes will be added in 2009-201

Customer Base

Customer acquisition kept momentum with the increase in network

coverage during the year Net additions during the year grew by

more than 34% During the year the Company has acquired close

to 354000 customers taking the total customer base to .4

million

As the Companys Broadband business is currently serving mainly

enterprises the revenue per line reflects the total portfolio of

services and solutions being delivered to its customers Our revenue

per line has remained well above industry averages on account of

our mainly enterprise customer base and our successful cross-sell

of services to our customers

Revenues and profit

Revenues for the financial year ended 31st March 2009 were

Ps 2524 27 crore USS 497.69 million EBITDA during the year

was Ps 11 57.51 crore USS 228.22 million Earning before

Interest and Tax EBIT during the year was Rs 81 crore USS
60.69 million

ReLiance Communications Infrastructure Limited RCIL

We provide Internet Data Centre IDC services Reliance Data

Centre owned by RCIL wholly owned subsidiary from our IDCs

located in Mumbai and Bangalore We currently have IDC capacity

of 304.000 sq ft We are market leaders within the space having

an estimated market share of close to 60%

The Infrastructure facilities of RCIL are interlaced and integrated

with wireless network of the Company With view to gain synergy

in the business operations the Balance portion of Network Fibre

undertaking together with construction machinery was transferred

to the Company during the year

The Treasury division of RCIL was demerged and vested into

Reliance Telecom Limited in terms of Scheme of Arrangement

between these companies vide Order dated 9th June 2009

approved by Honbie High Court Bombay effective from 26th

June 2009

Operations

Revenues and operatinq expenses

RCIL earned total revenues of Ps 4096.03 crore USS 807.58

million during the year as compared to Rs 3622.69 crore USS
905.22 million for the previous year RCIL incurred total operating

expenses of Rs 341 6.1 crore CUSS 673.53 million as compared

to Rs 3.31 5.22 crore USS 828.39 million

Net Profit

The net profit after tax recorded by RCIL was Rs 266.18 crore

USS 52.48 million as compared to profit of Rs 621 .26 crore

USS 55.24 million in the previous year

BaLance Sheet

Balance sheet as at 31st March 2009 RCIL had total assets

net of Ps 3478.11 crore USS 685.75 million Shareholders

fund was Ps 2949.25 crore CUSS 581 .48 million
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Reliance Telecom Limited RTL

RTL is wholly owned subsidiary of the Company PTL operates in

Madhya Pradesh West BengaL Himachal Pradesh Orissa Bihar

Assam Kolkata and Northeast offering GSM services

The Treasury division of PCIL was demerged and vested into RTL

in terms of Scheme of Arrangement between these companies
vide Order dated 9th june 2009 approved by Honble High Court

Bombay effective from 26th june 2009

Operations

During the year under review RTL completed major network

expansion increasing its coverage significantly in the eastern region

PTL revolutionized the Lifetime proposition by pricing it at Ps

222 which was key driver in its acquisition strategy

Revenues and operatinq expenses

PIL earned total revenues of Rs 2050.83 crore USS 404.34

milhon during the year as compared to Ps 1361 .95 crore

USS 340.32 million in the previous year The PTL incurred total

operating expenses of Ps 1507.67 crore USS 297.25 million

as compared to Ps 1079.46 crore 055 269.73 million in the

previous year

Net Loss

The net loss recorded by PTL was Ps 7429 crore USS 34.36

million as compared to net profit after tax of Ps 46 82 crore

USS 11.70 milhon in the previous year

Balance Sheet

As at 31st March 2009 PTL had total assets net of

Ps 10270.40 crore US$ 2024.92 million Shareholders fund

was Ps 280 crore USS 55.21 million

Infrastructure

Reliance Infratel Limited RITL

PIlLs business is to build own and operate teLecommunication

towers optic fiber cable assets and related assets at designated

sites and to provide these passive telecommunication infrastructure

assets on shared basis to wireless service providers and other

communications service providers under long-term contracts These

customers use the space on our telecommunication towers to

install their active communicationrelated equipment to operate

their wireless communications networks The customers can also

use our optic fiber network to connect the sites to the core network

and the connectivity between circles

We have successfully carried out huge project of commissioning

over 30000 towers in the last year and half to buld portfolio

of 48000 multi-tenancy towers In the last six months we have

used the towers for both our COMA and GSM technology based

services as part of our strategy to provide dual services on pan
India basis We have commissioned these towers with multi tenancy

capabilities and they would have the capacity of over 200000

slots the most extensive compared to any other telecom

infrastructure provider We are capable of adding tenancy capability

at marginal cost on demand

Revenues and operating expenses

PIlL earned total revenues of Ps 4934 crore USS 972.79 miLlion

during the year as compared to Ps 1457.62 crore USS 364.22

million for the previous year The Company incurred total operating

expenses of Ps 1553.79 crore USS 306.35 million as compared

to Ps 782.06 crore USS 95.42 million in the previous year

Net Profit

The net profit after tax recorded by PITL was Ps 1685.72 crore

USS 332.36 m3lion as compared to Ps 320.58 crore

055 80.10 million in the previous year

Balance Sheet

As at 31 st March 2009 RITL had total assets net of

Ps 91 98 08 crore USS 3785.1 million Shareholders fund

was Ps 036.79 crore USSr 795.90 million

Outlook

Wireless Business

The tele density in rural India is less than 5% as on 31st March

2009 Opportunities galore rural sectors for us to tap this

potential Rural wireless subscriber base continued to register

growth In the quarter ended March 2009 rural subscriber base

increased to 109.71 million registering growth of 7.7 percent

over the previous Quarter We have swiftly moved towards rural

capacity expansion and coverage to tap this potential leveraging

our robust nationwide Network

Indian telecom industry continues to maintain high growth

trajectory Overall tele density for the quarter ended March 2009

reached 36.9 per cent The subscriber base for wireless services

has increased to 391 76 million as on 31st March 2009

The Telecom sector provides tremendous growth potential for us

The trend in subscriber base growth and the projections using the

past trend shows an even bigger opportunity left behind for us to

tap The performance ndicator data as on quarter ending March

2009 as released by annual report publ shed by TPAI are given

below

Soorce TRAI Report

Subscriber in million

The penetration of mobile services in India continues to be one of

the lowest in the world The overall tele-density in India stood at

36.9 per cent at the end of March 2009 while the wireless

penetration was at 33.7 per cent This shows that there is

tremendous potential for future growth especially considering that

most international developed markets have close to 00 per cent

penetration and most comparable developing markets currently

have penetration levels of 60 per cent 70 per cent
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We are the only nationwide operator in private sector to provide

best of the two Tec hnotogies that is CDMA and GSM The industry

structure for telecom as released by TRIM for the quarter ended

March 2009 is shown below

CDMA
24.12%

Sorce TRAI Repot

GSM
75.88%

Tariffs in India are among the lowest in the world with the main

players operating on low margins constantly manoeuvring

products pricing aressure to continue with the entry of new

operators however revenues are expected to get boosted due to

strong monthLy additions in subscriber base and increasing revenues

fiom VAS

Industry Trends

Sustained High Growth

India has been the fastest growing telecom market in the

world in the past year passing China in the totaL number of

new subscriber additions This explosive growth phase is

expected to last for few years before growth starts leve
off

3G and WiMax Roll-out

With 3G and WiMax BWA spectrum auctions on the horizon

there is great potential for the take-off of data access and

broadband services

Enabling Competition

Competition has received great thrust with host of pro-

competition policies
the changes to the 2G spectrum

allocation criteria and IUC reduction This has facilitated the

entry of many new networks both from green fieLd operators

as well as from regional incumbents entering into new service

areas

Infrastructure sharing

Greater potential for tower sharing outsourcing model with

the entry of new telecom pLayers into India

Global Business

We are proud to be one among the top Global IP Network carrier

companies in the private sector having portfolio of many Fortune

1000 multinational corporations We have richly invested in

increasing Data Center capacities which provide unmatched data

rich applications and business soLutions in reaL time

We believe that our strategy to leverage our gLobal terabit network

together with leadership in Enterprise solutions is deLivering

compelling value proposition to our global enterprise and carrier

customers Our customers are endorsing our strategy through repeat

and new business wins Going forward we expect continued growth

in every segment of Reliance Globalcoms business

To specify few initiatives

Expand tobiL terabit network to provide connectivity to

emerging economies including India Middle East and China

Our Next Generation cable named Hawk in the Mediterranean

between Middle East and Europe is on track for completion

We wiLl be only the only private service with multi-terabit

capacity from India to Europe at unmatched cost advantage

to consortium-owned and other private systems

Win Lucrative enterprise markets in the US and Europe

Looking for increased connectivity to emerging markets

vVe expect continued wins in the highLy complex but

extremely large and lucrative enterprise space in the U.S

and Europe which is over Ps 60000 crores market for VPN

and Ethernet solutions business

Expand and Leverage existing Leadership in NLD network

Lo capture strong demand for bandwidth and infrastructure

ur expansive network almoet twice as large as next largest

rivate operator makes us the most preferred private NLD

arriage provider in India There is strong demand for NLD

jandwidth and infrastructure from most operators and we

are well positioned to cater to this demand

Expand GLobaL Voice offerings We have been actively

canning to identify high-value addressabLe markets wherein

can launch products in Voice segment to take up leadership

aosition major initiative in this direction is our foray into

he global .idio Conferencing market We expect to leverage

jur 1500 enterprise customer base outside India and our

lobaL voice leadership to grab fair share of this business

Enterprise Broadband and Internet Data Centers IDC

Corporate broadband services demand is related to increasing IT-

led automation to improve productivity and operational excellence

in aLl sectors of business and economy particuLarly in the services

sectcrs Like FinarciaL Business Process Outsource /Knowledge

Procss Outsource services These are remarkable growth sectors

with tringent red uirements on high QuaLity of Service and Service

Level Agreements parameters Our growth is expected to be

multi raceted in at the three segments of the market top corporate

Smal Medium Business SMB as well consumer broadband All

the tiree are seserely under served today

Even in the SMB egment the penetration levels are still
relatively

low today and there is Large scope of opportunity for offering

broac band services With the present Low penetration of broadband

in Incia better grawth is expected in near future Yet another area

of growth is the InternationaL Data Services like IPLC Managed

VPN services and IDC services

The expansion of residential broadband will primarily be dependent

on Network rolL out and the expansion will be linear With the

present Low pen tration of broadband in India Large growth is

expected

One of the Enterprise product One Office Duo OOD offers

unmatched benefits to the customers by giving them more

convenience and higher efficiencies in managing their voice spend

The customers that till recently were not keen to churn their

voice connectivity due to the pains of number change and other

reasons are now more than keen to hear our OOD pitch Through

OOD customers are able to reduce their Voice Spend by up to

5%-20% Some of major customers in the Banking and White

good industry have even gone on record describing the value

that we have added through OOD Though OOD wilL continue to

rema integral
to Enterprise saLes strategy similar USPs around

other product offerings are also being developed
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With new IDCs coming up the leadership will not only be

maintained but the share of the IDC business will be substantially

increased.This will also help to up selling other products and thus

increasing the share of wallet of the Enterprise customers The

current economic conditions have forced our customers to defer

some of their data center requirements temporarily but coming

quarters are sure to see uptrend in this business

TeLecom Infrastructure

We are leveraging our extensive capability to offer wide range

of services as an integrated service provider across the whole

infrastructure value chain Our aim is to provide fast track solution

to our clients existing telecom operators as well as new companies

for market entry and for ongoing expansion as per their rollout

requirement

We are well- positioned vis-à-vis other infrastructure providers

with better quality tower infrastructure carriage and transport

infrastructure along with the unified approach as an integrated

service provider

RITL has passive infrastructure network in all 22 telecom service

areas covering 24000 towns and 600000 villages an effort

that cannot be
easily replicated

RITL is best positioned to attract tenants for

High quality portfolio capable of housing tenants

With marginal Capex tower tenant capacity of can be

enhanced up to tenants

Home/DTH Business

Reliance Big TVs 0TH Services with advanced MPEG4 technology

platform and iNTERACTIVE applications offer world of exclusive

portfolio with rich features at the touch of button on the remote

STOCK is the latest in bouquet of growing interactive applications

under its iNTERACTIVE services which include sporting action

SPORTS games application GAMES daily astro feature iASTRO

recipe-rich COOKING and NEWS with the latest news updates

Years Ahead

The global financial economic crisis which started in the second

half of fiscal year 2009 also affected India to some extent is

largely behind us Our track record has demonstrated our ability

to turn the adversity into opportunities

We are very well positioned to capitalise on growth opportunities

in the converged telecom market supported by our integrated

telecom infrastructure and strong focus on quality of services

We build our strength and leadership which is supported by

Upgradation and expansion of network unleashing its power

of state-ofthe-art latest technology

Reaching out to tap rural markets

Our commitment to stay ahead of Customer requirements

International presence with owned submarine cable network

and gateways

Introducing innovative products and services with unmatched

multiple choices across cutting edge technologies

Track record of strong Growth and
fast track execution

Optimisation of resources

Enriched human resources and strong focus on building human

capital

Adequacy of internal controL

The Company has built adequate systems of internal controls

towards achieving efficiency and effectiveness in operations

optimum utilisation of resources and effective monitoring thereof

as well as compliance with alL applicable laws

The internal control mechanism comprises well-defined

organisation structure documented policy guidelines pre
determined authority levels and processes commensurate with

the level of responsibility

The Management Audit Team undertakes extensive checks and

reviews through external firms of chartered accountants who

provide independent and professional observations Audit

Committee of the Board reviews major internal audit reports and

periodically reviews the adequacy of internal controls

Risk Management Framework

The Company has instituted self governed Risk Management
framework comprising of identification of potential risk areas

evaluation of intensity mitigation plans and procedures for the

risk management and policies formulated both at the enterprise

and at the operating levels

The framework seeks to facilitate building common understanding

of the exposure to the various risks and uncertainties at an early

stage for timely response and their effective mitigation Audit

Committee of the Board reviews risk management framework

periodically

Human resource and employees relations

The year 2008-09 has been encouraging year for the employees

There have been several people initiatives which have been

introduced for enhancing people productivity morale and

motivation

The Organisation structure of the businesses was revisited for higher

customer delivery efficiency productivity and improved cost This

facilitated the internal movement development and growth for

the employees Performing employees with higher management
bandwidth were considered for key management positions in the

Organisation

The Performance Management System was strengthened and

fully automated with the introduction of Quarterly Appraisal

System This was also linked with the Training and Development

system and hence an integrated training and development calendar

was rolled out This has facilitated in competency and capability

building with large number of functional and behavioral programs

The existing HR PoLicies were revisited with view to make more

employees friendLy transparent and objective and in line with the

Industry standards These Policies and the other HR processes

have been automated for employee convenience and ease of

administration

In order to empower our Line Managers HR Delegation Matrix

around recruitment retention etc was rolled out for higher

accountability as well as speedier resolution of issues

People Solutionan employee portaiwas launched for redressing

employee queries and grievances in time bound manner with

service level agreements
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Management Discussion and Anatysis

During the year Company was successfully able to meet the

manpower requirements emerging from our expanding business

The manpower as on 31st March 2009 was 371 50 across all

business

Information technoLogy

The Companys continued focus on Information Technology IT
is demonstrated by our initiative to bring siLoed ITteams into

singLe profit centre with more than 3400 person-years of rich

experience across various domains Almost 25% of our IT team

has over ten years of experience

During the year we achieved remarkable improvement in the

key performance indicators measuring efficiency responsiveness

and innovation We delivered significant reduction in costs and

unmatched business flexibility and value through the use of

common IT architecture and systems across various Lines of

business

Our IT systems and processes converge across CDMA and GSM
technologies providing seamless customer experience Everyday

we support more than five million transactions of over 2000 of

our field and contact center employees

We have built on reusable and scalable components that can

support over 100 million customers Our delivery and operational

processes are now certified and bench-marked against global

standards of CMMI Level and ISO 20000 unique achievement

for any telecom operators insourced IT operations

Reliance Technology Innovation Centre RTIC our technology arm

has replicated Reliance Communications network on reduced

scale Using this laboratory model RTIC evaluates multiple vendor

equipment provides development support to vendors and to our

internal teams audits our systems to enable smooth deployment

of new equipment and certifies it prior to its commercial

deployment

Going forward our information technology initiatives will focus

on

Widespread implementation of green computing principles

to reduce energy consumption optimize existing systems

and evaluate environmental attributes of new IT equipment

Enhancing all back office HR supply chain finance and

business continuity/risk management operations and

processes

Developing business intelligence/analytics framework for

profiling common customers across our Group

Our initiatives to use information technology for enabling and

enhancing business value have received extensive recognition

leading to several accolades including Information Weeks Global

CIO 50 Award Network Computing EDGE Award ClO 100 Award

for the third year in row SAP ACE Award for Customer Excellence

in Telecom for the second consecutive year IDC Enterprise

Innovation Award APAC Region PC Best IT Implementation Award

finalist NASSCOM IT User Award finalist CMAIs National

Telecom Awards CIOLs Enterprise Connect Award Polycom

Intelligent Enterprise Awards finalist We are also the sole

representative of the Indian telecom industry on the Boards of

the Tele Management Forum and the Mobile Marketing

Association

Corporate social responsibility

The Reliance ADA Group strives for sustainability and maintains

the eco-balance in the area of its operations Taking forward this

motto in the year gone by we had implemented and initiated

several programs to attain this objective

RCOM
jointly

with Reliance ADA Group initiated the following

E-learning internet literacy programs across varying age groups

and communities school children from underserved stratas

of society from more than 200 government schools across

40 cities and towns

Awareness program on Voluntary Blood Donation campaign

among RADAG employees came together to contribute more

than 11000 units of blood in the last one year

Socially relevant text messages were sent to over 00 million

customers across the Length and breadth of the country on

issues covering Save the girl child Promoting voluntary blood

donation Women empowerment

Collaboration with One Laptop Per Child Foundation for

creating an eco-system including leading edge technology

and infrastructure to help children discover the joy of learning

and bringing the benefits of education to all
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AudIto$t t.rtifkat on Corporate Governance

To

The Members of

Retiance Communications Limited

We have examined the compUance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ReLiance Communications Limited the Company for

the financial year ended on 31st March 2009 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock

Exchanges in India

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management Our examination was limited to

review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of Corporate

Governance It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us we certify that the Company has

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned
Listing Agreement

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

LaLa Natrajan Ramkrishna

Partner Partner

Membership No 35671 Membership No 032815

Mumbai

8th August 2009
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Reliance Communications Limited has maintained the highest

standards of corporate governance principles and best practices

by adopting the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group

Corporate Governance Policies and Code of Conduct as is the

norm for all constituent companies in the group These Policies

and Code prescribe set of systems processes and principles

which conform to the best international standards and are reviewed

periodically to ensure their continuing relevance effectiveness and

responsiveness to the needs of investors both local and global

and all other stakeholders

The Companys philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages

the attainment of the highest levels of transparency accountabibty

and equity in all facets of its operations and in all interactions

with its stakeholders including shareholders employees the

government lenders and the society The Company believes that

alt its operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of

enhancing long-term shareholder value In our commitment to

practice sound governance principles we are guided by the

following core principles

Transparency

To maintain the highest standards of transparency in all

aspects of our interactions and dealings

Disclosure

To ensure timely dissemination of all price sensitive information

and matters of interest to our stakeholders

Empowerment and accountability

To demonstrate the highest levels of personal accountability

and to ensure that employees consistently pursue excellence

in everything they do

Compliance

To comply with all the laws rules and regulations applicable

to the Company

EthicaL conduct

To conduct the affairs of the Company in an ethical manner

Stakeholders interest

To promote the interests of all stakeholders including

customers shareholders employees lenders vendors and

the community

Governance practices beyond regulatory requirements

Our governance practices go beyond the mere letter of statutory

and regulatory requirements With this in mind we have formulated

number of policy documents and introduced the following set

of governance practices

Values and commitments

We have set out and adopted policy document on values

and commitments of Reliance Communications We believe

that any business conduct can be ethical only when it rests

on the nine core values of honesty integrity respect fairness

purposefulness trust responsibility citizenship and caring

Code of ethics

Our policy document on code of ethics demands that our

employees conduct the business with impeccable integrity

and by excluding any consideration of personal profit or

advantage

Business poLicy

Our business policies cover comprehensive range of issues

such as fair market practices inside information financial

records and accounting integrity external communication

work ethics personal conduct policy on prevention of sexual

harassment health safety environment and quality

Separation of the Boards supervisory role from the

executive management

In line with the best global practices we have adopted the

policy of separating the Boards supervisory role from the

executive management We have also
split the posts of

Chairman and CEO

Prohibition of insider trading policy

This document contains the policy on prohibiting trading in

the equity shares of the Company based on insider or

privileged information

Prevention of sexual harassment

Our policy on Prevention of sexual harassment aims at

promoting productive work environment and protects

individual rights against sexual harassment

WhistLe blower policy

Our Whistle Blower policy encourages disclosure in good faith

of any wrongful conduct on matter of general concern and

protects the whistle blower from any adverse personnel action

Environment policy

The Company is committed to achieving excellence in

environmental performance preservation and promotion of

clean environment are the fundamental concern in all our

business activities

Risk management

Our risk management procedures ensure that the

management controls various business related risks through

means of properly defined framework

Boardroom practices

Chairman

In line with the highest global standards of corporate

governance the Board has separated the Chairmans role

from that of an executive in managing day-to-day
business

affairs

ii Board charter

The Board of Directors has adopted comprehensive

charter which sets out clear and transparent guidelines

on matters relating to the composition of the board

the scope and function of various board committees

etc

iii Board committees

The Board constituted Audit Committee Nomination/

Remuneration Committee and Shareholders/ Investors

Grievances Committee The Board rotates the Chairman

of these Committees once in two years

iv Tenure of independent directors

Tenure of independent directors on the board of the

Company shall not exceed nine years subject to their

re-appointment on retirement by rotation as per

statutory provisions

Independent directors interaction with shareholders

Members of the Shareholders Investors Grievances

Committee interact with shareholders on their

suggestions and queries if any which are forwarded to

the Company Secretary
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vi Lead independent director

Recognising the need for representative and

spokesperson for the independent directors the Board

has appointed an independent director as the lead

independent director The Lead independent director

performs the following roles in addition to the role of

non-executive independent director

preside over all executive sessions of the Boards

independent directors

work closely with the Chairman to finalise the

information flow meeting agenda and meeting

schedules

liaise between the Chairman and the independent

directors on the Board and

take lead role along with the Chairman in the

Board evaluation process

The Board designated Shri KPurwar as the lead

independent director The position of the lead

independent director is rotated once in two years

vii Meeting of independent directors with operating team

The independent directors of the Company meet in

executive sessions with the various operating teams as

and when they deem necessary These discussions may
include topics such as operating policies

and procedures

risk management strategies measures to improve

efficiencies performance and compensation strategic

issues for board consideration flow of information to

directors management progression and succession and

others as the independent directors may determine

During these executive sessions the independent

directors have access to members of management and

other advisors as the independent directors may
determine and deem fit

viii Monitoring of subsidiaries

The minutes of meetings of boards of subsidiary

companies are periodically placed before the board of

the Company

ix Commitment of directors

The meeting dates for the entire financial year are

scheduled in the beginning of the year and an annual

calendar of meetings of the board and its committees is

circulated to the directors This enables the directors to

plan their commitments and facilitates attendance of

all directors at the meetings of the board and its

committees

Governance practices being foUowed to promote the

interests of our stakehotders

We have introduced several trend setting governance practices

to improve stakeholders satisfaction Some of the major ones

among them are

Customers

We have taken various customer caring initiatives which

give various services to our subscribers at all times We
also have captive contact centers having one of the

largest facilities accommodating approx 9500 personnel

on round the clock shift basis In addition to this we

have provided various on line measures on Reliance World

platform which also give ready access to the customers

Our customers can view and pay their bills online and

manage their account information online

ii Employees

We have dedicated service portal which offers

various onLine HR services and facilities to

employees Some of these facilities are details of

current and past salaries income-tax computations

attendance and leave management goal setting

with relevant key Risk Indicators KRIs and Key

Performance Indicators KPIs potential assessment

module performance evaluation system feedback

mechanism resard and recognition policy grievance

redressal system exit interviews training and

development module etc

We are committed to make Reliance

Communications an Employer of Choice Towards

this several initiatives have been taken in areas of

talent acquisition and retention capability

enhancement and performance management
These initiatives have been strongly supported by

extensive deployment of technology and

automation which has consequently enabled various

HR interventions and services such as attendance

and leave management goal setting performance

assessment grievance redressal system etc

With wide range and reach of businesses it is

imperative to align people processes and practices

to organizational objectives As such robust

transparent and fair employee policies form the

bedrock of all People Management processes These

policies not only ensure standardization of

interpretation and implementation but also provide

clarity on authority and accountability of all HR

practices Moreover we have set up robust HR

Review and Audit mechanism in the Company

HR is strongly agile and responsive to emerging

market forces of the business environment in which

RCOM operates As result HR adopts prudent

approach to people issues benchmarking itself to

global practices and local contexts HR has

successfully implemented some unique initiatives

iii areas of Employee Stock Options Learning

Management Leadership Development etc

Deeply rooted in the Reliance philosophy of scale

scope and service HR endeavours to constantly

innovate and re-engineer processes and practices

so as to be parterning with Business in achieving

organizational goals and objectives

iii Shareholders

The significant services and facilities being rendered to

investors include ECS and e-payment of dividend at

about 60 cities odd lot share scheme for convenient

disposal of odd lot shares hetd in physical form

iv Lenders

The Company has been prompt honoring all debt

obligations to its lenders

Society

The Company in keeping with its Corporate Social

Responsibility policy focuses on healthcare education

and other social initiatives
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Compliance with the code and ruLes of Luxembourg Stock

Exchange and Singapore Stock Exchange

The GlobaL Depository Receipts GDR issued by the Company

are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange The Company
had also issued Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

which are listed at Singapore Stock Exchange SGX The Company
has reviewed the code on corporate governance of LSE and SGX

though the same are not applicable to the Company However

the Companys corporate governance practices substantially

conform to these codes and rules

Compliance with Clause 49 of the listing agreement

The Company is fully compliant with the mandatory requirements

of Clause 49 of the
listing agreement formulated by the Securities

and Exchange Board of India

We present our report on compliance of governance conditions

specified in Clause 49 of the Listing agreement

Board of Directors

Board composition Board strength and representation

As on 31st March 2009 the board consisted of five

members The composition of and the category of directors

on the board of the Company were as under

Category Particulars of directors

Promoter non-executive Shri Anil Ambani Chairman

and non-independent

Director

Independent Directors Prof Ramachandran

Shri TaLwar

Shri Deepak Shourie

Shri Purwar

The Company has appointed Shri Hasit Shukla Company

Secretary as the Manager of the Company in terms of

provisions of Companies Act 956 for period of five years

with effect from 8th February 2006

Conduct of board proceedings

The day to day business is conducted by the executives and

the business heads of the Company under the direction of

the Board led by the Chairman The board holds minimum

four meetings every year to review and discuss the

performance of the Company its future plans strategies and

other pertinent issues relating to the Company

The Board performs the following specific functions in addition

to oversee the business and the management

review monitor and approve major financial and business

strategies and corporate actions

assess critical risks facing by the Company review

options for their mitigation

provide counsel on the selection evaluation

development and compensation of senior management

ensure that processes are in place for maintaining the

integrity of

the Company

the financial statements

compliance with Law

relationship with all the stakeholders

delegation of appropriate authority to the senior

executives of the Company for effective management

of operations

Board meetings

The Board held meetings during 200809 on 30th April

2008 3lstJuly 2008 31st October 2008 and 23rdJanuary

2009 The maximum time gap between any two meetings

was 91 days and the minimum gap was 83 days

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws

applicable to the Company

Standards issued by ICSI The Company is in substantial

compliance with the Secretarial Standards governing board

meetings as also general meetings as set out in Secretarial

Standards and II issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India The board of directors of the Company
has taken necessary steps in order to ensure compliance with

these standards Besides the board has constituted several

committees to deal with various specialised issues

Attendance of directors

The overall attendance of directors was 95 per cent

It is proposed to introduce tele-conferencing and video

conferencing facilities immediately upon amendment to the

relevant statutes

Attendance of directors at the board meetings held during 2008-2009 and the last Annual General Meeting held on

30th September 2008

Name of the Director Meetings held Meetings Attendance at

during the tenure attended the last AGM

Shri Anil Ambani Present

Prof Ramachandran Present

Shri TaLwar Present

Shri Deepak Shourie

Shri Purwar Present

Notes

None of the directors is related to any other director

None of the directors has any business relationship with the Company
None of the directors has received any loans and advances from the Company during the year
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Other directorships

None of the directors hold directorships in more than public limited companies

The information provided above pertains to the following

committees in accordance with the provisions of Clause

49 of the listing agreement

Audit committee

ii Shareholders/investors grievances committee

Membership of committees includes chairmanship if any

Membership of board committees

No director holds membership of more than committees

of boards nor any director is chairman of more than

committees of boards

DetaiLs of directors

The abbreviated resumes of all Directors are furnished

hereunder

Shri Anit Ambani

Regarded as one of the foremost corporate leaders of contemporary

India Shri Anit Ambani 50 the Chairman of all listed

companies of the Reliance ADA Group namely Reliance

Communications Reliance Capital Reliance Infrastructure Reliance

Natural Resources and Reliance Power He is also the President

of the Dhirubhai Ambani Institute of Information and

Communication Technology Gandhinagar Gujarat

An MBA from the Wharton School of the University of

Pennsylvania Shri Ambani is credited with pioneering several path-

breaking financial innovations in the Indian capital markets He

spearheaded the countrys first forays into overseas capital markets

with international public offerings of global depositary receipts

convertibles and bonds Under his Chairmanship the constituent

companies of the Reliance ADA Group have raised nearly USS

billion from global financial markets in period of less than

years

Shri Ambani has been associated with number of prestigious

academic institutions in India and abroad

He is currently member of

Wharton Board of Overseers The Wharton School USA

Board of Governors Indian Institute of Management JIM
Ahmedabad

Executive Board Indian School of Business ISB Hyderabad

In June 2004 Shri Ambani was elected as an Independent member

of the Rajya Sabha Upper House Parliament of India position

he chose to resign voluntarily on 29th March 2006

Select Awards and Achievements

Awarded by Light Readings as the Person of the Year 2008

for outstanding achievements in the communication industry

Voted the Businessman of the Year in
poll

conducted by

The Times of India TNS December 2006

Voted the Best role model among business leaders in the

biannual Mood of the Nation poll conducted by India Today

magazine August 2006

Conferred the CEO of the Year 2004 in the Platts Global

Energy Awards

Conferred The Entrepreneur of the Decade Award by the

Bombay Management Association October 2002

Awarded the First Wharton Indian Alumni Award by the

Wharton India Economic Forum WIEF in recognition of his

contribution to the establishment of Reliance as global

leader in many of its business areas December 2001

Prof Ramachandran

Prof Ramachandran Director 52 is the Chair Professor of

Business Policy at the Indian Institute of Management Bangalore

He is qualified Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant and

has obtained his doctorate from the Indian Institute of

Management Ahmedabad

He is also director of Reliance Communications Infrastructure

Limited Sasken Communication Technologies Limited Redington

India Limited Bhoruka Power Corporation Limited Indofil Organic

Industries Limited Tejas Networks Limited and Infotech Enterprises

Limited

Shri Tatwar

Shri Talwar Director 70 was former Deputy Governor of

Reserve Bank of India He was also former Chairman-cum

Managing Director of Bank of Baroda Union Bank of India and

Oriental Bank of Commerce He is graduate in Arts and Law He is

also qualified as CAIIB He has vast experience in financial services

sector in the country

He is also director of Crompton Greaves Limited Reliance

Communications Infrastructure Limited Reliance General Insurance

Company Limited Reliance Infratel Limited Videocon Industries

Limited Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited Wall Street

Finance Limited AB Hotels Limited Housing Development and

Infrastructure Limited Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited and

Asian Oilfield Services Limited

Shri Talwar is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the

Company Videocon Industries Limited Crompton Greaves Limited

Housing Development and Infrastructure Limited Reliance Infratel

Limited He is member of Audit Committee of Reliance Life

Insurance Company Limited Reliance General Insurance Company
Limited and Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited He

The details of directorships excluding private limited companies foreign companies and companies under section 25 of the

Companies Act 1956 Chairmanships and the Committee memberships held by the directors as on 31st March 2009

Name of directors Number of Committees

directorship including RCOM membershipb including RCOM

Membership Chairmanship

Shri Anil Ambani

Prof Ramachandran

Shri Talwar

Shri Deepak Shourie

Shri Purwar
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is also member of the Investors Grievances Committee of the

Company

Shri Deepak Shourie

Shri Deepak Shourie Director 60 is Bachelor of Arts in Economics

with Honours and has more than 39 years exposure with an

emphasis on media consumer goods and corporate affairs

He is on the Board of Indian Broadcasting Foundation He was

the Executive Vice President and Managing Director of Discovery

Communications of India

Shri Purwar

Shri Purwar Director 63 was the former Chairman and

Managing Director of State Bank of India SBI He was also former

Managing Director of State Bank of Patiala He is graduated in

Commerce and Diploma in Business Administration Under his

leadership the State Bank of India had taken giant strides in

technological innovations all the 3800 branches of the SBI

were fully computerized by 2004

He is also Director of Vardhman Textiles Limited jindal Steel

Power Limited Deccan Infrastructure and Land Holdings Limited

Apollo Tyres Limited Engineers India Limited ILFS Renewable

Energy Limited and India Infoline Limited Shri Purwar has been

associated with number of prestigious academic institutions

committees set up by various State and Central Governments and

international institutions

Insurance coverage

The Company has obtained Directors and Officers liability

insurance coverage in respect of any legal action that might
be initiated against directors

II Audit Committee

In terms of Clause 49 of the
listing agreement as well as

Section 292A of the Companies Act 956 the Board has

constituted Audit Committee of the Board of Directors at its

meeting held on 8th February 2006 At present the

Committee consists of all the four independent non executive

directors of the Company viz Shri Talwar Prof

Ramachandran Shri Deepak Shourie and Shri Purwar

In terms of the policy of rotating the chairman of the

Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company
Shri Talwar is appointed as the Chairman of the Audit

Committee on 31st March 2009 Prof Ramchandranan

was the Chairman of the Audit Committee till 31st March
2009 Shri Talwar has wide experience on accounting

financial business policies and taxation issues All other

members of the Committee are financially literate

The Audit Committee inter alia advises the management on

the areas where systems processes measures for controlling

and monitoring revenue assurance internal audit can be

improved The minutes of the meetings of the Audit

Committee are placed before the Board The terms of

reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with all

the items listed in Clause 4910D and of the listing

agreement as follows

Overseeing of the Companys financial reporting process

and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure

that the financial information is correct sufficient and

credible

ii Recommending the appointment reappointment and

replacement/removal of statutory auditor and fixation

of audit fee

iii Approving payment for any other services by statutory

auditors

iv Reviewing with management the annual financial

statements before submission to the Board focusing

primarily on
Matters required to be included in the Directors

Responsibility Statement included in the report of

the Board of Directors

Any changes in accounting policies and practices

and reasons thereof

Major accounting entries based on exercise of

judgment by management

Qualifications in draft audit report

Significant adjustments arising out of audit

Compliance with listing and other
legal requirements

concerning financial statements

Disclosure of related party transactions

Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial

statements beforesubmission to the Board for approval

vi Reviewing with the management the statement of uses

application of funds raised through an issue public

issue rights issue preferential issue etc the statement

of funds utihsed for purposes other than those stated in

the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report

submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the

utilisation of proceeds of public or
right issue and

making appropriate recommendations to the Board to

take up steps in this matter

vii Reviewing with the management the performance of

the external and internal auditors the adequacy of

internal control systems

viii Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function

including the structure of the internal audit department

staffing and seniority of the official heading the

department reporting structure coverage and frequency

of internal audit

ix Discussion with internal auditors on any significant

findings and follow up thereon

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by

the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or irregularity or failure of internal

control systems of material nature and reporting the

matter to the board

xi Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit

commences about nature and scope of audit as well as

post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

xii To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the

payment to the depositors debentureholders

shareholders in case of non-payment of declared

dividends and creditors

xiii To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower

mechanism

xiv Carrying out all other functions as is mentioned in the

terms of reference of the Audit committee

xv Review the following information

Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations

Internal audit reports relating to internal control

weaknesses

Management letters letters of internal control

weaknesses issued by statutory internal auditors

30



ReLiance Communications Limited

Statement of significant related party transactions

and

The appointment removal and terms of

remuneration of the Chief internal auditor

The Audit Committee has the following powers

to investigate any activity within its terms of reference

ii to seek any information from any employee

iii to obtain outside legal and professional advice

iv to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if

it considers necessary

Attendance at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during

2008-2009

The Audit Committee held its meetings on 29th April 2008 31st

July 2008 13th September 2008 31st October 2008 23rd

January 2009 and 31St March 2009 The maximum gap between

any two meetings was 92 days and the minimum gap was 43

days

Members Number of Number of

Meetings held Meetings

during the tenure attended

Shri Talwar

Prof Ramachandran

Shri Deepak Shourie

Shri Purwar

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last

AGM

The meetings considered all the points in terms of its reference at

periodic intervals

Shri Hasit Shukla Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to

the Audit Committee

III Nomination Remuneration Committee

The Nomination/Remuneration Committee of the Board is

constituted to formulate from time to time process for

selection and appointment of new directors and succession

plans and recommend to the Board from time to time

compensation structure for directors and the manager

Presently the Company has no executive director

The Nomination/Remuneration Committee comprises of five

directors i.e Prof Ramachandran Shri Anil Ambani Shri

Talwar Shri Deepak Shourie and Shri Purwar In

terms of the policy of rotating the chairman of the

Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company

Prof Ramachandran was appointed as the Chairman of the

Nomination Remuneration Committee on 30th April 2009

Shri Tatwar was the Chairman of the Nomination/

Remuneration Committee till 30th April 2009 During the

year the Nomination/Remuneration Committee met once

on 31 St July 2008

Members Number of Number of

Meeting held Meeting

during the Year attended

Prof Ramachandran

Shri Anil Ambani

Shri Talwar

Shri Deepak Shourie

Shri Purwar

Shri Hasit Shukta Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to

the nomination/remuneration Committee

Equity shares held by directors

Number of equity shares held by the non-executive directors in

the Company as on 31st March 2009 are as follows

Name of Director No of equity shares held

Shri Anil Ambani 1859171

Prof Ramachandran 698

Shri Talwar Nil

Shri Deepak Shourie Nil

Shri Purwar Nil

Managerial remuneration policy

The Nomination/Remuneration Committee determines and

recommends to the Board the compensation of the Directors

and the Manager The key components of the Companys

Remuneration Policy are

Compensation will be major driver of performance

Compensation will be competitive and benchmarked with

select group of companies from the service sector

Compensation will be transparent fair and simple to

administer

Compensation will be fully legal and tax compliant

The Members had through Postal Ballot on 31st March 2006

subject to approval and permissions as may be required approved

payment of commissions to non executive directors who are not

in the full
time employment upto the limits laid down under the

provisions of Section 3094 of the Companies Act 956

computed in the manner specified in the Act or such other limit

as approved by the Central Government for period of years

from the financial year commencing st April 2006 The Company

had obtained approval from the Central Government for payment

of commission to non executive directors upto limit of 3% of

the profits of the Company each year for period of years from

the financial year commencing 1st April 2006

The Board of Directors based on recommendation of Nomination/

Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on 3lstJuly 2008

had approved payment of commission of Rs.30.60 crore to the

Non Executive Directors of the Company for the year ended

31st March 2008 based on various parameters which was paid

during the year 2008-09

Criteria for making payments to non-executive directors

The remuneration to non executive directors is benchmarked with

the relevant market and performance oriented balanced between

financial and sectored market comparative scales aligned to

Corporate goals role assumed and number of meetings attended

Details of Sitting fees and Commission paid during the year ended

31St March 2009

Name of Director Commission Sitting Fee

Rs Lakh Rs Lakh

Shri Anil Ambani 3000.00 220

Prof Ramachandran 5.00 3.40

Shri Talwar 5.00 3.60

Shri Deepak Shourie 5.00 2.40

Shri Purwar 5.00 3.40

Commission paid for the year commencing st April 2007

to 31 St March 2008

There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of

non-executive directors vis-â-vis the Company
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ALL directors being non executive are paid sitting fees for attending

the meetings of the Board and its committees

The independent directors are also proposed to he remunerated

by way of Commission of Rs.1 5.00 lac each for the year ended

31 St March 2009 as approved by the Nomination/Remuneration

Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company at their

meeting held on 8th August 2009

Shri Anil Ambani has not taken commission for the year

2008-09

IV Shareholders Investors Grievances Committee

The Shareholders/ Investors Grievances Committee

comprising Shri K.Purwar Shri Anil Ambans Shri

Talwar Prof Ramachandran and Shri Deepak Shourie In

terms of the policy of rotating the chairman of the

Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company Shn

Purwar was appointed as the Chariman of the

Shareholders/ Investors Grievances Committee on 30th ApriL

2009 Shri Deepak Shourie was the Chairman of the

Shareholders/Investors Grievances Committee till 30th April

2009

The Committee deals with matters relating to transfer/

transmission of shares issue of duplicate share certificates

review of shares demateriahsed and all other related matters

The Committee also monitors redressal of investors grievances

Particulars of investors grievances received and redressed are

furnished in the Investor Information Section of this Report

During the year the Shareholders/ Investors Grievances

Committee held its meetings on 29th ApriL 2008 31 stJuly

2008 30th September 2008 31st October 2008 and 23rd

January 2009 The maximum gap between any two meetings
was 92 days and the minimum gap was 30 days

Members Number of Number of

Meetinqs held Meetings

during the Year attended

Shri Purwar

Shri Anil Ambani

Prof Ramachandran

Shri Talwar

Shri Deepak Shourie

The meeting considered all the points in terms of its reference

at periodic intervals

Shri Hasit Shukla Company Secretary acts as the Secretary

to the Shareholders/ Investors Grievances Committee He

also acts as the Compliance officer of the Company

The total number of complaints received and replied to the

satisfaction of shareholders during the year under review were

454 There were no complaints pending as on 31st March

2009 The details of period take on transfer of shares and

nature of complaints are furnished in the investor information

section of this annual report

Employees Stock Option Scheme ESOS Compensation
Committee

The Compensation Committee comprises of four

independent directors i.e Shri Talwar as the Chairman

Prof Ramachandran Shri Deepak Shourie and Shri

Purwar as members Shri Hasit Shukla Company Secretary

acts as the Secretary to the Compensation Committee

No meeting of the ESOS Compensation Committee was held

during the year

VI Employee Stock Option Scheme

In order to share the growth in value and reward with

employees for having participated in the unprecedented

success of the Company our Employee Stock Option Scheme

the Scheme has been implemented by the Company with

three Tier Model being Founders Club Pioneers Club and

Growth Club to the eligible employees based on specified

criteria under Employee Stock Option Plans

The Plans are prepared in due compliance of Scheme
Securities and Exchange Board of India Employee Stock

Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme

Guidelines 999 and other applicable laws The Options will

vest at the end of one year from the date of Grant and shall

be eligible for exercise up to period of nine years from the

date of Vesting under the Plans

VII General Body Meetings

The Company held its last three Annual General Meetings as under

Year Location Date Time Whether Special

Resolution

passed or not

2005 4th Floor Maker Chambers IV 24th January 2006 00 p.m No
months 222 Nariman Point Mumbai 400 021

2006-2007 Birla Matushri Sabhagar 7th July 2007 .00 a.m No
months Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg Mumbai 400 020

2007-2008 Birla Matushri Sabhagar 30th September 2008 .00 am No
Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg Mumbai 400 020

VIII Postal BaLlot

During the year the Company had not passed any resolution by conducting Postal Ballot At the ensuing Annual General Meeting
also there is no resolution which is proposed to be passed by postal ballot

The Company had conducted postal ballot on 28th May 2009 as required under the Companies Passing of Resolution by Postal

Ballot Rules 2001 Shri Anil Lohia Chartered Accountant was appointed as the Scrutinizer for overseeing Postal Ballot process
The following resolution was passed with requisite majority
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IX Means of communication

Information Like quarterly financial results and media releases

on significant developments in the Company as also

presentations that have been made from time to time to the

media institutional investors and analysts are hosted on the

Companys web site and has also been submitted to the stock

exchanges on which the Companys equity shares GDR and

FCCBs are listed to enable them to put them on their own

web sites The Company has published its Financial Results in

The Financial Express English all India Edition arid Navshakti

Marathi

EDIFAR Corporate Fitin

As per the requirements of clauses 51 and 52 of the listing

agreement with the stock exchanges all the data relating to

quarterly financial results shareholding pattern quarterly

report on Corporate Governance etc are being electronically

filed on www.corpfiling.co.in in addition to the filling the

same with the Stock Exchanges within the timeframe

prescribed in this regard However the Company has also

filed the above data through electronic data information filing

and retrieval EDIFAR website of SEBI www.sebiedifar.nic in

XI Compliance with other mandatory requirements

Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of

this Annual Report and includes discussions on various matters

specified under Clause 49IVF of the
listing agreement

Subsidiaries

The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian

subsidiary company However keeping in view of best

governance practices the independent directors of the

Company have also been appointed on the Board of Reliance

Infratel Limited and Reliance Communications Infrastructure

Limited subsidiaries of the Company The minutes of the

meetings of the board of directors of subsidiary companies

are placed before the meeting of board of directors of the

Company and the attention of the directors is drawn to all

significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the

subsidiary companies

DiscLosures

Disclosures on materially significant related party

transactions that may have potential conflict of

interest with the interests of Company at large

During the year 2008-09 no transactions of material

nature had been entered into by the Company with the

Promoters or Directors or Management their subsidiaries

or their relatives that may have potential conflict with

interest of the Company We have disclosed the related

party transactions with the subsidiary companies and

others in Notes to Accounts

Details of non-compliance by the Company penalties

and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock

Exchane or SEBI or any statutory authority or any

matter related to Capital Markets durinq the last three

year

The Company has complied with all the requirements

of the Stock Exchange or SEBI on matters related to

Capital Markets as applicable from time to time

Disclosure of accountins treatment

In the preparation of financial statements the Company

has followed the Accounting Standards as prescribed

under Companies Accounting Standards RuLes 2006

as applicable

Disclosures on risk management
The Company has laid down Risk Management Policy

defining Risk profiles involving Strategic Technological

Operational Financial Organisational Legal and

Regulatory risks within well defined framework The Risk

Management Policy shall act as an enabler of growth

for the Company by helping its businesses to identify

the inherent risks continuously assess/ evaluate and

monitor these risks and undertake effective steps to

manage these risks The Board and Audit Committee

periodically reviews the business related risks

Code of conduct

The Company has adopted the code of conduct and

ethics for directors and senior management The code

has been circulated to all the members of the board

and senior management arid the same has been put on

the Companys website www.rcom.co.in The board

members and senior management have affirmed their

compliance with the code and declaration signed by

the Manager of the Company appointed in terms of the

Companies Act 1956 the CEO within the

meaning of Clause 49-V of the listing agreement is

given below

It is hereby declared that the Company has obtained

from all members of the board and senior management

affirmation that they have complied with the code of

conduct for directors and senior management of the

Company for the year 2008-09

Hasit Shukla

Manager

CEO/CFO certification

Shri Hasit Shukla has also been appointed as the Chief

Executive Officer CEO of the Company certificate

from the CEO and CFO was placed before the Board

Review of Directors responsibility statement

The Board in its report have confirmed that the financial

accounts for the year ended 31st March 2009 have

been prepared as per applicable accounting standards

Date of declaration Particulars of special resolution Percentaqe of votes

of the result of cast in favour of resolution

postal ballot

2nd july 2009 Enabling resoultion authorising the Board of Directors of the Company 97

to also issue equity related Security to Qualified Institutional Investors

The Company had complied with the procedures for Postal Ballot in terms of the provision of Section 92A of the Companies Act

956 as well as Companies Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot Rules 2001 and amendments thereto from time to time
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and policies and that sufficient care has been taken for

maintaining adequate accounting records

XII Policy on insider trading

The Company has formulated Code of Conduct for

Prevention of Insider Trading Code in accordance with the

guidelines specified under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations 992
The Board has appointed Shri Hasit Shukla Company Secretary

as the Compliance Officer under the Code responsible for

complying with the procedures monitoring adherence to the

rules for the preservation of price sensitive information pre
clearance of trade monitoring of trades and implementation

of the Code of Conduct under the overall supervision of the

Board The Companys Code inter alia prohibits purchase

and/or sale of shares of the Company by an insider while in

possession of unpublished Price Sensitive Information in

relation to the Company during certain prohibited periods

The Companys updated Code available on the Companys
website

XIII Compliance with non-mandatory requirements

Tenure of independent directors on the Board

The tenure of independent directors on the Board of the

Company shall not exceed nine years in aggregate

Nomination Remuneration Committee

The Board has set up Nomination Remuneration

Committee details whereof are furnished at Sr No III of

this report

Shareholder rights

The quarterly financial results including summary of significant

events of relevant period of three months are pubUshed in

newspapers and hosted on the website of the Company

Audit qualifications

Strategic decisions were taken during the year resulting in

unqualified financial statements of the Company

Training of board members

programme has been devised to train board members in

Investor Information

Annual General Meeting

The Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company II be

held on Tuesday the 22nd September 2009 at 11.00 at

Birla Matushri Sabhagar 19 Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg Marine

Lines Mumbai 400 020

Financial year of the Company

The financial year of the Company is from st April to 31 st March

each year

Website

The website of the Company www.rcom.co in contains

section about Investor Relations and Media Section It carries

comprehensive database of informat on of nterest to our

investors including on the financial results of the Company
dividends declared by the Company any price sensitive nformation

disclosed to the regulatory authorities from time to time business

activities of the Company and the services rendered

facilities extended by the Company to our investors

the business model of the Company risk
profile of the business

parameters and their
responsibilities as directors

Whistle blower policy

The Company has formulated policy to prohibit managerial

personnel from taking adverse action against employees who
are disclosing in good faith alleged wrongful conduct on

matters of public concern involving violation of any law

mismanagement gross waste or misappropriation of public

funds substantial and specific danger to public health and

safety or an abuse of authority The policy also
lays down

the mechanism for making enquiry in to whistle blower

complaint received by the Company

Employees aware of any alleged wrongful conduct are

encouraged to make disclosure to the audit committee

Employees knowingly making false allegations of alleged

wrongful conduct to the audit committee shall be subject to

disciplinary action No personnel of the company have been

denied access to the grievance redressal mechanism of the

Company

XIII General shareholder information

The mandatory and various additional information of interest

to investors are voluntarily furnished in separate section on

investor information in this annual report

Auditors certificate on corporate governance

The Auditors certificate on compliance of Clause 49 of the
listing

agreement relating to corporate governance is published elsewhere

in this report

Review of governance practices

We have in this report attempted to present the governance

practces and principles being followed at Reliance

Communications as evolved over period and as best suited to

the needs of our business and stakeholders

Our disclosures and governance practices are continually revsited

reviewed and revised to respond to the dynamic needs of our

business and ensure that our standards are at par with the globally

recognised practices of governance so as to meet the expectations

of all our stakeholders

Dedicated email id for investors

For the convenience of our investors the Company has

designated an exclusive email id for investors i.e

RCOM investors relianceada.com

Compliance Officer

Shri Hasit Shukla Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer

of the Company

Registrar and Transfer Agent RTA
M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited

Unit Reliance Communications Limited

Plot No 7-24 Vittat Rao Nagar

Madhapur

Hyderabad 500 081

Investor Helpdesk

Toll free no India

Telephone No

Fax No

Email

Post your request

18004250999
91 40 2342 081 -802S
91 40 2342 0859

rcom@karvy.com

http//kcpl.karvy.com/adag
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Shareholders/Investors are requested to forward share transfer

documents dematerialisation requests through their respective

Depository Participant and other related correspondence directly

to M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited at the above address

for speedy response

Dividend announcement

The Board of Directors of the Company has paid Interim dividend

of Re 080 per Equity Share of Rs.5 each i.e 16% for the financial

year ended 31st March 2009 The Board has proposed to confirm

said Interim Dividend as final dividend

Book closure dates for the purpose of AGM
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company
will remain closed from Friday the 8th September 2009 to

Tuesday 22nd September 2009 both days inclusive for the

purpose of AGM

Dividend payment for the year 2008-09

The Company has paid interim dividend of Re.0.80
per equity

share of Rs.S/- each on 6th August 2009 and same is to be

treated as final dividend

Unclaimed dividend

Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 declared

on 7th july 2007 which remain unpaid or unclaimed for period

of years upto 6th August 2014 and financial year ended

31st March 2008 declared on 30th September 2008 which

remain unpaid or unclaimed for period of years upto 29th

October 201 will be transferred by the Company to Investor

Education and Protection Fund IEPF Members who have not so

far encashed dividend warrant for the aforesaid years are requested

to seek issue of duplicate warrant by writing to the Companys
Registrar and Transfer Agent M/s Karvy Computershare Private

Limited immediately Members are requested to note that no

claims shall lie against the Company or the IEPF in respect of any
amounts which were unclaimed and unpaid for period of seven

years from the date that it first became due for payment and no

payment shall be made in respect of any such claim

Direct deposit of dividend electronic cLearing service

Members desirous of receiving dividend by direct electronic deposit

to their bank account may authorise the Company with their

mandate For details kindly write to the Registrar and Transfer

Agent at the address mentioned above or you may visit the Investor

Relations Section at our website www.rcom.co.in

Bank details for physical shareholdings

In order to provide protection against fraudulent encashment of

dividend warrants Members are requested to provide if not

provided earlier their bank account numbers bank account type
names and addresses of bank branches quoting folio numbers to

the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company to enable them

to incorporate the same on their dividend warrants This is

mandatory requirement in terms of Securities and Exchange Board

of India SEBI circular No No DCC/FI1JC/CIR-O4/2001 dated

3th November 2001

Bank details for electronic shareholdins

While opening Accounts with Depository Participants lOPs you

may have given your Bank Accounts details which will be used by

the Company for printing on dividend warrants for remittance of

dividend SEBI vide its circular No DCC/FI1TCIR-3/2001 dated

5th October 2001 has advised that all companies should

mandatorily use Electronic Clearing Service ECS facilty wherever

available SEBI has also vide its circular dated 3th November
2001 referred to above advised companies to mandatorily print

the Bank Account details furnished by the Depositories on the

dividend warrants This ensures that the dividend warrants even if

lost or stolen cannot be used for any purpose other than for

depositing the monies in the Account specified on the dividend

warrants and ensures safety for the investors However members

who wish to receive dividend in an Account other than the one

specified while opening the Depository Account may notify their

DPs about any change in Bank Account Details Members are

requested to furnish complete details of their Bank Accounts

including MICR codes of their Banks to their DPs

Nomination
facility

Individual shareholders holding physical shares can nominate any

person/s for the shares held by them This will save the nominee

from going through the lengthy process of getting the shares later

on transmitted to his/her name For further details shareholders

may write to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company
or visit the Investor Relations section at our website

www.rcom.co.in

Share transfer system

Shareholders Investors are requested to send share transfer related

documents directly to our Registrar and Transfer Agent whose

address is given elsewhere in this report The Board has delegated

powers to the executives of the Company and RTA to approve
transfers/transmission dematerialisation remateriahsation If

the transfer documents are in order the transfer of shares is

registered within days of receipt of transfer documents by our

RTA

Odd Lot shares scheme for small shareholders

In view of the difficulty experienced by the shareholders of the

Company in
selling their odd lot shares in the stock market and to

mitigate the hardships caused to them Reliance Anil Dhirubhai

Ambani Group has framed scheme for the purchase and disposal

of odd lot equity shares at the prevailing market price The scheme
has been launched and is available to the shareholders of Reliance

Communications Limited who hold upto 49 shares in physical

form The shareholders who wish to avail the above
facility can

contact the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company

Group coming within the definition of group as defined in the

Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices Act 969 54 of

1969
The following persons constitute the Group coming within the

definition of Group as defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive

Trade Practices Act 969 54 of 969 which exercises or is

established to be in position to exercise control
directly or

indirectly over the Company
Shri Anil Dhirubhai Ambani

Smt Tina Ambani

Smt Kokila Ambani

Master jai Anmol Ambani

Master jai Anshul Ambani

Reliance Innoventures Private Limited

AAA Enterprises Private Limited

AAA Communication Private Limited

AAA Project Ventures Private Limited

AAA Power Systems Global Private Limited

Telecom Infrastructure Finance Private Limited

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

Sonata Investments Limited

Reliance Limited

Reliance India Private Limited

AAA Pivotal Enterprises Private Limited

AAA Infrastructure Consulting and Engineers Private Limited

K.D Ambani Trust
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AAA Entertainment Private Limited

AM Industries Private Limited

Reliance Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited

AAA Global Ventures Private Limited

Ambani Industries Private Limited

Solaris Information Technologies Private Limited

MA Sons Enterprises Private Limited

AAA International Capital Private Limited

Ambani International Private Limited

AAA Business Machines Private Limited

Reliance Big Private Limited

ADA Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited

ADAE Global Private Limited

Ikosel Investments Limited

Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group UK Private Limited

Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Investments UK Limited

Serbus Asia Private Limited

Millsfield Enterprises Limited

Tareson Company Limited

Adlabs Films Limited

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Reliance Capital Limited

Reliance Natural Resources Limited

Reliance Power Limited

Rosa Power Supply Company Limited

Sasan Power Limited

Maharashtra Energy Generation Limited

Vidarbha Industries Power Limited

Chitrangi Power Private Limited

Siyom Hydro Power Private Limited

Tato Hydro Power Private Limited

Urthing Sobla Hydro Power Private Limited

Kalai Power Private Limited

Coastal Andhra Power Limited

Maharashtra Energy Generation Infrastructure Limited

Coastal Andhra Power Infrastructure Limited

Sasan Power Infrastructure Limited

Sasan Power Infraventures Private Limited

Reliance Coal Resources Private Limited

Reliance Power Transmission Limited

Reliance Energy Generation Limited

Reliance Goa and Samalkot Power Limited

Reliance Energy Limited

Reliance Infraventures Limited

Reliance Property Developers Limited

Reliance Net Limited

AAA Infrastructure Finance Management Private Limited

AAA Corporation Private Limited

AAA Facilities Solution Private Limited

AM Cap Advisory Services Private Limited

MA Finance Management Priwite Limited

AM Project Finance Management Private Limited

ADA Enterprises Ventures Private Limited

AAA Resources Private Limited

AAA Advisory Services Private Limited

AAA Home Entertainment Services Private Limited

AAA Infra Advising Services Private Limited

AAA Advertisement Private Limited

AAA Infrastructure Investments Private Limited

AAA Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited

MA Telecom Holdings Private Limited

Shreenathji Krupa Project Management Private Limited

Shreeji Krupa Endeavour Management Private Limited

Reliance Big Entertainment Private Limited

Big Flicks Private Limited

Big Animation India Private Limited

jump Games Private Limited

Zapak Digital
Entertainment Limited

Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

Reliance Big News Private Limited

AAA Infrastructure Solutions Private Limited

NDs Art World Private Limited

Reliance Entertainment Ventures Private Limited

Gaylord Investments and Trading Private Limited

Fidelity Shares and Securities Private Limited

Guruvas Textiles Private Limited

Hansdhwani Trading Company Private Limited

KDA Enterprises Private Limited

BSES Kerala Power Limited

Reliance Land Private Limited

Reliance Futura Limited

Reliance Prima Limited

Quadro Mercantile Private Limited

Trans-Pacific Advisory Services Private Limited

Whitehills Corporate Services Private Limited

Sevenstar Corporate Services Private Limited

AAA
Digital Imaging Private Limited

Reliance ADA Group Trustees Private Limited

The above disclosure has been made inter alia for the purpose of

Regulation 31 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers Regulations

1997

Sharehotdin pattern

Sr Category As on 31.03.2009 As on 31 .03.2008

No No of shares No of shares

Promoters 1389861060 67.34 36481 1060 66.12

Foreign holdings

Foreign holdings GDRs 451 23561 2.19 52586084 2.55

Direct By Foreign Companies 281 704 0.01 281087 01

Individual and Others 131 75933 0.64 2640008 0.61

Foreign Institutional Investors 52580857 7.39 205377423 9.95

Sub-TotaL 211162055 0.23 270884602 3.1

Public Financial/ Development Institutions

and Central and State Government owned

Institutions holdings 9761 3884 9.57 60914407 7.80

Bank and Mutual Funds 50917674 2.47 6633103S 3.21

General Public 214472208 0.39 201 08777 9.75

TotaL 2064026881 100.00 2064026881 100.00
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Notes

During the year the Company had repurchased and canceLled 350 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of USS 100000 each ssued by
the Company After 31st March 2009 Company has repurchased and cancelled 297 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of USS
100000 each issued by the Company The outstanding Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds issued by the Company if converted into the

Equity Shares of the Company would result in increase to tie
paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company by 89138991 Equity Shares

each of Rs.5/-

The Company has granted 13217975 optIons exercisable into equal number of fully paid up Equity Shares of the Company to the

Eligible employees under ESOS Plan 2009

Distribution of shareholding

Number Number of TotaL Shares Number of Total Shares

of Shares Shareholders as as on 31.03.2009 SharehoLders as as on 31.03 2008
on 31.03.2009 on 31.03.2008

Number Number Number Number

Upto 500 2106667 97.20 137363545 66 2003690 97.22 127354949 6.17

501 to 5000 58015 2.67 64755953 14 54492 2.64 61277222 2.97

5001 to 100000 2393 0.11 38370471 185 2440 0.12 42107779 2.04

100001 and above 331 0.02 1823536912 88.35 464 0.02 1833286931 8882

TotaL 2167406 100.00 2064026881 100.00 2061086 100.00 2064026881 100.00

Investors grievances attended

Received from Received during Redressed during Pending as on

2008-2009 2007-2008 2008-2009 2007-2008 31 .3.2009 31 3.2008

SEBI 23 23 Nil Nil

Stock Exchanges 28 17 28 17 NiL Nil

NSDL/CDSL
Nil Nil

Direct from investors 394 51 394 513 Nil Nil

TotaL 454 549 454 549 Nil Nil

AnaLysis of grievances

2008-2009 2007-2008

Numbers Percentage Numbers Percentage

Non Receipt of Annual Reports 10 20 22 4.01

Non-receipt of dividend warrants 386 85.03 41 75.77

Non credit of shares 0.66

Non receipt of share certificates 55 20.22

Others

Total 454 100.00 549 100.00

There were no complaints pending as on 31st March 2009

Investors queries/ grievances are normally attended within period of three days from the date of receipt thereof except in cases

involving external agencies or compliance with longer procedural requirements spec fied by the authorities concerned The queries and

grievances received correspond to 0.020 /b of the number of members

LegaL proceedings

There are certain pending cases
relating

to disputes over title to shares in which the Company is made party These cases are however
not of material in nature

DemateriaLisation of shares

The Company has admitted its shares to the depository system of Nat oriat SecuriUns Depos tory Lim ted NSDH and Central Depository
Services India Limited CDSL for dematerialisation of Shares The inte notional Securites identification Number LJSINL alLoed to the

Company is INE 330H01 018 The equity shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in demateriaLised form as mandated by SEBI

Out of total 2064026 881 equity shares 200.8702 564 equity shares constituting 97 32% of total equity share capital are held in

dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL as on 31st March 2009
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16.07.2004

25.072005

11.08.2005

27.01.2006

27.01.2006

14.09.2006

18.10.2007

to

31.01.2008

Allotted upon Incorporation

Addtional issue of shares

Sub division equity shares

of Rs.1 into Rs.5 per share

Allotment pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement

Cancelled pursuant to scheme

Allotment pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement

Conversion of FCCBs

NA
N.A

N.A

.A

480.68/

661.23

100000

1223230422

1223130422

2044614990

Of above 667090 shares were converted Rs 661.23 on 31-10-2007

Stock exchange listings

The Companys equity shares are actively traded on the Indian Stock Exchanges

Stock exchanges on which the shares of the Company are

Listed

NationaL Stock Exchange of India Limited NSE

Exchange Plaza Plot no C/i Block

Bandra-Kurla Complex Bandra East Mumbai 400 051

Telephone 91 22 26598235/8236/8100-8114
Fax 91 22 2659 8237 38

e-mail cmlist@nse.co.in

Website www.nseindia.com

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited BSE
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street Fort

Mumbai 400 001

Telephone 91 222272 1233-34

Fax 91 22 2272 1919

e-mail corp.relations@bseindia.com

Website www.bseindia.com

GDRs of the Company are Listed on

Luxembourg Stock Exchange LSE
SociØtØ de La Bourse de Luxembourg

11 avenue de Ia Porte-Neuve

L-2227 Luxembourg

Telephone 352 47 79 36 -1

Fax 352 47 32 98

e-mail info@bourse.lu

Website www.bourse.lu

Zero percent foreign currency convertible bonds are Listed

on

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited SGX-ST
Shenton Way 9-00 SGX Centre

Singapore 068804

Telephone 65 6236 8888

Fax 65 6236 8888

Website www.sgx.com

Depository for GDR holders

Depository

Deutsche Bank Trust

Company Americas

60 WaIl Street

New York- 10005

Telephone 212 250 9100

Fax 212 797 0327

Mumbai Branch

222 Kodak House

Post Box No.1142 Fort

Mumbai 400001

Electronic holdings Physical holdings Total

No of No of No of No of No of No of

Beneficial Owners Shares Folios Shares Shareholders Shares

1210734 2008702564 97.32 956672 55324317 2.68 2167406 2064026881 100.00

The Companys equity shares are actively traded on the Indian Stock Exchanges

COSI

Equity capital build up

Sr Date Particulars Issue PriceRs No of Shares Cumulative

No No of Shares

10

10

10000

50000

10000

40000

100000

1223130422

100000
821484568

19411891 2064026881

Custodian

Deutsche Bank AG

The Listing fees payable to BSE and NSE for 2009-10 SGX-ST for 2009 and LSE for 2009 have been paid in full by the Company
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Investor Information

Debt Securities

11 20% Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on the Wholesale Debt MarketWDM
Segment of BSE and NSE

Debenture Trustees

fxis Trustee Services Limited

Maker Towers Wing

6th Floor Cuffe Parade Colaba

Murnbai 400 005

Telephone 91 22 6707 1310

Fax 91 2222162467

Stock codes

Physical Electronic

BSE Equity shares 532712 INE33OHO1 018

NSE Equity shares RCOM INE33OHO1 01

Non convertible Debentures BSE 946049 1NE330H07Q1

Non convertible Debentures NSE RCOM1 1NE330H0701

Singapore Stock Exchange FCCBs 055 Billion NA XS0286677447

Singapore Stock Exchange FCCBs 055 0.5 Billion NA XS02491 22309

Security codes of GDRs

Master Rule 44A GDRs Master Regulation GDRs

CUSIP 75945T1 06 75945T205
ISIN US75945T1 060 US75945T2050
Common Code 025317530 025317645

Note The GDRs are admitted to
listing on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and trading on the Euro MTF market The

Rule 44 GDRs have been accepted for clearance and settlement through the facilities of DTC New York The Regulation GDRs
have been accepted for clearance and settlement through the facilities of Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg The Rule 44
GDPs have been designated as

eligible for trading on PORTPW

%n Index Scrip Equity shares of the Company are included in CNX Nifty index CNX 100 SP CNX500 and Futures and Options

trading BSE 30 BSE 100 BSE 200 BSE 500

Outstanding GDRs of the Company conversion date and Likely impact on equity

Outstanding GDRs as on 31st March 2009 represent 451 23561 equity shares constituting 2.19 of the paid-up equity share

capital of the Company

Stock price and volume

Bombay Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange

Month
Highest Lowest Volume Highest Lowest Volume

Rs Rs Nos Rs Rs Nos

priL 08 584.80 484.40 34193687 585.05 484.90 90037912

May 08 603 75 539.05 37740388 603.65 53945 95592471

June 08 555 35 442.40 401 S7086 554.55 442.80 87236684

July 08 525.25 389.50 60843213 525.70 389.70 155774800

ugust 08 454.45 385.45 6001 8771 454.75 384.85 51070813

September 08 405.25 326.30 33003937 405.35 326.40 94761464

October 08 343.35 93.40 70102400 343.25 93.35 167393855

November 08 255.50 182 25 81446283 250.45 82.00 177346639

December 08 249.20 187 65 92024294 249.00 87.40 21 0670951

January 09 263 75 60.1 00442061 263.80 60.30 244516695

February 09 181.65 54.45 63476549 181 .55 54.50 154998244

March 09 83.85 33.25 65561937 83.75 132 75 77465401
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Investor Information

Share Price Performance in comparison to broad based indices BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty

8.00000 ..50

ol o1 00 00 00 00

00 00 00 00 00 00 00

Month

55000

45000

35000

250 C0

15000

00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00

00 00

_________________ Month
________________________

Nfty --- 051

Depository services

For guidance on depository services shareholders may write to the Registrar and Transfer Agent RTA of the Company or National

Securities Depository Limited Trade World 5th Floor Kamala Mills Compound Senapati Bapat Marg Lower PareL Mumbai 40001

Telephone 91 22 2499 4200 Fax 91 22 2497 2993 2497 6351 e-mailinfonsdL coin website www.nsdl.com or Central

Depository Services India Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 6th Floor Dalal Street Mumbai 400023 Telephone 91 22 2272

3333 Fax 91 22 2272 3199 2072 website www.cdslindia.com email investors@cdslindia.com

Communication to members

The Quarterly Financial Results of the Company are announced within month of the end of the respective quarter The Companys

Media Releases and details of significant developments are also made available on the Companys website These are published in

leading newspapers in addition to hosting them on the Companys website www.rcom.co.in

Secretariat audit for reconciLiation of capitaL

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has directed vide Circular No DCC/ FI1TC/CIR-1 6/2002 dated 31St December 2002

that all issuer companies shall submit certificate of capital integrity reconciling the total shares held in both the depositories viz

NSDL and CDSL and in physical form with the total issued paid-up capital

The said certificate duly certified by the Chartered Accountants is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the

Company are listed within 30 days of the end of each quarter and the Certificate is also placed before the Board of Directors of the

Company

Key FinanciaL Reportinf Dates for the FinanciaL Year F.Y 2009-10

Linaudited results for the first quarter ended 30th June 2009 On or before 31st July 2009

Unaudited results for
the second quarter half year ended 30th September 2009 On or before 31st October 2009

Unaudited results for the third quarter ended 31st December 2009 On or before 31st January 2010

Audited results for the financial year 2009-10 On or before 30th June 2010

Investors correspondence may be addressed to the CompLiance Officer of the Company

Shri Hasit Shukla

President Company Secretary and Manager

Reliance Communications Limited

Block st Floor

Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City

Mumbai 400 710

Telephone 91 22 3038 6286

Fax 91 22 3037 6622

Email RCOMinvestorsrelianceada.com

PLant Locations

The Company is engaged in the business of providing telecommunications services and as such has no plant
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Auditorst Report

To

The Members of

Reliance Communications Limited

We have audited the attached BaLance Sheet of Reliance

Communications Limited the Company as at 31

March 2009 and aLso the
Profit and Loss Account and the

Cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed

thereto These financial statements are the responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financiaL statements based on

our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing

standards generaLly accepted in India Those Standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free

of material misstatement An audit includes examining on
test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financiaL statements An audit aLso includes assessing

the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made

by management as well as evaLuating the overall financial

statement presentation We beLieve that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

As required by the Companies Auditors Report Order
2003 the Order issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section 4A of Section 227 of the

Companies Act 956 the Act we enclose in the Annexure

statement on the matters spedfied in paragraphs and

of the said Order

Without qualifying our report we draw attention to

the fact that the Company has pending filing of the

Scheme of Arrangement the scheme sanctioned

by the Honble High Court of Judicature at Mumbai
as required under section 3943 of the Companies
Act1 956 with the Registrar of Companies R0C given

effect to the scheme with its subsidiary ReLiance Infratel

Limited in the financial statement as detaiLed in note

5u in scheduLe The Company has represented that

it is reasonably certain that the scheme post completion

of the procedural formality will be filed with the RoC in

due course

Without quaLifying our report we draw attention to

the fact that pursuant to the scheme of arrangement
as approved by the Honble High Court of Judicature

at Mumbai the Company has withdrawn from GeneraL

Reserve III and credited to the Profit and Loss Account

Ps 4464.57 crores in respect of loss on account of

change in foreign exchange rate reLating to Loans/

liabilities Refer note 5u in scheduLe

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in the

paragraph above we report that

we have obtained aLL the information and expLanations

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit

in our opinion proper books of account as required by

Law have been kept by the Company so far as appears

from our examination of those books

the Balance Sheet Profit and Loss Account and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in

agreement with the books of account

in our opinion the Balance Sheet Profit and Loss

Account and Cash FLow Statement dealt with by this

report comply with the Accounting Standards referred

to in sub-section 3C of Section 211 of the Companies
Act 1956

on the basis of written representations received from
the directors of the Company as at 31 March 2009
and taken on record by the Board of Directors we

report that none of the directors is disqualified as at

31 March 2009 from being appointed as director of

the Company under cLause of sub-section of

Section 274 of the Companies Act 956 and

in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us the

said accounts give the information required by the

Companies Act 956 in the manner so required

and give true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principLes generally accepted in India

in the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs

of the Company as at 31 March 2009

ii in the case of the Profit and Loss Account of the profit

of the Company for the year ended on that date and

iii in the case of the Cash FLow Statement of the cash fLows

of the Company for the year ended on that date

Mumbai

August 2009

For Chaturvedi Shah

Chartered Accountants

Lala

Partner

Membership No 35671

For Co
Chartered Accountants

Natrajan Ramkrishna

Partner

Membership No 03281
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Annexwe to the Ad1tor Report 31st March 2009

With reference to the Annexure referred to in the Auditors

Report to the Members of Reliance Communications Limited

the Company on the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2009 we report the following

The Company is in the process of updating its fixed asset

register for certain additions made during the year and

to give effect to the assets transferred on demerger of

the optical fibre undertaking to subsidiary company

We are informed that the Company physically verifies

its assets over three year period except for
base

trans-receiver stations We are informed that these

assets are under continuous operational surveillance at

National Network Operating Centre and are therefore

not separately physically verified In our opinion this

periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its

assets In accordance with this policy the Company has

physically verified certain fixed assets during the year

Optical fibre cable network transferred to subsidiary

company during the year as per the scheme sanctioned

by the High Court does not affect the going concern

assumption

The inventory has been physically verified by

management during the current year In our opinion

the frequency of such verification is reasonable

The procedures for the physical verification of inventories

followed by management are reasonable and adequate

in relation to the size of the Company and the nature

of its business

The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory

Discrepancies identified on physical verification of

inventories as compared to book records were not

material

The Company has neither granted nortaken any loans secured

or unsecured to or from companies firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the

Companies Act 956 Accordingly paragraph 4iii of the

Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us and having regard to the explanation

that purchases of certain items of inventories and fixed

assets are for the Companys specialised requirements

for which suitable alternative sources are not available to

obtain comparable quotations there is an adequate internal

control system commensurate with the size of the Company

and nature of its business with regard to the purchase of

inventories and fixed assets and with regard to the sale of

services In our opinion and according to the information

and explanations given to us there is no continuing failure

to correct major weaknesses in the internal control system

In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us there are no contracts and

arrangements the particulars of which need to be entered into

the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies

Act 1956

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the

public

In our opinion the Company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained

by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the

Central Government for maintenance of cost records under

section 2091 of the Companies Act 956 in respect

of telecommunication activities and are of the opinion that

prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been

made and maintained However we have not made

detailed examination of the records

According to the information and explanations given to

us and on the basis of our examination of the records

of the Company amounts deducted/accrued in the

books of account in respect of undisputed statutory

dues including Provident Fund Wealth Tax Income

Tax Service Tax Customs Duty Sales Tax Entry

Tax Employees State Insurance and other material

statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited

during the year by the Company with the appropriate

authorities As explained to us the Company did not

have any dues on account of Excise Duty and Investor

Education and Protection Fund There were no dues on

account of cess under Section 441 of the Companies

Act 1956 since the date from which the aforesaid

section comes into force has not yet been notified by

the Central Government According to the information

and explanations given to us no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of Provident Fund Wealth Tax Income

Tax Service Tax Customs Duty Sales Tax Entry Tax

Employees State Insurance and other material statutory

dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2009 ror period

of more than six months from the date they became

payable

According to the information and explanations given to

us there are no dues of Income Tax Wealth Tax Servce

Tax Customs Duty Employees State Insurance which

have not been deposited on account of any dispute The

dues of Excise Duty Sales Tax and Entry Tax as disclosed

below have not been deposited by the Company on

account of disputes
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Annexure to the Auditors Report 31St March 2009

Name of the Statute Nature of Amount Pericd to which Forum where

the Dues Rs crore the amount reLates dispute is pending

The Central Excise and

Salt Act 944 Excise Duty 2.08 2002-04 Tribunal

Entry Tax Act Uttar Piadesh Entry Tax 0.1 2003-04 Trade Tax TribunaL Lucknow

Trade Tax Act Uttar Piadesh Sales Tax 1.12 2004-05 Trade tax Tribunal AppeaLs

0.53 2005-06 Joint Commissioner AppeaLs

0.24 2003-04 Trade Tax Tribunal Lucknow

Entry Tax Act Madhy Pradesh Entry Tax 0.29 2002-03 Deputy Commissioner of AppeaLs

Commercial Taxes

Entry Tax Act Chhattirgarh Entry Tax 0.09 2002-03 Deputy Commissioner of Appeals

CommerciaL Taxes

Punjab VAT Act VAT 0.01 2007-08 Deputy Commissioner Appeals

Entry Tax Act Madhy Pradesh Entry Tax 0.20 2003 -04 Deputy Commissioner Appeals
Commercial Taxes

Entry Tax Act Chhattigarh Entry Tax 0.03 2003 04 Deputy Commissioner AppeaLs

Commercial Taxes

Entry Tax Act Chattiscarh Entry Tax 0.08 2003-04 Assistant Commissioner of

Commercial Taxes

Uttarakhand VAT Act VAT 0.01 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner of

CommerciaL Taxes

West Bengal VAT Act VAT .49 2005-06 Assistant Commissioner of

CommerciaL Taxes

10 The Company does not have any accumuLated losses at the According to the information and explanations given to

end of the financial year and has not incurred cash Losses in us and on an ovaraLL examination of the baLance sheet of

the current financial year and in the immediately preceding the Company we are of the opinion that the funds raised

financial year on short-term basis have not been used for longterm

In our opinion arid according to the information and
investment

explanations given to us the Company has not defaulted in The Company has not made any preferential allotment of

repayment of dues to its bankers or debenture holders or to share to companies/firms/parties covered in the register

any financial institLitions main ained und Section 301 of the Companies Act

12 According to the information and explanations given to us
95

the Company has not granted Loans and advances on the According to the information and explanations given to us

basis of security by way of pledge of shares debentures and the Company is in the process of creating security in respect

other securities of deentures issjed during the year

13 In our opinion arid according to the information and 20 The Company not raised any money by pubLic issues

explanations given to us the Company is not chit fund/ during the year

nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society 21 According to the information and explanations given to us

According to the information and expLanations given to us no significant fraud on or by the Company that causes

the Company is not dealing or trading in shares securities matei ial misstate lient to the financiaL statements has been

debentures and other investments noticed or reported during the year

In our opinion arid according to the information and

explanations given to us the terms and conditions on which
For Chaturvedi Shah For Co

the Company has given guarantees for loans taken by whoLLy Chartered Accountant Chartered Accountants
owned subsidiaries prom banks or financial institutions are not

prejudicial to the interest of the Company LaLa Natrajan Ramkrishna

In our opinion arid according to the information and Partner Partner

explanations given to us the term loans taken by the Memberstip No 35671 Membership No 03281

Company have been appLied for the purpose for which they Mumbai
were raised

August 2009
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BaLance Sheet as at 31st March 2009

Rs in crore

Schedule As at As at

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders Funds

Share CapitaL 1032.01 .032.01

Reserves and SurpLus 5065831 51690.32 23808.02 24 840.03

Loan Funds

Secured Loans 3000.00 950.00

Unsecured Loans 27903.61 30903.61 19 336.43 20286.43

TOTAL 82593.93 451 26.46

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets

Gross BLock 37941 .15 21576.32

Less AccumuLated Depreciation 6533.38 4688.69

Net BLock 31407.77 16887.63

CapitaL Work in-Progress 3643.86 35051.63 71 17.56 24005.19

Investments 31364.75 3844.14

Current Assets Loans and Advances

Current Assets

Inventories 253.14 201.22

Sundry Debtors 1482.22 1093.21

Cash and Bank BaLances 535.1 192.66

Other Current Assets 10 232.31 8992.14

12502.82 10479.23

Loans and Advances 3040.1 8036.06

25543.01 18515.29

Less Current Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabihties 5774.74 7207.76

Provisions 3590.72 4030.40

9365.46 11238.16

Net Current Assets 16177.55 7277.13

TOTAL 82593.93 451 26.46

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Accounts

The scheduLes referred to above form an intera part of the financiaL statements

As per our Report of even date For and on behaLf of the Board

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co Chairman Anil Ambani

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Lala Natrajan Ramkrishna Ramachandran

Partner Partner Tatwar

Membership No 35671 Membership No 03281
Directors

Deepak Shourie

Purwar

Mumbai

8th August 2009 Company Secretary and Manager Hasit Shukla
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March4 2009

Ps in crore
Schedule For the

year ended Fm the
year ended

31st March 2009 31
.t March 2008INCOME

Service Revenue and Other
Operating Income

13.61 0.58 13 416 19
Other Income

84.08 46

13694.66 1342665
EXPENDITURE

Recess Charges License Fees and Network Expenses 7054.14 5279 73
Paymexts to and Provisions for Employees 758.36 822 49
Provision for Commission to Non Executive Directors net 3.80 19 99
Refer Note ii iii and 14 Schedule

Sates and General Administration Expenses 2343.86 2395 35

10153.16 8.51 7.56

Profit before Financial Charges Depreciation Amortisation 3541.50 490909
Exceptional Items and Adjustments

Financial Charges net
252.75 44517

Profit before Depreciation Amortisation Exceptional Items and Adjustments 3288.75 4463 92
Depreciation and Amortisar3on

2296.53 235849
Depreciation adjusted against Provision for Business Restructuring 363.02 51483
Refer Note Schedule

Profit before Adjustments pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation/ Arrangement 1355.24 2620 26
Tax and

Exceptional Items

Exceptional Items Refer Note 24 Schedule

Amortisation of Compensation under Employee Stock Option Scheme 7.47
Revaluation of Investments

404.03
Profit on transfer of Optic Fibre Undertaking pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement 3063.27
Refer Note 5u Schedule

Adjustments pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement inter aBa for demerger of
Passive Infrastructure into Reliance lnfratel Limited

Passive Infrastructure Assets written off
200 74

Equivalent amount withdrawn from Reserve for Business Restructuring arising not 3200 74
created out of the said Scheme Refer Note 4iv Schedule

Adjustments pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation/ Arrangement Inter aSia for merger
of Reliance Gateway Net Limited into the Company

Investments in Reliance Gateway Net Limited written off 2096.43
Equivalent amount withdrawn from General Reserve IV Refer Note 5i Schedule 2096.43

Adjustments pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement inter aSia
for demerger of Optic Fibre

Undertaking into Reliance Infratel Limited

Losses on account of change in exchange rate relating to loans liablities net 4464.57
Refer Note Schedule

Equivalent amount withdrawn from General Reserve III Refer Note 5u Schedule 4.464.57
Profit Before Tax

4815.07 604 09
Provision for

Current Tax
10

Fringe Benefit Tax
12.40 54

Profit AfterTax
4802.67 2586.45Add Balance Brought Forward from Previous

year 4300.24 2294 90
Amount available for Appropriations 9102.91 48111 35APPROPRIATIONS

Debenture Redemption Reserve
6.98

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares
54 80

lntedm Dividend paid on Equity Shares
165.12

Tax on Dividend
28.06 26 31

Transfer to General Reserve III

840000 40000
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

502.75 430024
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share of face value of Rs each before Exceptional Items

Refer Note 21 Schedule

Bave Rs
6.51 12 Gb

Diluted Rs
6.23 10 29

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share of face value of Rs each after Exceptional Items

Refer Note 21 Schedule

Basic Ps
23.27 12 60

Diluted Rs
22.28 1021

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Accounts

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date
For and on behaf of the Board

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co Chairman Roil Ambani
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Lala Natrajen Ramkrishna Ramachandran
Partner Partner

Talwar

Membership No 35671 Membership No 032815
irettors

Shourie

Purwar
Mumbai

8th August 2009
Company Secretary and Manager liasit Shukla
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ScheduLes forminq part of the Balance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

3000000000 Equity Shares of Ps each 1500.00 .500.00

000000.000
__________

1500.00 1500.00

Issued Subscribed and Paid Up

2064026881 Equity Shares of Rs each fulLy paid up 1032.01 1032.01

2064026881 Refer Note Schedule

1032.01 1032.01

Notes

Out of the above 13081101 72 Equity Shares Previous year 1308110.1 72 Equity Shares are held by the HoLding

Company AM Communication Private Limited and 11 529001 Equity Shares Previous year 11 529001 Equity Shares are

held by the Ultimate Holding Company Reliance Innoventures Private Limited

Equity Shares allotted in earlier years as fuLly paid up without payment being received in cash Number of Shares

Pursuant to demerger of Telecom Undertaking of Reliance Industries 122.31.30422

Limited into the Company

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement involving 821484568

group companies

204461 4990
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Sdwdutes fon$nq pa4ohe$aneeheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31St March 2009 31St March 2008

SCHEDULE

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve 0.05 0.05

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 6.98

Securities Premium Account

As per Ost Balance Sheet 949742 8885.07

Add Refund of issue expenses of FCCBs
0.06

Add Premium payable on conversion of FCCBs Refer 832 39
Note Schedule

Add Premium payable on conversion of FCCBs reversed 37.30

Add Premium payabLe on redemption of FCCBs reversed 7.68

on buyback Refer Note ii Schedule

Less Premium payable on redemption of FCCBs 333.17 9171.93 25740 9497.42

GeneraL Reserve
5538.00 5538.00

Refer Note ii Schedule

General Reserve II 2785.21 785 71

Refer Note iii Schedule

General Reserve HI

As per last Balance Sheet 400.00

Add Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 8400.00 400.00

8800.00 400.00

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account
for Loss on 4464.57 4335.43 400.00

account of change in exchange rates

Refer Note Schedule

GeneraL Reserve IV

Refer Note Schedule

As per Scheme of AmaLgamation/ Arrangement net 291 27.29

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account for 2096.43 27030.86
investment written off

Reserve for Business Restructuring

As per last Balance Sheet 1287.10

As per the Scheme of Arrangement 4487 84

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account 1287.10 3200.74 287.10
Refer Note 4iv Schedule

Profit and Loss Account 502.75 300.24

50658.31 2380802
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ScheduLes forming part of the Balance Sheet

Rs in crore

Pisat Asat

31st March 2009 31st MarCh 2008

SCHEDULE

SECURED LOANS

Debentures

11 .20 Secured RedeemabLe Non Convertible 3000.00

Debentures

Refer Note beLow

Term Loans from Banks

Rupee Loans
950.00

Refer Note below

3000.00 950.00

Notes

Pending the creation of pan passu charge on moveabLe and non moveabLe assets excLuding land building goodwiLL and

brand name of Reliance Infratet Limited Subsidiary of the Company Redemption at the end of 0th year from the date of

aLLotment thereof

The Company had Secured Term Loans referred to above inter a/ia by way of first pan passu mortgage/ charge/ assignment

in favour of the Security Trustees for the benefit of Financial Institutions and Banks on its investments immovable movable

and intangible assets/ properties but excluding goodwill brand name and certain other excluded assets incLuding IntelLectuaL

Property Rights all revenues accounts receivables both present and future and assignment of rights
under specified Project

Documents and the Telecom License Agreements

SCHEDULE

UNSECURED LOANS

Long Term Loans

Foreign Currency Loans from Banks 8967.43 5601 .97

RepayabLe within one year Rs NiL Previous year Rs Nil

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 7083.51 5493.23

Repayable within one year Rs Nil Previous year Ps Nil

Refer Note Schedule

Rupee Loans from Banks 3600.00

RepayabLe within one year Rs NiL Previous year Rs NiL

Short Term Loans

From Banks

Foreign Currency Loans 2362.92 21 66.23

Rupee Loans 5300.00 6075.00

Commercial Papers 589.75

27903.61 19336.43
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ReLiance Communications Limited

ScheduLes fbrmin part of the Batante Sheiet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 31st March

2009 2008

SCHEDULE

INVESTMENTS

Current Investments

Trade Investments

Government and other securities

Quoted

14000 6.83% GOT 2039 of Ps 100 each fully paid up 0.12

Long Term Investments

Government and other securities

Unquoted

years NationaL Savings Certificates 0.01 0.01

Lodged with Sales Tax Department

Ps 45000 Previous year Ps 45 000

1/2 years Kisan Vikas Patra

Lodged with Chennai Metropolitan Development Authority

Rs 5000 Previous year Ps 000

Other Investments

In Equity Shares of WhoLly Owned Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted fuuy paid up

2.01.0000.000 Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited of Re each 7996.71 6995.7

.00.00.00.000

Reliance Gateway Net Limited of Rs 10 each 1118.80

50000 Refer Note ScheduLe

5000000 Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited of Ps each 1036.02 1036.02

5000000

687066 Reliance Wimax Limited of Ps 10 each 7.98 7.98

687066 formerly Gateway Systems India Limited

50000 Reliance
Digital

Home Services Limited of Ps 10 each 0.05 0.05

50000

50000 Reliance Global IDC Limited of Rs 10 each 0.05 0.05

50000

50000 Reliance Webstore Limited of Ps 10 each 0.05 0.05

50.000

10000000 Rehance Big TV Limited of Ps 10 each 10.00 10.00

10000.000

3563601 Campion Propert es Limited of Ps 10 each 9.05 9.05

3563601

111 20 Reliance Globalcom BV of Euro 100 each 15119.51 0.63

111 formerLy Reliance Infocom By
Refer Note Schedule

241 79.55 91 78.35
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat sat
31St March 31St March

2009 2008

In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted fully paid up

27580100 ReLiance TeLecom Limited of Rs 10 each 481 .72 27.70

27580100 Refer Note Schedule

6200 Reliance Tech Services Private Limited of Ps 10 each 0.02 0.02

6200

200000 Reliance GlobaLcom Limited Bermuda CLass Common Shares of 232.39

USD 0.01 each Refer Note ScheduLe

100000 Gateway Net Tradinq Pte Limited of LSD each 0.47

w.e.f 1st October 2008

714.60 127.72

In Equity Shares of Companies

Unquoted fuLly paid up

65025000 Warf TeLecom InternationaL Private Limited of MRf each 22.30 22.30

50 25000

88381 World Tel Holding Limited Bermuda of USD 0.05 each

88381 under liquidation

Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited of USD each 0.47

100000

22.30 2277

In Preference Shares of Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted fuLLy paid up

20000 RedeemabLe Cumulative Preference Shares 0.02 0.02

20000 of ReLiance Communications Infrastructure Limited of Rs.1 each

350000 RedeemabLe Non Cumulative Non ConvertibLe Preference 2360.40 1996.86
350000 Shares of Reliance Globalcom BV of Euro each formerLy Reliance

Infocom By

361 .694 Redeemable Non CumuLative Non Convertible Preference 2439.25 1964.81

3.39562 Shares of Reliance GLobaLcom BV of Euro each formerly ReLiance

Infocom By

52 Redeemable Non ConvertibLe Non Cumulative 0.30 0.30

52 Preference Shares of Reliance Globalcom BV

of Euro each formerly Reliance Infocom By

4799.97 3961 .99

In Preference Shares of Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted fully paid up

5000000 Redeemable Non Convertible Non CumuLative 444.34 444.34

45000000 Preference Shares of Reliance Telecom Limited of Rs.1 each

212380000 Redeemable CumuLative Preference Shares of Reliance 1077.19
GLobalcom Limited Bermuda of LISD each

Refer Note ScheduLe
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the Balanc Sha.t

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 31st March

2009 2008

250010 Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative 126.80
Preference Shares of USD 100 each of Gateway Net

Trading Pte Limited w.e.f 1st October 2008

1648.33 444.34

In Preference Shares of Companies

Unquoted fully paid up

Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative
08.97

2.50010 Preference Shares of USD 100 each of Gateway Net

Trading Pte Limited

108.97

31364.75 13844.14

Company under the same management as per Section 370 of the Companies Act 956

Ps in crore

Movements during the year

Current Investments purchased and sold

Face Value Rs Particulars Nos Cost

100 7.59% GO 2016 of Rs.100 each fully paid up sooooo 4.88

500.000 4.2 3% Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation CBLO 0.05

230000000 290% Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation CBLO 23.00

27.93

Asat Asat

31st March 31st March
2009 2008

Areqate Rook Value of Investments

Unquoted 31364.63 13844.14

Quoted Market value Rs 01 crore Previous year Ps Nil 0.12

31364.75 13844.14
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ReLiance Communications Limited

ScheduLes forminq part of the Balance Sheet

Rs in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 31st March

2009 2008

SCHEDULE

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Stores and Spares 253.14 201.22

Sundry Debtors Unsecured

Due for more than six months

Considered good 269.32 103.39

Considered doubtfuL 280.50 671.17

54982 774.56

Less Provision for doubtful debts 280.50 671 .1

269.32 103.39

Others

Considered good 121 2.90 989.82

Considered doubtful 37.59 5251

1250.49 1042.33

Less Provision for doubtful debts 37.59 52.51

121 2.90 1482.22 989.82 1093.21

The above includes debts due from Subsidiaries

Ps 561 .1 crore Previous year Ps 74.42 crore

Cash and Bank Balance

Cash on hand Ps Nil Previous year Rs.67595 0.01

BaLance with Banks

In Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks 296.94 61.1

In Current Accounts with Other Banks .73 .35

In Export Earnings Foreign Currency Accounts with 236.22 30.14

Scheduled Banks

In Fixed Deposits with Banks

Fixed Deposits in Rupees with Scheduled Banks in India

Includes Rs 76045.10 Previous year Ps 76045.10 the 0.26 535.15 0.01 192.66
receipt of which is deposited with Sales Tax Department
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

Ps In crore

Asat Asat

31st March 31st March

2009 2008

SCHEDULE Contd..

Other Current Assets

Interest Accrued on Investments and Loans 561 .94 0.14

Includes Interest Accrued on deposit with Reliance Communications

Infrastructure Limited RCIL of Ps 11 6.72 crore Previous year

Rs.Ni company under the same management as per Section

370 of the Companies Act 956 and with Reliance Telecom

Limited RTL Ps 445.1 crore Previous year Ps Nil pursuant to

the Treasury Scheme between RCIL and RTL

Deposits 9670.37 8992.00

Includes inter corporate deposits with Reliance Communications

Infrastructure Limited RCIL Ps 1597.44 crore Previous year Ps

8009.51 crore company under the same management as per

Section 370 of the Companies Act 956

Deposits include Ps 11 36.47 crore paid against disputed claims

Previous year Ps 829.47 crore Refer Note Schedule 10232.31 8992.14

12502.82 1047923

Net of reduction on fair value by Rs 56 crore

Includes balances with non scheduled banks as follows

Ps in crore

Maximum BaLance at any

time during the year

As at As at 2008 09 2007 08

31st March 31st March

2009 2008

Municipal Co operative Bank 0.19 0.14 1.77 0.1

LJBS AG London 1.10 1.12 799.00

Deutsche Bank Singapore o.oi 0.01 0.01 802.00

JP Morgan Chase Bank New York 1.53 0.10 2.83 1133.92
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ReLiance Communications Limited

SchedutŁs forming part of the Balance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

LOANS ND ADVANCES

UnsecLred considered good unless stated otherwise

Loans to Subsidiary Companies 9647.51 5651.83

Include dues from Reliance Communications Infrastructure

Limited RCIL Ps 3049 crore Previous year Ps 2067.57

crore Maximum outstanding during the year Ps 21 67.57 crore

Previous year Rs 2073.59 crore company under the same

management as per Section 370 of the Companies Act

1956

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be

received

Considered good 3391.62 2382.93

Considered doubtful 7.35 7.35

3398.97 2390.28

Less Provision for doubtful advances 7.35 3391.62 7.35 238293

Includes dues from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

RC1L Ps 1020.89 crore Previous year Ps Nil Maximum
outstanding during the year Ps 1020.89 crore Previous year

Ps 1146.31 crore company under the same management
as pm Section 370 of the Companies Act 956

Includes Subsidy receivable Ps 82.1 crore

Previous year Rs.1 41.38 crore

Balance with Customs Central Excise Authorities etc .06 .30

13040.19 8036.06
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the BaLance Sheet

Ps ir crore

Asat /sat

31st March 31 st March

2009 2008

SCHEDULE

CU RRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors

Due to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Units 28.18 4.68

Refer Note 20 ScheduLe

Others 358.22 4741.57

Due to Subsidiary Companies 161 3.40 1239.91

Interest accrued but not due on loans 89.25 69.63

Unearned Income 614.64 591 .60

IncLudes subsidy deferred Rs 53.24 crore

Previous year Ps 141.93 crore

Unclaimed Dividend 3.20 1.32

Other Liabilities 2067.85 5774.74 559.05 7207.76

Provisions

Disputed CLaims and Others 1844.80 1905.20

Refer Note ScheduLe

Commission to Non Executive Directors 0.60 35.00

Business Restructuring 1433.1 1796.1

Refer Note ScheduLe

Wealth Tax net of tax paid 0.65 0.64

Income Tax net of advance tax 4.76 4.78

Fringe Benefit Tax net of taxes paid .23 .22

Retirement Benefits 11 40 106.33

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 54.80

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares 65.1

Tax on Dividend 28.06 3590.72 26.31 4030 40

9365.46 11238.16

Includes for capitaL expenditure Ps 1109.82 crore Previous year Rs 3047.71 crore
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedi4es forming part of the Profit and t.oss Account

Ps in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

SERVICE REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Service Revenue 14059.87 14056.23

Less Service Tax 1476.08 12583.79 1349.80 2706.43

fther Operating Income 1026.79 735.82

Less Service Tax 1026.79 26.06 709.76

Includes subsidy of Rs 210.74 crore Previous year

Rs 58.21 crore realisation from debtors etc

13610.58 13416.19

SCHEDULE

OTHER INCOME

Profit on Sale of Current Investments 6.17

Profit on Sate of Assets 0.16 0.1

Discount on buyback of FCCBs 79.61

Rent 2.92 3.08

Miscellaneous Income .39 .09

84.08 a46

SCHEDULE

ACCESS CHARGES LICENSE FEES AND NETWORK EXPENSES

Access Charges 2325.06 2653.57

License Fees 1049.22 11 20.37

Passive Infrastructure Charges 1868.10 936.19

Network Repairs and Maintenance 379.67 228.40

Stores and Spares Consumed 29.95 5.1

Power Fuel and Utilities 138.32 91 .76

Other Network Operating Expenses 264.42 234.29

Refer Note ii and Schedule

7054.74 5279.73
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ReLiance Communications Limited

ScheduLes forming part of the Profit and Loss Account

Rs ircrore

For the year ended For the yearendnd

31st March 2009 31St March 2008

SCHEDULE

PAYMENT TO AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES

Including ManageriaL Remuneration

SaLaries incLuding ManageriaL Remuneration Rs 0.70 crore 630.20 678.75

Previous year Ps 0.53 crore Refer Note 14 and 25
ScheduLe

Contribution to Provident Gratuity and Superannuation Fund 48.25 5.71

Employee WeLfare and Other Amenities 79.91 78.03

758.36 822.49

SCHEDULE

SALES AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Commission 371 .55 389.13

Selling and Marketing 97.60 248.29

Refer Note 25 ScheduLe

Advertisement 204.06 430.34

Refer Note 25 Schedule

Customer Acquisition and Customer Care 384.84 1158.05 404.57 1472.33

Refer Note 25 ScheduLe

Provision for Doubtful Debts Loans and Advances 05.04 146.58

Insurance 17.20 14.33

Rent Rates and Taxes 45.21 50 99

Other Repairs 4.97 20.02

TraveLling 63.50 80.64

Professional Fees 22.63 105.68

Foreign Exchange Gain/ Loss on Debtors/ Creditors net 114.02 85.24

Loss on Sale of Assets C5

Investments written off 10.01

Hire Charges 189.72 142.96

Refer Note 25 Schedule

Data Warehousing Charges 171 .07 145.93

Other General and Administrative Expenses 335.43 284.62

Includes Ps 0.15 crore Previous year Ps 0.16 crore towards

sitting fees paid to Non Executive Directors

WeaLth Tax 0.16 1073.91 0.16 770.15

Payment to Auditors Refer Note 10 Schedule 6.86 6.29

2343.86 2395.35
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5chedues formlnq part of the Profit and I.oss Account

Ps in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

FINANIAL CHARGES NET

Interes and Other Charges on Term Loans 502.32 540.49

Intere5t on Other Loans 461.20 963.52 308.75 849.24

Other Financial Cost 19.15 20.81

Income from Investments and Interest Income 572.05 24.51
Refer Note 25 Schedule

Includes Income from Investment Ps 0.01 crore

Prevbus year Rs.2.42 crore

Tax Deducted at Source Rs Nil Previous year Ps 0.20 crore

Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuation Gain/ Loss net 119.57 400.3/

252.75 445.1
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Reliance Communications Limited

Significant Accounting Policies to Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2009 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on

that date

SCHEDULE

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of FinanciaL Statements

The Financial Statements are prepared under historical cost convention and fair valuation under scheme approved by the High

Court accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India and provisions of the Companies Act 916 read

with the Companies Accounting Standards RuLes 2006 Accounting Standard Rules as well as applicable pronouncermnts of

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India the ICAI

Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of Financial Statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affEct the

reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent Liabilities on the date of the Financial Statements and the

reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Difference between the actual resuLts and estimates is

recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materiaLised

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost/ fair vaLue net of Modvat/ Cenvat Value Added Tax and include amount added in revaLuation

Less accumuLatea depreciation amortisation and impairment Loss if any

ii ALL costs including financing cost of qualifying assets tiLL commencement of commerciaL operations net charges of foreign

exchange contracts and adjustments arising up to 31st March 2007 from exchange rate variations reLating to borrowings

attributabLe to fixed assets are capitaLised

is Expenses incurred reLating to project prior to commencement of commerciaL operation are considered as prnject

development expenditure and shown under Capital Work-inProgress

iv TeLecom Licenses are stated at fair value Less accumuLated amortisation

Indefeasible Rights of Connectivity IPC are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation

Lease

In respect of Operating Leases Lease rentals are expensed on straight Line basis with reference to lease terms and considerations

except for lease rentals pertaining to the period up to the date of commencement of commercial operations which are

capitalised

Depreciation Amortisation

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV

to the Companies Act 956 except in case of the foLLowing assets which are depreciated as given below

TeLecom Electronic Equipments years

Furniture Fixtures and Office Equipments years

Customer Premises Equipments years

VehicLes years

Ducts and Cables years

ii LeasehoLd Land is depreciated over the period of the Lease term

iii Intangible assets nameLy Telecom Licenses and Brand Licence are amortised equally over the balance period of Licenses

IRC and Software are amortised from the date of acqu tion or commencement of commerciaL services whichever is Later

The Life of amortisation of the intangible assets are as foLlows

TeLecom Licenses 2.5 to 20 years

Brand License 10 years

Indefeasible Right of Connectivity 20 years

Software years

iv Depreciation on additions is calculated pro rata from the follow ng month of addition

Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverabLe vaLue An impairment loss is charged
to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired The impairment Loss recognised in prior

accounting period is increased/ reversed where there has been change in the estimate of recoverable value The recoverable

value is the higher of the assets net selling price and value in use

Investments

Current Investments are carried at lower of cost and market value computed Investment wise Long Term Investments are stated

at cost or fair value as required under order of the High Court Prov sion for diminution in the vaLue of long term investments is

made only if such decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management
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St4icant AcOuiflir Policies to BaLance Sheet as 31st March 2009 and Profit and oss Account for the year ended on

tha date

Inventories of Stores and Spares

Inventories of stores and spares are accounted for at cost determined on weighted average basis or net realisable value

whichever is less

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee

benefits These benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave The undiscounted amount

of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an

expense during the period

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Companys contribution towards Employees Superannuation Plan is recognised as an expense during the period in which

it accrues

ii Defined benefit plans

Provident Fund

Provident Fund contributions are made to Trust administered by the Trustees Interest payable to the Provident Fund

members shall not be at rate lower than the statutory rate Liability is recognised for any shortfall in the income of the

fund visà--vis liability of the interest to the members as per statutory rates

Gratuity Plan

The Companys gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan The Companys net obligation in respect of the gratuity

benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their

service in the current and prior periods that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any

plan assets is deducted

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the

Projectea Unit Credit Method

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The discount rates used for determining

the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as

at the Balance Sheet date

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account

iii Other Long term employment benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the

employee renders the related services are recognised as liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at

the Balance Sheet date determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method The discount rates

used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on

Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date

10 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of

such assets upto the commencement of commercial operations qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period

of time to get ready for intended use Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the year in which they are incurred

11 Issue Expenses and Premium on FCCBs

The premium payable on redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs is charged to Securities Premium Account

over the period of the issue Issue expenses are debited to Securities Premium account at the time of the issue

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of the

transaction

ii Monetary tems denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates In case of monetary items

which are covered by forward exchange contracts the difference between the transaction rate and rate on the date of the

contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised over the life of the

contract

iii Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost

iv Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the Profit

and Loss Account

Any income or loss arising out of marking derivative contracts to market price is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
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Significant Accounting Policies to Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2009 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on
that date

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognised as and when the services are provided on the basis of actual usage of the Companys retwork

Revenue on upfront charges for services with fetime vaLidity and fixed validity periods of one year or more are reognised

over the est mated csefjl of subscHbers and specified xed vaddity pehod as approphate The estimated usefil life is

conc stent with est mated churn of the subscr hers

ii Interest ncome on investment recognised on time proportion basis Dividend is considered when
right to reeive is

estabLished

14 Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances

Prov con is made in the accounts for doubtful debts Loans and advances cases where the management considers thedebts
Loans and advances to be doubtful of recovery

Miscellaneous Expenditure

Misce Laneous Expenditure charged to the Prof and Loss Account as and when it is incurred

Taxes on Income Fringe Benefit Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for Income Tax is made on the has of taxable ncome for the year at current rates Tax expense comprises of Cirrent

Tax Fr nge Benefit Thx and Deferred lax at the applicable enacted or substantiveLy enacted rates Current Tax represents the

amount of Income Tax payabLe/ recoverable respect of the taxable income/ Loss for the reporting period Deferrei Tax

represents the effect of timing difference between taxable income and accounting income for the reporting period that originate

in one period and are capabLe of reversal in one or more subsequent periods The Deferred Tax Asset is recognised and crrried

forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future However where there

is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward Loss under taxation laws Deferred Tax Assets are recognised only there is vituaL

certainty of reaLisation of assets

Government Grants

Subsidies granted by the Government for providing telecom services in ruraL areas are recognised as Other Operating Income in

accordance with the relevant terms and conditions of the scheme and agreement

18 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Prov sons involv ng substant al degree of est mation meacurement are recognised when there is present obligaton as resuLt

of past events and it is probabLe that there wiLl be an outfLow of resources disclosure for contingent Liabibty is made when
there is possible obLigation or present obLigation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources When there

is possible obl gat on or present obligat on respect of which the kelihood of outflow of resources is remote no provision

or disclosure is made Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the nancial Statements

19 Earning per Share

In determin ng Earning per Share the Company considers the net profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any
extraord nary/ exceptionaL tem The number of shares used in computng Basic Earning per Share is the weghted average

number of shares outstand ng during the period The number of shares used in computing Diluted Earning per Share comprises

the weighted average shares considered for deriving Basic Earnings per Share and also the weighted average number of shares

that could have been ssued on the convers on of all dilut ye potent al Equity Shares unless the results wouLd be anti Lutive

Dilut ye potentiaL Equity Shares are deemed converted as of the beg ning of the period unLess issued at later date

20 Employee Stock Option Scheme

In respect of stock options granted pursuant to the Companys Employee Stock Opt on Scheme the intrnsic vaLue of the options

excess of market price of the share over the exercise
price of the opt on treated as discount and accounted as employee

compensation cost over the vest ng period
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Notes on Accounts to BaLance Sheet as at 31 st March 2009 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date

SCHEDULE

Notes on Accounts

Previous Year

Figures of the Previous year have been regrouped and reclassified wherever required PrevinL yeurs figures are not comparable
with that of the current year on account of the effects of the Schemes

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs
The Company issued FCCBs in two tranches 500000 FCCBs for Years 4.65% USD 500 miLhon issued on 9th May
2006 and 10000 FCCBs for Years 4.95% USD 1000 million issued on 28th February 2007 Pursuant to the exercise of
an option by the FCCB Holders and in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof the Company during the previous

year allotted 18744801 fully paid Equity Shares of Ps each at pre determined premium of Ps 475.68 per Share

against 03051 FCCBs and 667090 fulLy paid Equity Shares of Ps each at pre determined premium of Ps 656.23
per Share against 00 FCCBs respectively

Cu During the year the Company has bought hack and cancelled 350 nos of Year 4.95% FCCBs of the face value of USD
100000 each as per approval of the Reserve Bank of India at discount to the face value This has resulted in saving

of Ps 79.61 crore which has been reflected as part of Other Income Consequent upon such buy back and cancellation
the Companys obligations to convert the said Bonds into Shares if so claimed by the Bond Holders and/ or to redeem the

same in foreign currency has come to an end vis-vis the cancelled Bonds Rs.7.68 crore Previous year Ps Nil being

premium on redemption has been reversed on buyback of FCCBs

Out of total FCCBs issued 296949 FCCBs and 9550 FCCBs were outstanding as on 31st March 2009
iii In the event these outstanding FCCBs are fully converted into Equity Shares the Equity Share Capital of the Company

would increase by approximately 9.11 crore Equity Shares of Ps each

iv In case of the above mentioned FCCBs on and at anytime after 9th May 2009 and 28th February 2010 respectively on
and prior to the maturity date the Company may subject to certain terms and conditions as per the offering memorandum
redeem the FCCBs in whole and not in part at their Early Redemption amount provided that no such redemption may be
made unless the aggregate value as defined in the terms and conditions on each trading day during the period of not less

than 30 consecutive trading days ending not earlier than days prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption
is given was at Least 30 percent of the Early Redemption amount

FCCBs amount includes Ps 733 62 crore Previous year Ps 330.00 crore being the premium on redemption of FCCBs

computed on pro rata basis for the period up to 31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Foreign Exchange

On account of various factors including in particular an amendment to Schedule Vi of the Companies Act 956 the Act
withdrawing the requirement to adjust changes in the amounts of liability relating to loans/ liabilities in foreign currency
attributable to Fixed Assets acquired by the Company in the cost of the said Fixed Assets the Company has decided after the

end of the financial year 2008 09 and after the approval of the Unaud ted Financial Results for the quarter and the year ended
on 31st March 2009 that it would be more appropriate to account for the changes in the amounts of habilities consequent
to changes in foreign exchange rates as the profit or loss of the Company for the year in which the changes take place without
adjusting the amount of the change in the cost of Fixed Assets

The accounting policy is in line with the Accounting Standard AS 11 The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Pates
as also in hne with the accounting policy adopted by the Company in the previous year ended 31st March 2008 and the

accounting policy followed by the Company for similar changes relating to habilities expressed in foreign exchange other than

those relating to fixed assets

Accordingly in respect of the year ended on 31st March 2009 Ps 4608.39 crore being the foreign exchange difference

relating to such loans/ liabihties which were earlier adjusted in the cost of fixed assets have now been charged to the Profit and
Loss Account and net foreign exchunge gain of Rs.14382 crore has been reversed Net amount of Ps 446457 crore has been
withdrawn from the General Reserve of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement between the

Company and Reliance Infratel Limited RITL approved by the Honble High Court of Bombay on 18th
july 2009 as determined

by the Board and as referred in Note ii below Consequently there is no impact vis-à-vis profits of the year ended 31st
March 2009 of such charge except for consequential effects relating to depreciation etc which have been appropriately dealt

with

Further to the above during the year loss of Ps 39.03 crore Previous year Ps 468 73 crore
arising

out of marking related

Derivative Contracts to market has also been recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in compliance with the announcement
dated 29th March 2008 by the ICAI regarding Accounting for Derivatives The net gain of Ps 11 9.57 crore Previous year Ps
400.37 crores including gain on account of conversion of overseas bank balances amounting to Ps 32.76 crore Previous year
loss of Ps 77.70 crores is reflected in Financial Charges net as the effect of foreign currency exchange fluctuation

Schemes of Amalgamation and Arrangement of earlier years

The Company during the past years undertook various Schemes including restructuring of ownership structure of telecom
business so as to align the interest of the shareholders Accordingly pursuant to the Schemes of Amalgamation and Arrangement
the Schemes under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956 approved by the Honble High Court of respective

63



Re Communications Limited

Notes an Accounts to BMance Sheet as at 31st Maich 2b09 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date

judicature the Company during the respective years recorded all necessary accounting effects along with requisite disclosure in

the notes to the accounts acordance with the provisions of the said Schemes The cumulative effects of the Schemes in case

of Equity Share Capital of the company have been disclosed below the respective Schedule to the Accounts Reserves pursuant

to the said Schemes include

Securities Premium Account of Ps 9497 42 crore being part of the Securities Premium of erstwhile Reliance Infocomm

Lrruted PlC the transferor company represendng the amount attributable to shares of PlC other than those being

cancelled under the Schemes

ii General Reserves of Ps 5538.00 crore representing the unadjusted balance being the excess of assets over liabilities

relatable to Telecommunications Undertaking transferred and vested into the Company

iii General Reserves II of Ps 2785.21 crore representing the unadjusted balance of the excess of assets over liabilities

received by the Company

iv Reserve for Business Restructuring of Ps 1287.10 crore representing the unadjusted balance of revaluation of investment

in Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited PCIL the holding company of Reliance Infratel Limited RITL after

withdrawing an amount equivalent to writing off Passive Infrastructure assets transferred to PIlL to the Profit and Loss

Account Balance in Reserve for Business Restructuring shall be available to meet the increased depreciation costs expenses

and losses including on account of impairment of or write down of assets etc

Additiona depreciation arising on fair value of the assets has been adjusted to Provision for Business Restructuring

Schemes of Amalgamation and Arrangement

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation the Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956

sanctioned by the Honble High Court of Bombay vide Order dated 3rd july 2009 and filed with the Registrar of Companies

PoC on 3th july 2009 Reliance Gateway Net Limited PGNL Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company engaged

in telecommunication allied activities and as holding company for all the offshore Investments of the Company has been

amalgamated into the Company with effect from the Appointed Date as 31St March 2009

Upon the Scheme becoming effective

All the assets and liabilities as appearing in the books of RGNL as on the Appointed Date have been recorded at th4r

respective fair values by the Company

Excess of Rs 6428.48 crore arising
on such transfer of assets and liabilities before making the adjustments

accordance with the Scheme for cancellation of investments of Ps 2096.43 crore including Equity Shares of

977.00 crore acqured on conversion of loan in PGNL and net effect on fair valuation of assets and liabilities of tte

Company identified by the Board as prescribed to be fair valued based on market approach depreciated replacemeht

cost basis by an independent valuer for this purpose Identified Assets of Ps 2698.81 crore has been credited tr

General Reserve to be dealt with in accordance with the Scheme

Had the Scheme not prescribed this treatment Ps 14332.05 crore would have been credited to Capital Reserve

required by the Purchase Method prescribed by Accounting Standard AS 14 on Accounting for Amalgamation ard

General Reserve would have been lower by Ps 2698.81 crore

ii Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement the Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956 th

Honble High Court of Bombay pronounced an Order on 8th
july

2009 the Optic Fibre Undertaking as defined in thr

Scheme of the Company shall be transferred and vested into Reliance Infratel Limited PITL Subsidiary of the Compar

engaged in providing Telecom Infrastructue Services with effect from the Appointed Date st April 2008

As per the Scheme PITL is required to record in its books all the assets and liabilities pertaining to Optic Fibre Undertakir

as appearing in the books of the Company as on the Appointed Date at their respective fair values

The Scheme shall become effective upon the Company filing
the Order of the Honble High Court sanctioning the Schern

with the PoC as required by Section 3943 of the Companies Act 956 Pending such
filing

the Accounts have bee

compiled as if the Scheme has become effective and consequently the following effects have been incorporated in th

Accounts

The Scheme shall become effective upon the Company filing the Order of the Honble High Court sanctioning the Schem

with the PoC as required by Section 3943 of the Companies Act 956 Pending such filing the Accounts have bee

compiled as if the Scheme has become effective and consequently the following effects have been incorporated in th

Accounts

Ps in crore

In the Profit and Loss Account

Profits arising from such Transfer 3063.27

Effects of transactions between PIlL as the owner of the Optic Fibre Undertaking and the 765.1

Company including in particular effects of amounts that would be required to be charged to

the Companys Profit Loss Account as per Accounting Standards AS Leases and effects

of reduction in the charge by way of Depreciation resulting in net debit
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In the BaLance Sheet

The amount included in the Current Assets as amount that would be due from PIlL as consideration 7206.42

for the transfer of assets relating to Optic Fibre Undertaking

Reduction of Current Liabilities on account of liabilities to be transferred to PIlL being the liabiLities 487.48

of the Optic Fibre Undertaking

Withdrawal from General Reserve as determined by the Board in accordance with the Scheme 4464.57
for losses on account of change in exchange rate relating to loans/ Liabilities

Reduction in Fixed Assets including Capital-Work--In Progress for transfer of Optic Fibre 4632 0/

Undertaking to RITL net of accumulated depreciation This also includes an addition to Fixed

Assets of Ps 489.11 crore during the period from the Appointed Date till 31st March 2009

In accordance with the undertaking given by the Company and by RITL to the HonbLe High Court interest will be payable

by RITL to the Company on the outstanding amount due by RITL to the Company from and after Effective Date of the

Scheme i.e from and after the date on which the Order of the Honble High Court approving the Scheme is filed with the

RoC Accordingly no interest has been included in the amounts incorporated in the Accounts as aforesaid

Project Development Expenditure

Details of Project Development Expenditure Included under Capital Work-in-Progress

Rs in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Opening Balance 227.71 186.29

Add Expenditure incurred during the year

Payments to and Provisions for Employees 10.62

Insurance 0.02

Rent 5.67 8.07

Ratesandlaxes 12.74 11.95

Repairs 0.29 72

Travelling 1.05 0.82

Professional Fees 6.24 10.00

Power Water and Electricity 1.85 3.92

Network Setup Costs 102.23 7.91

General and Administrative Expenses 22.52 67.57

lnterest on Term Loans 147.25

Bank Charges 0.01 0.01

Passive Infrastructure Charges 932.87 86.35

Logistic 3.79

1257.15 197.32

1484.86 383.61

Less

Capitalised during the year 713.76 145.73

Transferred to Reliance Infratel Limited as

per the Scheme of Arrangement 10.1

Closing Balance 771.10 227.71

Provisions

Provisions include provision for disputed claims and others of Rs 1844.80 crore Previous year Rs 1905.20 crore and

Provision for commission to Non Executive Directors of Ps 0.60 crore Previous year Rs 35.00 crore

Provision for disputed claims consists of provision for disputed claims of Rs 1835.76 crore Previous year Rs.1 896.1

crore and for verification of customers Ps 9.04 crore Previous year Rs.9.04 crore

ii During the year an amount of Ps Nil Previous year Ps 49.52 crore relating to Access Deficit Charge ADC and Ps 4.40

crore relating to commission to Non Executive Directors Previous year Ps 5.01 crore have been reversed An amount of
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Ps Nil Previous year Rs 06.39 crore has been provided towards disputed interconnect usage charges and an amount of

Ps 31 .18 crore Píevious year Rs Nil has been reversed out of disputed interconnect usage charges Rs Nit Previous year

Rs 25.77 crore has been provided towards disputed Spectrum Charges An amount of Rs Nil Previous year Rs 14.87

crore has been utilised towards address verification of prepaid subscribers an amount of Rs 29.22 crore paid towards

disputed liablities Previous year Rs Nit an amount of Ps 30.60 crore Previous year Ps 30.33 crore paid towards

commission to Non Executive Directors

iii The Board of Directors has approved the payment of commission to Non Executive Directors of Ps 0.60 crore at its meeting

held on 8th August 2009 which will be paid during the year 2009 10

iv Also refer Note above

The aforesaid provisions shalt be utilised on settlement of the claims if any thereagainst

Ps in crore

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 651 .15 4365.87

on capital accounts net of advances and not provided for

ii Disputed Liabilities in Appeal

Sales Tax and VAT 3.76 18.42

Excise and Service Tax 2.08 2.08

Entry Tax and Octroi 1.18 5.93

Other Litigations
0.40 0.43

iii Corporate Guarantees given by the Company on behalf

of its Subsidiaries 5.741 .28 2998.57

iv Corporate Guarantees given by the Company on behalf of

other companies for business purpose 145.97 28.49

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The Company being in the business of Telecommunication Services is
eligible for deduction u/s 8OIA Tax Holiday of the

Income Tax Act 961 Since the Deferred Tax Liability in respect of timing difference is expected to reverse during the Tax

Holiday Period the same is not recognised in books of accounts as at 31st March 2009 as per Accounting Standard AS 22

Accounting for Taxes on Income as referred to in Accounting Standard Rules

Ps in crore

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

10 Auditors Remuneration Excluding service tax

Statutory Audit 6.20 6.20

Certification and Other Services 0.50

Out of Pocket Expenses 0.16 0.09

6.86 6.29

11 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Professional and Technical Fees 31.01 32.06

Long Distance Operations
626.11 419.30

Interest on Foreign Currency Term Loans 360.72 377.07

Salary 4.58 1.21

Others 91.45 116.99

ii Dividend in Foreign Currency

Dividend relating to 2007-08 remitted in 0.06 0.04

Foreign Currency during the year

No of Non resident Equity Shareholders 939 870

No of Equity Shares held by them 764525 824422

Earnings in Foreign Currency

Long Distance Operations 1312.89 1296.1

Interest and Other Income 80.65 8.59
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Rs in crore

Value of Imports on CIF basis

Capital Goods 266372 41 3264

Stores Spares 239.76 278.1

Consumption of Stores and Spares

Imported 0.03 3.49

Indi5enous 29.92 11 .66

Manaerial/ Directors Remuneration

Salaries 0.66 0.50

Contribution to Provident Fund 0.03 0.02

Provision for Gratuity 0.01 0.70 0.01 0.53

Commission to Non Executive Directors 0.60 35.00

Refer Note Schedule 1.30 5.53

ii Computation of Net Profit u/s 349 of the Companies Act 956

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Profft After Tax 4802.67 2586.45

Add

Depreciation as per the Companies Act 956 1933.51 1843.66

Provision for Taxation 2.40 7.64

Loss on Sale of Assets 0.05

Investment written off 0.01

Mana5erial Remuneration .30 35.53

1947.21 1906.89

Less

Depreciation as per the Companies Act 1956 1933.51 1843.66

Depreciation Char5ed to Provisinrr for BLlslncss Restructurin5 363.02 514.83

Prnft on Demer9er of Assets 3063.43 0.1

Profit on Buyback of FCCBs 79.61 5439.57 2358.61

Profit calculated as per Section 349 1310.31 21 34.73

Maximum amount permissible 05 38.16 62.18

Amount provided thereo3ainst Refer Note Schedule 0.60 35.00

0peratin Lease

The Companys sisnificant Ieasin5 arran9ements are in respect of operatin9 leases for premises and network sites These lease

a5reements provide for cancellation by either parties thereto as per the terms and conditions of the a9reements In addition to

the Scheme referred to in Note ii becomrn rffective the Company will be the lessee in respect of Optical Fibres In respect

of ths Lease lease rent of Rs 903.00 crore includinG Ps 893.00 crore not leviable for the year as per the lease a9reement
has been reco5nised on strar5ht line basS as Network Expenses and corresponding amount is included in Sundry Creditors

Particulars of Derivative Instruments

Particulars of Derivative For the year ended 31St March 2009 For year ended 31st March 2008

Instruments acquired No of Value No of Value

for hedin Instruments Instruments

USD in crore Rs in crore tiSD in crore Ps in crore

Principal Only Swap 6.00 304.32 10 11.70 469.55

Currency Swaps 7.40 375.13 7.40 296.73

Interest Rate Swaps FC 23 119.50 6061.04 33 99.60 3995.95

Interest Rate Swaps INR 28 16.76 850.00 27 30.96 1242.00

Options FC 22 63.80 3236.12 34 147.59 5921.11

Options INR 15.00 760.80 12 61.00 2447.32

No derivative instruments are acquired for speculation purpose
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In respect of Foreign Currency Swap and Interest Rate Swap transactions which are linked with LIBOR rates and exchange rate

during the period of contract gains/ losses are recognised on the settlement day or the reporting day whichever is earlier at the

rate prevailing on respective day

Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are USD 200.60 crore Previous year

USD 270.40 crore equivalent to Rs.1 0.1 73.89 crore Previous year Rs 10848.00 crore

Above exposure status does not include the effects of accruals

The unamortised premium of Buyers Credit to be recognised is Ps 14.71 crore Previous year Rs.21 .87 crore for one or more

subsequent accounting periods

Export Commitments

The Company has obtained licenses/ authorisations under the Export Promotion Capital Goods EPCG Scheme for importing

capital goods at concessional rate of customs duty against submission of bonds

Under the terms of the respective hcenses/ authorisations the Company is required to export goods of FOB value equivalent to

or more than eight times the amount of duty saved in respect of such licenses/ authorisations where export obligation has been

refixed by the order of Director General Foreign Trade Ministry of Commerce and industry Government of India as applicable

Balance export obligations outstanding as on 31st March 2009 under the aforesaid licenses/ authorisations is Ps 775.00 crore

Previous year Ps 678.54 crore

Segment Performance

Disclosure as per Accounting Standard AS Segment Reporting is reported in Consolidated Accounts of the Company

Therefore the same has not been separately disclosed in line with the provisions of AS

Employee Benefits

Gratuity In accordance with the applicable Indian laws the Company provides for gratuity defined benefit retirement plan

Gratuity Plan for all employees The Gratuity Plan provides lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or

termination of employment an amount based on respective employees last drawn salary and for the years of employment with

the Company

The following table sets out the status of the Gratuity Plan as required under Accounting Standard AS Revised Employee

Benefits Revised

ReconciLiation of opening and cLosing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obLigation

Ps in crore

Gratuity Gratuity Leave Leave

Encashment Encashment

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March 2009 31st March 2008 31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Obligation at beginning of the year 23.24 14.60 100.12 77.80

Service Cost 6.45 4.75 45.51 40.94

Interest Cost 2.09 .32 5.11 6.03

Actuarial Igain/ loss 0.02 3.76 1.25 3.09

Benefits Paid 2.58 1.19 54.31 21.55

Obligation at end of the year 29.18 23.24 97.68 100.1

Defined benefit obligation liability as at the Balance Sheet date is wholly funded by the Company

ii Change in plan assets

Plan assets at the beginning of

the year at fair value 23.58 11 .06

Expected return on plan assets 2.12 .00

Actuarial gain/ loss .95 0.50

Contributions 0.06 2.21 54.31 21.55

Benefits 2.58 1.19 54.31 21.55

Plan assets at the end of the year at fair value 21.23 23.58

iii Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 21.23 23.58 97.68 100.1

Present value of the defined benefit obligation

at the end of the year 29.18 23.24

Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 7.95 0.34 97.68 100.1
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Rs in crore

Gratuity Gratuity Leave Leave

Encashment Encashment

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March 2009 31st March 2008 31st March 2009 31st March 2008

iv Cost for the period

Service Cost 6.45 4.75 45.51 40.94

InterestCost 2.09 1.32 5.11 6.03

Expected return on plan assets 2.12 1.00 NA NA

Actuarial garn/ loss 1.93 3.26 1.25 3.09

Net Cost 8.35 8.34 51.87 43.88

Investment details of plan assets

00% of the plan assets are invested in Balanced Fund Instruments

vi Actual return on plan assets 0.17 .50

vii Assumptions

Interest rate 7.00% 9.00% 7.00% 9.00%

Estimated return on pLan assets 7.00% 9.00% 7.00% 9.00%

SaLary growth rate 6.00% 8.20% 6.00% 8.20%

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation seniority promotion
and other reLevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market

Provident Fund .The guidance on implementing Accounting Standards AS 15 EmpLoyee Benefits revised 2005 issued

by the ICAI states that the benefits invoLving employer established Provident Fund which require interest shortfalls to be

recompensed are to be considered defined benefit pLans The actuary of the Company has expressed his inabiLit to reliably

measure provident fund liabilities AccordingLy the Company is unable to provide the reLated information

20 DiscLosure under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

Under the Micro Small Medium Enterprises DeveLopment Act 2006 MSMED which came into force from 2nd October

2006 certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro Small Medium Enterprises MSME On the basis of the

information and records available with the Company the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro and

Small enterprises

Rs in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

PrincipaL amount due to any suppLier as at the year end 28.18 4.68

ii Interest due on the principal amount unpaid at the year end to any suppLier 0.45 0.05

iii Amount of Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section of the

MSMED along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

iv Payment made to the enterprises beyond appointed date under 13.31 2.1

Section of MSMED

Amount of Interest due and payabLe for the period of delay in making 0.26 0.28

payment which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year but without adding the interest specified under MSMED
vi The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 0.71 0.33

each accounting year and

vii The amount of further interest remaining due and payabLe even in 0.33

the succeeding years until such date when the interest due as above

is actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance

as deductibLe expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED
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21 Earnings per Share EPS

Basic and Dituted EPS

Profit/ Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders before

Exceptional Items Ps in crore

Numerator used for calculation of Basic EPS

ii Profit Loss attributable to Equity Shareholdeis before

Exceptional Items Ps in crore

Numerator used for calculation of Dilutive EPS

iii Piofit/ Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders after

Exceptional Items Ps in crore

.lumerator used for calculation of Basic EPS

iv Profit/ Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders after

Exceptional Items Ps in crore

Numerator used for calculation of Dilutive EPS

Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as

deiominator for calculating Basic EPS

vi Add Effect of potential Equity Shares to be issuec under FCCBs

vii Add Effect of potentially dilutive Equity Shares under ESOS

viii WEighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator

for calculating Diluted EPS

ix Basic Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps before Exceptional Items

Diluted Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps before Exceptional Items

xi Basic Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps after Exceptional Items

xii Diluted Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps after Exceptional Items

As at

31St March 2009

1342.84

1342.84

4802.67

4802.67

2064026881

911 20244

215514712S

6.51

6.23

23.27

22.28

As at

31St March 2008

2602.62

2225.2

58645

220908

2052028972

105453 968

5780 102

21 632631 32

2.68

1029

2.60

10.21

460.88

7.20

10.14

1164.00

90.83

30.49

767.30

137.83

As at Maximum

31St Midrch 2008 BaLance during

the year

977.67

951.04

7.20

10.14

1178.22

90.83

21 67.57

175.64 1175.64

7811 193.11

Ps in crore

Maximum

Balance during

the previous year

977.67

1368.25

7.20

1471.39

59.37

073.59

175.04

78.11

1210.00

22 Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Subsidiary Companies

As at

31st March 2009

977.67

897.36

7.20

Reharce Gateway Net Limited

ii Reliance Webstore Limited

iii Netizen Rajasthan Limited

iv Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited

Reliance Telecom Limited

vi Campion Properties Limited

vH Reliance Communications

Infrastructure Limited

viii Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure

Private Limited

ix Reliance Big TV Limited

Reliance Infratel Limited

Refer Note 5h Schedule

xi Reliance Tech Services Private Limited

388.91

59.37

2067.57

6975.21

3.63

9647.51

Loans and Advances to subsidiaries are interest free loans

demand

6975.21

_________
65.63

5651 .83 13792.26

where there is no repayment schedule and are repayable on

8421 .22
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23 Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Company operates two Employee Stock Option Plans ESOS Plan 2008 and ESOS Plan 2009 which cover eligible employees
of the Company the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries ESOS Plans are administered through an ESOS Trust The vesting of

the options is on the expiry of one year from the date of grant as per Plan under the respective ESOSs In respect of Options

granted the accounting value of Options based on market price of the share on the date of the grant of the option is accounted

as deferred employee compensation which is amortised on straight Line basis over the vesting period Each Option entitles the

holder thereof to apply for and be allotted one Equity Share of the Company of Ps each upon payment of the exercise price

during the exercise period The maximum Exercise Period is years from the date of grant of options

The Company has established Trust for the implementation and management of ESOS for the benefit of its present and future

employees Advance of Ps 59.00 crore has been granted to the Trust Rs 54.91 crore has been utilised by the Trust for

purchasing 92 lac Equity Shares during the period upto 31st March 2009

Amortization of compensation includes further charge of Ps 7.47 crore Previous year Rs.1 6.17 crore based on intrinsic

value Options which have been vested under ESOS Plan 2008 Amount earlier charged in respect of surrendered Options under

ESOS Plan 2008 have been reversed during the year No amount is chargeable in respect of Options granted under ESOS Plan

2009

Employees Stock Option Plans

ParticuLars PLAN 2008 PLAN 2009

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

Options average Options average
exercise exercise

price Rs price Rs
No of Options outstanding at the

beginning of the year 14991185 371 .24 Nil

Number of Options granted Nil 321 7975 206.00

Total number of Options surrendered 321 7975 369.10 Nil

Number of Options vested during the year 1607320 394.06 Nil

Total number of Options exercised Nil Nil

Total number of Options forfeited/ lapsed 165890 382.98 1938980 206.00

No of Options outstanding at the end of the year 1607320 394.06 11278995 206.00

If the entity would have estimated fair value computed on the basis of Black-Scholes pricing model the compensation cost for

the year ended 31st March 2009 for ESOS Plan 2008 and ESOS Plan 2009 would have been hi3her by Ps 6.64 crore and
Ps.9.25 crore respectively The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options are given below

Particulars ESOS Plan 2008 ESOS Plan 2009

Risk-free interest rate 7.27% 5.00%

Expected life year year

Expected volatility 37.58% 70.00%

Expected dividend yield 0.1 386% 0.4301 Sb

Price of the underlying share in market at the time of option grant Ps 541 .1 Ps 74.00

24 Exceptional Items

Ci The Company holds foreign currency denominated Redeemable Preference Shares of its Subsidiaries Reliance Globalcom BV

PGBV and Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited GNTPL The said investments qualify as monetary assets under Accounting
Standard AS 11 Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates As required by the AS the said monetary assets have
been restated on the basis of closing rate of foreign currency as at 31st March 2009 The total difference being financial

charges of Ps 704.1 crore out of which Ps 404.03 crore relatable to the period ended upto 31st March 2008 have

been reflected under Exceptional items

ii Amortisation of compensation of Ps 7.47 crore under ESOS Plan 2008 as mentioned in Note 23 above

iii Profit on transfer of OFC Undertaking of Ps 3063.27 crore as mentioned in Note ii above

25 Recovery of Expenses

Expenses under the heads Provision
for Employees Cost and Other Expenses are net of recoveries for common cost from Reliance

Communications Infrastructure Limited RCIL Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company Such amounts recovered for the year

amount to Ps 3.05 crore for Employee Cost and Ps 500.28 crore for Sales and General Administration Expenses comprising

of Rs 87.50 crore for Advertising Expenses Ps 332.10 crore for Customer Acquisition and Customer Care Ps 80.68 crore for

Selling and Marketing Similarly the Company has also collected interest equivalent to its cost of funds from PCIL and Reliance

Telecom Limited PTL amounting to Ps 116.72 crore and Ps 445.17 crore respectively for the year ended 31st March
2009
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As per Accounting Standard AS 18 Related Party Disclosures

of transactions with the related parties are given below

List of Related Parties where control exists

Sr Name of the Subsidiary Companies direct and

No step down subsidiaries

ReLiance Communications Infrastructure Limited

Reliance Infratel Limited

Netizen Rajasthan Limited

ReLiance Mobile Limited

Matrix Innovations Limited

Reliance Telecom Limited

Reliance Global IDC Limited

Reliance Big TV Limited

Campion Properties Limited

10 Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited

11 Reliance Digital Flume Services Lurated

Rehance Webstore Limited

Rehancelech Services Private Limited

Reliance WiMax Limited formerly Gateway Systems

India Limited

Reliance Corrirnunicatioris Investment and Leasing

Limited

Reliance Gateway Net Limited upto 31St March

2009 Subsidiary of the Company has been

merged into the Company The Scheme is effective

from 3th July 2009 whereas Appointed Date of

the Scheme is 31St March 2009

Access Guinea SARL w.e.f 0th September 2008

Anupam Global Soft Limited

EquatoriaL Communications Limited w.e.f 8th

December 2008
20 Equatorial Cemmunications SARL w.e.f 8th

December 2008
21 Euronet Spain SA w.e.f 25th May 2008
22 FLAG Access India Private Limited

23 FLAG Atlantic UK Limited

24 FLAG Holdings Taiwan Limited Board Control

25 FLAG Pacific Limited

26 FLAG Telecom Taiwan Limited

27 FLAG Telecom Asia Limited

28 FLAG Telecom Belgium Network SA

prescribed under the Accounting Standard RuLes the disclosure

Sr Name of the Subsidiary Companies direct and

No step down subsidiaries

29 FLAG Telecom Deutschland GmbH

30 FLAG Telecom Development Limited

31 FLAG Telecom Development Services Company LLC

32 FLAG Telecom Espana Network SAU

33 FLAG Telecom Espana 5A Ceased on 3th March

2009

34 FLAG Telecom Group Services Limited

35 FLAG Telecom HeLLas AE

36 FLAG Telecom Ireland Network Limited

37 FLAG TeLecom Japan Limited

38 FLAG Telecom Nederland By

39 FLAG Telecom Network Services Limited

40 FLAG Telecom Network USA Limited

41 FLAG Telecom Servizi ItaLia SpA

42 FLAG Telecom Singapore Pte Limited

43 FLAG Telecom Taiwan Services Limited

44 FLAGWEB Limited

45 Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited w.e.f 1st October

2008

46 Interconnect Brazzaville SA w.e.f 21st October

2008
47 Lagerwood Investments Limited Board Control

48 Net Direct SA Proprietary Limited w.e.f 25th

May 2008
49 RCOM Malaysia SDN BHD
50 Rehance Communications Australia Pty Limited

51 ReLiance Communications Hong Kong Limited

52 Reliance Communications New Zealand Pte

Limited

53 Reliance Communications Singapore Pte Limited

54 Reliance Communications UK Limited

55 Rehance Communications Canada Inc

56 Rehance Communications InternationaL Inc

57 ReLiance FLAG Atlantic France SAS

58 Reliance FLAG Pacific Holdings Limited formerLy

FLAG Pacific HoLdings Limited

59 Reliance FLAG Telecom Ireland Limited

60 Reliance Globalcom UK Limited

Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2009 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date

26 License Fees

The Company accounts for Its liabilities in respect of Licence Fees payable by way of Revenue Share to be computed on the Gross

Revenue of the Company after taking into account the decision of the Telecom Disputes Settlement And Appellate Tribunal the

TDSAT dated 30th August 2007 specifying that revenues not related to UAS and Other Licences under which the Company

operaces are riot to be included in the computation of Revenue Share The TDSAT has by its decision dated 26th March 2009

applied the said decision dated 30th August 2007 to the Company The decision of the TDSAT is the subject matter of Appeal

pending before the Supreme Court No provision is considered necessary in this regard

27 Financial Statements of Subsidiary Companies

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs Government of India vide its Order No.47/51 /2009CL-Ill dated 3th February 2009 issued

under Section 212 of the Companies Act 956 has exempted the Company from attaching the Balance Sheets Profit

and Loss Accounts Cash Flow Statements and other documents of its subsidiaries under Section 21 21 of the Companies Act

956 As per the order key details of each subsidiary is attached

28 Related Parties
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61 Reliance Globalcom BV formerly Reliance Infocom

BV
62 Reliance Globalcom Limited

63 Reliance Globalcom Services Inc

64 Reliance Infocom Inc

65 Reliance Netway Inc

66 Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Cyprus Holdings

Limited Board Control

67 Reliance WiMAX World BV we.f 26th August

2008
68 Reliance WiMAX World BVI formerly eWave World

Limited

w.ef 4th April 2008
69 Reliance WiMAX World LLC w.e.f 23rd September

2008

70 Reliance WiMAX World Limited w.e.f 11th August

2008
71 Relilance Communications Inc

72 Reliance WiMAX Cameroon w.e.f 18th

December 2008

73 Reliance WiMAX Congo Brazzaville By w.e.f 21st

October 2008
74 Reliance WiMAX Guinea w.e.f 10th

September 2008
75 Reliance WiMAX Sierra Leone w.e.f 8th

December 2008

76 Seoul Telenet Inc Board Control

77 Vanco Asia Pacific Pte Limited w.e.f 25th May
2008

78 Vanco Shanghai Co Limited w.e.f 25th May
2008

79 Vanco ApS w.e.f 2Sth May 2008
80 Vanco Australasia PTY Limited w.e.f 25th May

2008

Vanco Benelux BV w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco BV w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco Deutschland GmbH w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco EpE w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco Euronet Sro w.e.f 25th May 2008

Vanco Global Limited w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco GmbH w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco Hong Kong Solutions Limited w.e.f 25th

May 2008

89 Varico India Private Limited w.e.f 25th May

2008
90 Vanco International Limited w.e.f 25th May 2008
91 Vanco Japan KK w.e.f 25th May 2008

92 Vanco Net Direct Limited w.e.f 25th May 2008

DiscLosure in respect of transactions which are more than

party during the year

93 Vanco NV w.e.f 25th May 2008
94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

06 Yipes Holdings Inc

107 Yipes Systems Inc

108 YTV Inc

109 Flag Telecom Korea Limited Ceased on 31st

December 2008
110 Vanco Net Direct Ltd Ireland w.e.f 25th May

2008
111 Reliance Vanco Group Limited formerly Vanco Group

Limitedw.e.f 25th May 2008
11 FLAG Telecom France Services Eurl France Ceased

on 2nd April 2008
11 FLAG Telecom France Network SAS Ceased on 2nd

April 2008

Holding Companies

11 Reliance Innoventures Private Limited Ultimate

Holding Company

11 AAA Communication Private Limited

IndividuaLs

Promoters

11 Shri Arril Ambani the person having control during

the year

Manager

11 Shri Hasit Shukla

List of Other Related Parties where there have

been transactions

Associate Company

Warf Telecom International Private Limited

FeLLow Subsidiaries

Reliance Capital Limited

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

10% of the total transactions of the same type with related

Vanco Row Limited w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco SAS w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco Solutions Inc w.e.f 25th May 2008
Varrco South America Ltda w.e.f 25th May 2008
Varico Sp Zoo w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco SrI w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco Sweden AB w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco Switzerland AG w.e.f 25th May 2008
Vanco UK Limited we.f 25th May 2008
Vanco US LLC w.e.f 25th May 2008

VNO Direct Limited w.e.f 25th May 2008
WANcom GmbH w.e.f 25th May 2008

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

Fixed assets acquired during the year include Rs 5.01 crore from Reliance FLAG Atlantic France SAS Rs 43.34 crore from
Reliance Tech Services Private Limited and Rs 932.87 crore from Reliance Infratel Limited Previous yeor Fixed assets ocquired

include Rs 34.00 crore from Reliance FLAG Atlantic France SAS Rs 83.20 crore from Reliance Communications Infrastructure

Limited and Rs 164.99 crore from Reliance Infratel Limited

During the year the Company has acquired the Optic Fibre Undertaking of Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

RCIL wholly owned subsidiary of the Company comprising as on St April 2008 of ducts dark optical fibre cables including

all other assets comprising inter alia of construction machinery rights powers authorities interests and privileges in all property
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moveable and immoveable and aLL other future rights and interest arising out of such property forming part of the network laid

by RCIL on pan India routes on going concern basis for token consideration of Rs crore

During the year the Company has transferred the Optic bre Undertaking to Retance InfrateL Limited under the Scheme Refer

Note Schedule

Loans and Advances include loan granted during the year of Ps 554.21 crore to ReLiance Telecom Limited Rs.1 238.1 crore

to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 89079 crore to Relance Webstore Lim ted Ps 31.46 crore to Campion

Properties Limited Ps 2543 54 crore to Rehance InfrateL Limited Ps 206 49 crore to Rehance Big fV Limited Ps 793.02

crore to Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited Ps 71.89 crore to Rehance Tech Services Private Limited and Ps

671 8.94 crore as per the Scheme of Arrangement to Reliance Infratel Limited and repaid during the year Ps 3275.20 crore

by Rehance Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 327.27 crore by Reliance Webstore Limited Ps 1201.36 crore by

Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Prvate Limited Rs 146.78 crore by Reliance Big TV Limited Ps /9.12 crore by Reliance

Telecom Limited Ps 2287.27 crore by Reliance Infratel Limited Rs.68.25 crore by Reliance Tech Services Private Limited and

converted into Equity Shares Ps 977.62 crore by Reliance Gateway Net Limited Previous yeor Loons end Advonces include

loan granted during year Rs 1434 63 crore to Relionce Communications Infrastructure Limited Cs 102.00 crore to Reliance

Telecom Limited Rs 300.30 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited Rs 22.59 crore to Campion Properties Limited Rs 545.64 crore

to Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited Rs 1210 crore to Reliance Infratel Limited Rs 81.11 crore to Reliance Big

TV Limited end repaid during the year Rs 871 65 crore by Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Rs 981.18 crore by

Reliance Telecom Limited Rs 531.03 crore by Reliance Webstore Limited Rs 1210 crore by Reliance Infratel Limited Rs 3.00

crore by Reliance Big TV Limited

Deposits include deposits granted during the year of Ps 26102 34 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

and repaid during the year of Rs 24797 93 crore by Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and converted into Equity

Shares Ps 1001 crore by Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between

Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and Pelance Telecom Limited the depost of Ps 671 5.49 crore transferred

to Reliance Telecom Limited from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Previous year Deposit includes deposits

granted during the year of Cs 14659.45 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and repaid during the year of

Rs 16831.39 crore by Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

Sundry Debtors include Ps 298.53 crore from Reliance Communicat ons Inc Ps 99 67 crore from FLAG Telecom Ireland Network

Limited Ps 42.28 crore from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 61 03 crore from Reliance Communicat ons

InternationaL Inc Ps 4.57 crore from ReLiance Communicat ens Canada Inc Ps 0.20 crore from Reliance Wimax Limited

formerly Gateway Systems India Limited Ps 47.96 crore from Reliance Telecom Lim ted and Ps 6.94 crore from Reliance

Big TV Limited Previous year Sundry Debtors include Rs 10329 crore from Reliance Communications Inc Rs 60.99 crore

from Reliance FLAG Telecom Ireland Limited and Rs 6.11 crare from Reliance Telecom Limited

Advances include Ps crore to Reliance Big TV Limited Ps 23 58 crore to Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Lim ted

Ps 21 53 crore to Reliance Flag AtLantic France SAS Ps 0.08 crore to Reliance Communications Investment and Leasing Limited

Ps 1582.78 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 62 crore to Alcatel-Lucent Managed Solut ons

Ind Private Limited joint Venture iv and Ps 20.95 crore to Reliance General Insurance Company Limited Previous year

Advances include Rs 90.92 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited Rs 15.52 crore to Reliance Big TV Limited Rs 16.27 crore to

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

Sundry Cred tors include Rs 234.99 crow to Relance FLAG Atlantic France SAS Ps 1265.36 crore to Reliance Infratel Limited

Ps 9.95 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited Rs 2.43 crore to ReLiance Communications UK Limited Ps 5.87 crore to

Reliance Tech Services Private Limited Rs 4.1 crore to Reliance Infocom Inc Ps 7.94 crore to Gateway Net Trading Pte Ltd

Ps 0.47 crore to Reliance Communications Inc Ps 63 crore to ReLance Communications International Inc Ps 0.12 crore to

Reliance Wimax Limited formerly Gateway Systems India Limited Ps 3.41 crore to Reliance Capital Limited and Ps 14.61

crore to PcI ance Infocomm Infrastructure Private rn ted Ps 36.88 crore to AlcateL-Lucent Managed Solutions India Private

Limited jV Previous yeor Sundry Creditors include Rs 643.89 crare to Reliance Communications Infiastructure Limited Rs

64.13 crore to Reliance FLAG Atlantic Fronce SAS Rs 1706 crore to Reliance FLAG Telecom Ireland Limited Rs 463.06 crore to

Reliance Infratel Limited Rs 35.07 crore to Reliance Communications International mc
Turnover includes Ps 476.19 crore from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 596.1 crore from Reliance

Communications Inc Ps 227.1 crore from Reliance Communications International Inc Ps 76 04 crore from Reliance

Webstore Limited Ps 22.82 crore from Flag Telecom Ireland Network Limited Ps 91 crore from Reliance Communications

Canada Inc Ps 0.62 crore from Rel ance Wimax Limited Ps 8.83 crore from Reliance TV mited Ps 31 3.65 crore from

Reliance TeLecom Limited and Ps 47 crore from ReLance Communication UK Limited Previous year -Turnover includes

Rs 379.23 crore from Reliance Cammunicatians Infrastructure Limited Rs 789 95 crore from Reliance Communications Inc

Rs 102.83 crore from Reliance Communications International Inc Rs 13.90 crore from Reliance FLAG Telecom Ireland Limited

Ps 165.30 crore from Reliance Telecom Limited ond Rs 64.75 crore from Reliance Webstore Limited

Expenditure ncLudes Access Charges Ps 83.85 crore to Re Communications Inc. Ps 91.11 crore to Rehance TeLecom

mited Network Operation Expenses Ps 2749.23 crore to Rel ance InfrateL Limited Ps 20.85 crore to Reliance FLAG

AtLantic France SAS Ps 1.27 crore to Reliance TeLecom Limited Rs.3.92 crore to ReLiance Communicat ons Infrastructure Limited

and Rs.0 95 crore to Reliance Communications UK Limited SeLhng and Marketing expenses Ps 87.26 crore to Rehance

Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 71.04 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited GeneraL and Administrative Expense
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Rs 71.07 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Ps 43.51 crore to Pehance Infocomm Infrastructure

Private Limited Ps 5.1 crore to Reliance Tech Services Private Limited Rs.6337 crore to Alcatel-Lucent Managed Solutions

India Private Limited JV Rs1 720 crore to Reliance General Insurance Company Limited Professional Fees Ps 1.09 ciore to

Rehance Infocom Inc Pent Rates and Taxes Ps 5.87 crore to Reliance Capital Limited Finance charges includes Ps 445.17

crore receivable rrom Reliance Telecom Limited and Ps 11 6.72 crore receivable from Reliance Communications Infrastructure

Limited

Expenditure under the heads Provision for Employees Cost and Other Expenses are net of recoveries for common cost from
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited RCIL Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company Refer Note 25 Schedule

Previous year Expenditure includes Access Charges Rs 44.59 crore to Relionce Communications Inc Rs 47.67 crore to

Reliance Telecom Limited Network Operation Expenses Rs 936 19 crore to Reliance Infratel Limited Rs 61.97 crore to Reliance

Communications Infrastrur Lure Limited Rs 37 13 crore to Reliance FLAG Atlantic France 545 Rs 8.91 crore to Reliance Globalcom

Limited Bermuda Selling and Marketing expenses Rs 91 63 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and Rs
96.43 crare to Reliance Webstare Limited Professional Fees Rs 1.71 crore to Reliance Infocam Inc General and Administrative

Expense Rs 146.31 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Rs 61 17 crore to Reliance Infocamm Infrastructure

Private Limited Rs 17.23 crore to Reliance General Insurance Company Limited Rent Rates and Taxes Rs 4.41 crore to Reliance

Capital Limited

Financial Guarantee issued includes Ps 69 80 crore to Reliance Globalcom By Previous year Rs 69.80 crare to Reliance

Glabalcam By

Corporate Guarantee ssued to the Banks nclude Ps 102.00 crore for Reliance Telecom Limited Rs 31 23.93 crore for Reliance

Infratel Limited Rs 2422.20 crore for Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited Previous year Rs 2956.00 crore Reliance Infratel

Limited

11 The Non Executive Directors are also proposed to be remunerated by way of commission not exceeding Ps 0.60 crore for the

year commencing St April 2008 to 31 St March 2009 as decided by the Nomination/ Remuneration Committee and the Board

of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 8th August 2009 including allocation to the individual directors Previous

year Rs.30.60 crnre

The Company has collected interest equivalent to its cost of funds from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and

Reliance Telecom Limited amounting to Ps 11 6.72 crore and Rs 445.17 crore for the year ended 31St March 2009 Previous

year Rs Nil

Transactions with ReLated Parties during the period 1St ApriL 2008 to 31st March 2009

Ps in crore

Sr Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Associates FeLLow Others TotaL

No Subsidiaries

Investments

Balance as at 1st April 2008 13821.84 22.30 13844.14
5358.51 17.40 5375.91

Purchased/ adjusted during the year 21 30.29 21 30.29

3983.57 4.90 3.988.47

Purchased/ adjusted dur ng the year on account of 809.46 809.46

Revaluation/ Forex Revaluation 4487.84 4487.84

Purchused/ adjusted/ fair valued ac per the Scheme 6677.1 1667719
of Arrangement 002 002

Sold/ adjusted as per the Scheme of Arrangement 2096.43 2096.43
8.10 8.10

Balance as at 31st March 2009 31342.35 22.30 31364.65

13821.84 22.30 13844.14

PurchaseofAssets 981.23 981.23

282.19 282.19
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Reliance Communications Limited

Notes on Accounts to Batance Sheet as at 31St March 2009 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date

Loans given

Baance as at St ApriL 2008

Given during the year

Given/ adjusted during the year as per the

Scheme of Arrangement

Repaid/ adjusted during the year

Repaid/ adjusted during the year as per the

Scheme of Arrangement

Batance as at 31St March 2009

ii Deposits

BaLance as at 1st ApriL 2008

Given during the year

Given/ adjusted during the year as

Scheme of Arrangement

Repaid during the year

Repaid/ adjusted during the year

Scheme of Arrangement

BaLance as at 31St March 2009

Expenditure

Access Charges

Network Operation Expenses

SeLung and Marketing Expenses

GeneraL and Administration Expenses

ProfessionaL Fees

Rent Rates and Taxes

Corporate Guarantee

Person having controL during the year

Shri Anil Ambani
Sitting

Fees

Key ManageriaL Person

Shri Hasit ShukLa ManageriaL remuneration

561 .1

174.42

5651.83

5.561 .78

7339.67

3696.28
671 8.94

0062.88

3.606.23

0.05

9647.51

5651 .83

8009.52

10.181.46

261 02.34

14.659.45

per the 671 5.49

25798.93

6831 .40

as per the 671 5.49

831 2.93

8009.51
1646.26

106.54
1576 52

1239.91

2289.76

1.522.37

174.96

92.26
2876.22

1052.80
258.30

188.07
229.76

207.48

.09

1.71

5648.1

3.925.00

0.02

0.03

0.70

0.53

561.17

174.42

5651.83

5561 .78

7339.67

3696.28

671 8.94

10062.88

3.606.23

0.05

9647.51

5651 .83

8009.52

10181.46

261 02.34

14659.45

671 5.49

25798.93

16831.40

6715.49

831 2.93

8.009.51

1673.83

122.85

1616.81

1248.29

2289.76

1522.37

174.96

92.26

2876.22

1052.80
258.30

188.07

310.34

224.71

1.09

1.71
5.87

4.41
5648.13

.92 .00

0.02

0.03

0.70

0.53

Ps in crore

Sr Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Associates Fellow Others Total

No Subsidiaries

Sundry Debtors

Loans and Advances

iii Advances

Sundry Creditors

Turnover

6.62 20.95

16.31
36.88 3.41

8.38

63.38 17.20

17.23

5.87

4.41
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Reliance Communications Limited

Notes on Accounts to BaLance Sheet as at 31st March 2009 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date

29 Additional information as required under Part IV of ScheduLe VI to the Companies Act 956

Balance Sheet Abstract and Companys GeneraL Business Profile

Registration DetaiLs

Registration No State Code

Balance Sheet Date

II Capital raised during the year Amount Rs in crore

PubLic Issue Rights Issue LIII
Bonus Issue Private Placement

HI Position of mobiLisation and deployment of funds Amount Rs in crore

TotalLiabihties 8121 3lTotalAssets __________________________

Sources of Funds

8121519131 III
Application of Funds

Paid up CapitaL Net Fixed Assets

Reserves and SurpLus Investments

Share AppLication Money Net Current Assets

Secured Loans olMiscelLaneous

Expenditure

Unsecured Loans Profit and Loss Account

IV Performance of the Company Amount Rs in crore

Net Turnover Total Expenditure

Profit/ Loss Proft/ Loss

beforetax aftertax 61

Earnings per Share in Rs

Basic 21 7lDvidendRate%

Diluted 2121.12181

Generic Names of principal services of the Company

Item Code number Product Descuption Ml MI

IIICIAITIIIOINHH

El VIII CI El

For and on behaLf of the Board

Chairman AniL Ambani

1J Ramachandran

Tatwar

Deepak Shourie

Purwar

Hasit ShukLa

NI LI

NI II LI

Mumbai

8th August 2009

Directors

Company Secretary and Manager
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Reliance Communications Limited

Cash Ftw Statement for the year ended pn Jist Mrch OO9.

Ps in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31St March 2008

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax as per 481 5.07 2604.09
Profit and Loss Account

Adjusted for

Provision for doubtful debts 105.04 146.58

Amortisation of Intangibles and depreciation 1933.51 1843.66

Exceptional and Non Recurring items

Discount on buyback of FCCBs 79.61

Employee compensation expenses ESOS 7.47 16.17

Revaluation of Investments 404.03

Profit on transfer of OFC Undertaking 3063.27

Effect of foreign exchange rate change 246.99 382.42

Profit on sale of Assets 0.16 0.12

Loss on sale of Assets 0.05

Profit on sale of Investments 6.17

Loss on sale of Investments 0.01

Interest expenses 963 52 849.24

Rent income 2.92 08
Interest income 572.05 1359.49 2451 2449.41

0peratin Profit before Working Capital Changes 3455.58 5053.50

Adjusted for

Receivables ard other Advances 641 .07 425 36
Inventories 51 92 102.71
Trade Payables 333.66 1359.33 1489 30 201 7.37

Cash Generated from Operations 2096.25 3036.13

Tax Refund 5377

Tax Paid 211.38 107 08
Net Cash from Operating Activities 1884.87 2982.82

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to Fixed Assets 4382.62 73 9.84

Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 26

Purchase of Investments 151.78 11.200.65

Sale of Investments 7274.94

Refund of loans given to Subsidiaries 8488.40 3596.86

Loans given to Subsidiaries 7339.67 3.696.28

Deposits with Subsidiaries payable on demand net 4288.04 4436.83
Rent income 2.92 08

Interest income 10.25 77.76

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 7650.54 15700.70
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Retiance Communications Limited

Cash Ftow Statement for the year ended on 31St March 2009

Ps in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Expense refund of FCCBs 0.06

ReaLised forex Loss withdrawn from GeneraL Reserve 1118.89

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings net 1438.20 7550.91

Proceeds from Debentures 3000.00

Repayment of Secured Term Loans 950.00 4038.52

Proceeds from Unsecured Term Loans 5396.91 5891 .22

Repayment of Unsecured Term Loans 90.59 2.234.31

Dividend Paid incLuding Tax 179.23 118.28

Interest Paid -_1091.1 81 6.33

Net Cash from Financinq Activities 6405.25 6234.75

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash 639.58 6483.1

Equivalents

Openinq Balance of Cash and Cash EquivaLents 202.66 6687.22

Effect of Exchange Loss/Gain on Cash and Cash 2.91 .43

Equivalents
____________ ____________

CLosin Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 845.1 202.66

Closinq Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Bank Balances as per Schedule 535.1 92.66

incLuding Fixed Deposit

ii Deposit with Subsidiaries payable on Demand 310.00 10.00

845.15 202.66

Notes

UnreaLised exchange difference of Rs 3345.68 crore has not been shown separateLy as adjusted by withdrawaL from General

Reserve Refer Note ScheduLe

ii Assets and LiabiLities pertaining to the Optic Fibre Undertaking transferred pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement during the

year have not been considered in the above Statement

iii crore Equity Shares of Re 1/- each at premium of Rs 1000/- per Share totaLing to Rs 1001.00 crore acquired during the

year from ReLiance Communications Infrastructure Limited by adjusting Deposit and 0.495 crore Equity Share of Rs.1 0/- each

at premium of Rs 965/- per share totaLLing to Rs 977.63 crore acquired during the year from Reliance Gateway Net Limited

merged into the Company w.e.f Appointed Date 31St March 2009 by adjusting Loan thereto have not been considered in the

above Statement

As per our Report of even date For and on behaLf of the Board

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co Chairman Anil Ambani

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

LaLa Natrajan Ramkrishna Ramachandran

Partner Partner TaLwar

Membership No 35671 Membership No 03281
Deectors

Deepak Shourie

Purwar

Mumbai Company Secretary and Manager Hasit Shukla

8th August 2009
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Reliance Communications Limited

Auditors Report

To

the Board of Directors of Reliance Communications Limited

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet

of Rehance Communications Limited the Company and its

subsidiaries associates and joint ventures collectively called the

Group as at 31 March 2009 the Consolidated Profit and Loss

Account and the Consohdated Cash flow statement for the year

ended on that date annexed thereto These financial statements

are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards

generalLy accepted in India Those Standards require that we plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether

the financial statements are free of materiaL misstatement An

audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial

information of certain subsidiaries The financial statements

of these subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2009

have been audited by other auditors whose reports have

been furnished to us and our opinion in so far as it relates

to the amounts included in respect of subsidiaries is based

solely on these reports The attached consolidated financial

statements include assets of Rs 13322.35 crores as at

31 March 2009 revenues of Ps 2982.06 crores and cash

outflows amounting to Ps 41.79 crores in respect of the

aforementioned subsidiaries for the year then ended

The financial statements of certain subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 March 2009 have been audited by one of the

joint auditors Chaturvedi Shah Chartered Accountants

The attached consolidated financial statements include

assets of Ps 41375.22 as at 31March 2009 revenues

of Ps 661 234 crores and cash inflows amounting to

Ps 463.38 crores in respect of the aforementioned

subsidiaries for the year then ended

We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of the

subsidiaries and joint ventures whose financial statements

reflect total assets of Ps 3423.12 crores as at 31 March

2009 total revenue of Ps 1386.39 crores and cash inflows

amounting to Ps 40.65 crores for the year ending 31 March

2009 These unaudited financial statements as approved by

the respective Board of Directors of these companies have

been furnished to us by the management and our report

in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of

the subsidiaries is based solely on such approved financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

by the Companys management in accordance with the

requirements of Accounting Standard 21 Consolidated

Financial Statements Accounting Standard 23 Accounting

for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial

Statements and Accounting Standard 27 Financial Peporting

of Interest in Joint Ventures prescribed by the Companies

Accounting Standards Rules 2006

as more fully explained in note 6iii in schedule to

the consolidated financial statements the Company and

its subsidiary ReLiance Infratel Limited have pending

filing of the Scheme of Arrangement the scheme

pronounced on July 2009 by the Honble High Court

of Judicature at Mumbai as required under section

3943 of the Companies Act 956 with the Pegistrar

of Companies P0C given effect to the scheme in the

financiaL statement The Company and the subsidiary

have represented that they are reasonably certain that

the scheme post compLetion of the procedural formality

will be filed with the PoC in due course

as more fully explained in the note of Schedule

to the consolidated financial statements regarding the

Scheme for the transfer of passive infrastructure by the

Company to PIlL subsidiary of the Company PITL

based on legaL opinion considers the general reserve

created pursuant to the above Scheme to be free

reserve and available for any purpose has withdrawn and

credited to the Profit and Loss Account an amount of

Ps 91 .07 crores in respect of fuel costs incurred during

the year Had the Company not made such withdrawal

as per the Scheme the profit before taxes for the year

would have been Lower by the said amount

as more fully explained in note of Schedule to

the ccnsolidated financial statements pursuant to the

schemes of arrangement as approved by the Honbte

High Court of Judicature at Mumbai the Group has

withdrawn from General Peserve and credited to Profit

and Loss Account Ps 5771 .34 crores in respect of loss

on account of change in foreign exchange rate relating

to loans/ Liabilities

as more fully explained in Note 5viii of Schedule to

the consolidated financial statements the Company has

computed goodwill on consolidation by comparing the

cost of investments with the equity of subsidiaries as

on date on which investments were made by Reliance

Industries Limited the transferor company prior to

demerger instead of considering the date of demerger

as the date of investment

Based on our audit as aforesaid and on consideration of

reports of other auditors and accounts approved by the

Board of Directors as explained in paragraphs and

above and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us the consolidated financial

statements give true arid fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India

in the case of the consolidated balance sheet of the

state of affairs of the Group as at 31 tMarch 2009

Without qualifying our report we state
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Audftors

ii in the case of the consolidated profit and loss account iii in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement of

of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that

date and date

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co
Chartered /ccountants Chartered Accountants

Lala Natrajan Ramkrishna

Partner Partner

Membership No 35671 Membership No 03281

Mumbai

August 2009
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ReLiance Communications Limited

ConsoUdated Batance Sheet as at 31st March 2009

Rs in crore

ScheduLe As at As at

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SOURCES OF FUNDS

SharehoLders Funds

Share Capital 1032.01 1032.01

Reserves and SurpLus 41248.31 42280.32 2799432 29026.33

Minority Interest 654.92 2430.93

Loan Funds

Secured Loans 3000.00 950.00

Unsecured Loans 361 62.25 391 62.25 24871.70 25821 .70

Deferred Tax LiabiLity 28.10 102.76

Refer Note ScheduLe
_____________ _____________

TOTAL 821 25.59 57381 .72

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets

Gross BLock 75510.11 46338.75

Less Depreciation 14114.42 8956.1

Net Block 61395.69 37382.63

CapitaL Work-in-Progress 11309.60 72705.29 14929.93 5231 2.56

GoodwiU 5221.53 3565.43

Refer Note Schedule

Investments 9565.70 10999.63

Current Assets Loans and Advances

Current Assets

Inventories 542.72 405.88

Sundry Debtors 3961.77 2722.37

Cash and Bank Balances 1682.90 878.1

Other Current Assets 1771.41 2305.81

7958.80 631 2.24

Loans and Advances 6755.67 4269.48

14714.47 10581.72

Less Current Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities 15971.83 15621.25

Provisions 41 09.57 4456 37

20081 .40 20077.62

Net Current Assets 5366.93 9495.90

TOTAL 821 25.59 57381 72

Siqnificant Accountinq Policies

Notes on Accounts

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Fnancial Statements

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co Chairman AniL Ambani

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Lala Natrajan Ramkrishna Ramachandran

Partner Partner TaLwar

Membership No 35671 Membership No 03281
Ditectors

Deepak Shourie

Purwar

Mumbai

8th August 2009 Company Secretary and Manager Hasit ShukLa
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Consot1dated.PcofLan4oss Acsountfotthe yearended .31st Mªck.jOO

INCOME
Services Revenue and Other

Operating Income

Other Income

EXPENDITURE
Access Chargec tense Fees and Network Expenses

Payment to and Provisions for Employees
Commission to Non txecst ye Directors net
Refer Note and Schedule

Sales and General Administration Expenses

Profit before Financial Charges Financial Income Depreciation Amortisation

Exceptional Items and Adjustments

Financial Charges net
Financial Income

Profit before Depreciation Amortisation Exceptional Items and Adjustments

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation adjusted by transfer from
Provision for Business restructuring Refer Note Schedule

General Reserve Refer Note Schedule

General Reserve Refer Note Schedule

Profit before Adjustments pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation/

Arrangement Tax and Exceptional Items

Exceptional Items Refer Note Schedule

Adjustments pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement inter olio for demerger
of Optic Fibre Undertaking into Reliance Infratel Limited and the Scheme of

Arrangement inter alk between Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

and Reliance Telecom Limited

tosses on account of change in exchange rate relating to loans/ liabil ties net
Epsiealenc amount withdrawn from General Reserve

Refer Note Schedule

Adjustment pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement inter olio for demerger of
Passive Infrastructure from the Company and Reliance Telecom Limited into

Reliance Infratel Limited

Fuel Expenses

Eqs valent amount withdrawn from General Reserve

Refer Note Schedule

Profit Before Tax

Provision for

Current Tax

net of pros sion of earl years written back Rs ernsioss year Rs aa rrurell

Less MAT Cred

Fringe Benefit Tax

Deferred Tax

Profit After tax before adjustment of Minority Interest/ Associates

Less Share of Proflt/ Loss transferred to Minority

tess Share of Profit/ Loss of Ascot ates

Profit After Tax after adjustment of Minority Interest/ Associates
Add Balance brought forward from Pre/oss year

Add As
per

the Schemes of Amalgamatcn of Subsid aries

Refer Note Schedule

Add Deprec ation adustment of Subsid ary Refer Note Schedule

Amount Available for Appropriations

APPROPRIATIONS

Transferred to Statutory Reserve Fund

Tansfered to Debenture Rede-ptror Reserve

Transferred to General Reserve

Proposed Div dend on Equity Shares

Inter Dividend paid on tqu ty Shares

Tax on Dividend

Balance carried to Balance Sheet

Earning per
Share before adjustment of the Scheme of Amalgamation Refer

Note 14 Schedule

Basic of Ru each fully pad up
Irited of Ru each fully paid up

Earning per
Share after adjustment of the Scheme of Amalgamation Refer

Note 14 Schedule

Basic of Ru each fully pa up

Diluted of Ru each fully pa up

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Accounts

The schedules referred to above form an ntegral part of the Finant al Statements

Ru in crore

For the year ended

31st March 2008

22250.54 18 827.39

697.92 24D.37

22.94846 9067 76

7984 S2 259

1676.55 167 52

3.80 9.99

3986 25 3643.52 3405 94 0852.52

9304.94 821S 24

0I 1071.11 64581
II 1578.06 1.045.51

9.81189 8.61494
463081 3947 10

363.02 514.83
276.55 252.11
383.54 3607.70 374.9D 2805.26

6.20419 5.809 68

7.47 26661

5771.34
5771 .34

191.07

191.07

61 96.72 7076.29

3276 198.05

33 56
1623 1897

100 78 51.79 100.16 283.62

6248.51 6792.67
205.17 1390.06
1.59 1.47

6044.93 5401 14

818655 312998
79.27

8186.55 57.27 3.366.S2

14231.48 B.767 66

002
698

400.00 400.00

154.80

16512
28.06 2631 581.11

8186S5

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co Cha man
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Lala Natrajan Ramkrishna

Partner Partner

Membership No 35671 Memberuh No 032815
rectors

Mumbai

8th August 2009 Company Secretary and Manager

Schedule For the year ended

31st March 2009

8600.18

5631.30

29.32

28.08

29.29

28.05

20 15

37

26.32

23.22

Anil Ambani

Ramachandran

Talwar

Deepak Shourie

Purwar

Hasit Shukla
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Reliance Communications Limited

ScheduLes formint part of the ConsoLidated BaLance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat 1\sat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

3000000 000 Equity Shares of Rs each 1500.00 .500.00

3000000000

1500.00 1500.00

Issued Subscribed and Paid up

2064026881 Equity Shares of Ps each fuLLy paid up 1032.01 1032.01

2064026881 Refer Note ScheduLe

1032.01 1032.01

Notes

Out of the above 1308110172 Previous year 1308110172 Equity Shares are held by the HoLding Company MA
Communication Private Limited and 11 529001 Previous year 11529001 Equity Shares are heLd by the uftimate Holdin9

Company Reliance Innoventures Private Limited

Equity Shares aLlotted as fully paid up without payment bein5 received in cash

Number of Shares

Pursuant to demerger of Telecom Undertakin5 of Rehance Industries 1223130422
Limited into the Company

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalamatjon and Arrangement 821 484568

204461 4990
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated BaLance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

RESERVES AID SURPLUS

Statutory Reserve Fund

As per last BaLance Sheet 100.43

Add Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 0.02

Less Transferred to GeneraL Reserve as per the Schemes 1.02

of ArraLgamation of Subsidiaries

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account as per the 0.02 99.41

Schemes of Amalgamation of Subsidiaries

Capital Reserve

As per Last Balane Sheet 0.05 0.06

Less Transferrec to General Reserve as per the Schemes 0.05 0.01 0.05

of Amalganation of Subsidaries

Debenture Redemption Reserve 6.98

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve 1123.31 56.64

Securities Premium Account

As per last Balance Sheet 9497.42 8885.07

Add Refund of issue expenses of FCCBs 0.06

Add Premium payable on conversion of FCCBs 832.39

Refer Note Schedule

Add Premium payabLe on conversion of FCCBs reversed 37.30

Add Premium payable on redemption of FCCBs reversed 7.68

on buyback

Refer Note ii Schedule

Less Premium payabLe on redempt on of FCCBs 333.1 9171.93 257.40 9497.42

Refer Note Schedule
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the Consdidated Balance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31s March 2008

SCHEDULE Contd..

General Reserve

Refer Note Schedule

As per Last Balance Sheet 9079.84 9850.44

Add Depreciation adjustment of Subsidiary 64.43

Refer Note ScheduLe

Add As per the Schemes of Amalgamation of Subsidiaries 6649

Refer Note Schedule

Add As per the Scheme of Arrangement 4829.88

Refer Note Schedule

Add Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 8400.00 400.00

Add As per the Schemes of Amalgamation and 2344.80

Arrangement

Refer Note ScheduLe

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account 5771 .34

Refer Note Schedule

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account 276.55 252.1

Refer Note Schedule

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account 91.07

Refer Note ScheduLe

Less Transferred to Profit and Loss Account 383.54 374.90

Refer Note ScheduLe

Less As per the Scheme of Arrangement 4487.84

Refer Note ScheduLe

Less Add Minority Interest 825.48 24027.62 101 6.55 9079.84

Reserve for Business Restructuring 1287.10 1287.10

Refer Note Schedule

Profit and Loss Account 5631.30 81 86.55

41248.31 27994.32

Created pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Amendment Act 1997 in respect of Reliance Infoinvestments Limited PIlL Subsidiary

of the Company during the previous year Consequent upon the merger of PIlL with Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

RCIL Subsidiary of the Company with effect from 23rd July 2007 the amount of Statutory Reserve is withdrawn as the same

is no Longer required to be carried forward as at 31st March 2008

Created pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Amendment Act 997 in respect of Reliance Communications Investment and

Leasing Limited PILL Subsidiary of Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary of the Company PILL has

become NBFC with effect from 1st ApriL 2008
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedules $rmin part of the Consolidated Batance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat sat
31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

SECURED LOANS

Debenture

11 20 Secured Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures 3000.00
Refer Note below

Term Loans from Banks

Rupee Loans
950.00

Refer Note beLow

3000.00 950.00

Note

Pending the creation of pari-passu charge on moveable and non moveabLe assets excluding land building goodwiLL and brand

name of Reliance InfrateL Limited RITL Subsidiary of the Company Redemption at the end of 0th year from the date of
allotment thereof

The Company has Secured Term Loans referred to above inter a/ia by way of first pan passu mortgage/ charge/ assignment
in favour of the Security Trustees

for the benefit of Financial Institutions and Banks on its investments immovabLe movabLe
and intangible assets/ properties but excluding goodwill brand name and certain other excluded assets including Intellectual

Property Rights aLL revenues accounts receivables both present and future and assignment of rights under specified Project

Documents and the Telecom License greements

SCHEDULE

UNSECURED LOANS

Long Term Loans

Rupee Loans 5600.00
RepayabLe within one year Ps Nil Previous year Ps Nil

Foreign Currency Loans from Banks 11607.1 7664.82

RepayabLe within one year Rs NiL Previous year Rs Nil

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs 7083.51 24290.63 5493.23 131 58.05

RepayabLe within one year Rs Nil Previous year Rs NiL

Refer Note and ii Schedule

Short Term Loans

From Banks

Foreign Currency Loans 561 6.88 4253.65

Rupee Loans 5300.00 7075.00

Commercial Papers 954.74

From Others 11871.62 385.00 11713.65

361 62.25 24871.70
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Reliance Communications Limited

Scheduesforminl part of the ConsoLidated BaLance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments

In Government and Other Securities

Unquoted

Year National Savings Certificates 0.02 0.02

Lodged with SaLes Tax Department

1/2 years Kisan Vikas Patra

Lodged with Chennal MetropoLitan DeveLopment Authority 0.02
_________

0.02

Ps 5000 Previous year Ps 5000
Trade Investment

In Equity Shares of Companies

Unquoted fully paid up

65025000 Warf Telecom InternationaL Private Limited of MRF each 22.31 22.31

6.50.25000 Less Share of Loss of Associates 0.41 2.00

21.90 20.31

8.83.819 World Tel Holding Limited Bermuda under Liquidation

8.838 of USD 0.05 each

Nil Reliance Cementation Private Limited of Rs 10 each Rs.1 .000

100

2100 Macronet Private Limited of Ps 10 each Ps 21.000

2.100 Less Share of Loss of Associates Ps 21000

2101 Macronet Mercantile Private Limited of Rs 10 each Ps
Nil 21010

Less Share of Loss of Associates Ps Nil

000 International Convention Centre Constructions Private LLimited

5000 of Rs 10 each Ps 50.000

Nil Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited of USD each 0.47

100000
4000 eWave Global of no par vaLue 22.32

Nil 44.22 ________ 20.78

In Preference Shares of Companies

Unquoted fully paid up

1000000 9% Redeemable Preference Shares of Reliance BPO Limited of 5.00 5.00

1000000 Ps each

25001 Preference Shares of Luxfield Enterprises Limited of USD 2.30 29.33

Nil each

Nil Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative Preference 108.97

250.010 Shares of Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited of USD 100 each

Secured Convertible Promissory Note of Telsima Corporation 17.75

Nil

2045455 Series Preferred Stock of Stoke Inc of USD 2.2 each 22.82

Nil

585993 Series Preferred Stock of Scalable Display Technologies Inc of 4.82

Nil USD 1.62 each

71 1438 Series Convertible Preference Shares of Pelago Inc of USD 2.17

Nil 3.37 each

61 7589 Preference Stock of Sequans Communication of Euro 2.024 9.46

Nil each

1463415 Series Preferred Stock of Stoke Inc of USD 2.05 each 5.30

Nil
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Reliance Communications Limited

Sthedues forming part of he CDflSOId$e4 BalanCe Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE Contd...

8474576 Series Preferred Stock of Band Communications Corporation 5.34

Nil of USD 0.354 each

________ 231.99 113.97

In Partnership Firm

Unquoted fulLy paid up

Tip Top Typography 5.25

Less Share of Loss in the Partnersip Firm 0.01
Reliance Capital Infrastructure 5.24

Current Investments

Other Investments

In Government Bonds

Quoted

1000000 11.99% GUI Bonds 2009 of Rs 100 each fully paid up 10.01 10.43

10.00000

Nil 8.35% GUI Bonds 2022 of Rs 100 each
fully paid up 10.12

10.00.000

Nil 7.99% GUI Bonds 201 of Rs 100 each fully paid up 5.05

5.00.000

2000000 7.95% GUI Bonds 2032 of Rs 100 each fully paid up 20.29

Nil

1500000 8.24% GUI Bonds 2018 of Rs 100 each
fully paid up 16.24

Nil

500.000 7.94% GUI Bonds 2021 of Rs 100 each fully paid up 5.18

Nil

1634000 6.83% GUI Bonds 2039 of Rs 100 each
fully paid up 14.56

Nil

40.00.000 6.05% GUI Bonds 2019 of Rs 100 each
fully paid up 37.29

Nil

1000000 7.56% GUI Bonds 2014 of Rs 100 each fully paid up 10.38

Nil

1000.000 7% GUI Fertilizer Bonds of Rs 100 each fully paid up 9.22

Nil

Nil 8.33% GUI Bonds 2036 of Rs 100 each
fully paid up 9.90

1UUUUUU _______ 123.17 _______ 45.50

In Bonds and Debentures

Quoted

50 9.70% HDFC 201 of Rs 1000000 each fully paid up 5.U7 5.00

50
250 11 .25% PFC 2018 of Rs 1000000 each

fully paid up 28.45

Nil

Nil 9.80% PFC 201 of Rs 1000000 each fully paid up 5.05

50
50 11.00% PFC 2018 of Rs 1000000 each fully paid up 15.02

Nil

50 8.45% IRFC 201 of Rs UOU000 each
fully paid up 4.80

Nil

Nil 9.28% PFC 2017 of Rs 1000000 each fully paid up 24.77

250
Nil 9.25% EXIM 201 of Rs U00UUU each

fully paid up 24.79

250
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedules frmin part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE Contd...

9.20% HDFC 2012 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 24.80

250
Nil 880% IDFC 2009 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 24.78

250
Nil 8.75% IRFC 201 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 29.42

300
250 8.55% IRFC 2019 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 24.17

Nil

Nil 9.50% HDFC 201 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 50.00

500
100 7.25% ICICI 2011 of Ps 000000 each

fully paid up 9.43 9.43

100
Nil 10.10% SBI 2022 of Ps 1000000 each

fully paid up 46.77

450
Nil 9.07% Pural Electrification Corporation Limited of 24.47

250 Ps 000000 each
fully paid up

100 8.46% IPFC 2014 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 9.94

Nil

250 NCD 0.20% TISCO 201 of Ps 1000000 each
fully paid up 25.00

Nil

Nil 0.00 HDFC 2008 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid up 9.03

200
Nil 5.85% HDFC 2009 of Rs 1000000 each fully paid up 33.71

350
Nil 8.40% HDFC 2008 of Ps 000000 each fully paid up 199.1

2000
650 NCD 10.00% Citi Financial Consumer Finance India Limited of 65.75 65.00

650 Ps 1000000 each fully paid up

1400 NCD 8.65% Citi Financial Consumer Finance India Limited 38.45 38.45

1400 2009 of Ps 1000000 each
fully paid up ________ 326.08 724.59

In Bonds and Debentures

Unquoted

6.1 7589 Convertible Bonds of Sequans Communications of Euro 2.024 9.46

Nil each

Nil 9.80% NABAPD Bond 201 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid 5.00

150 up

Nil 9.50% NABARD Bond 201 of Ps 1000000 each fully paid 30.02

300 up

Nil 5.75% EXIM 2008 of Ps 000000 each
fully paid up 9.82

200
Nil NCD of Citicorp Finance India Limited of Ps 10000000 149.94

50 each
fully paid up

1000 NCD Tata Sons 2010 of Ps 1000000 each
fully paid up 100.29 100.00

1000 _______ 109.75 _______ 314.78

In Certificate of Deposits CD
Unquoted

7500 Canara Bank of Ps 100000 each fully paid up 70.00 45.69

5000
Nil Indian Bank of Ps 100000 each fully paid up 2287

2.500
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Schehits formini part of the onoUdated 6atance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE Contd...

Nil Oriental Bank of Commerce of Rs 00000 each fully paid up 22.81

2500
2500 Bank of India of Ps 100000 each fully paid up 23.29

Nil

Nil Corporation Bank of Rs 100000 each
fully paid up 23.01

2500
7500 Punjab National Bank of Ps 100000 each

fully paid up 71.57 11 6.51

12500
Nil State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur of Ps 100000 each fully paid 23.74

2.500 up

Nil State Bank of Indore of Ps 100.000 each fully paid up 24.59

2500
Nil State Bank of Saurashtra of Ps 100000 each fully paid up 24.59

2500
2500 State Bank oflravancore of Ps 100000 each

fully paid up 23.64 23.12

2.500

Nil Union Bank of India of Ps 100000 each
fully paid up 23.89

2500
5000 Syndicate Bank of Ps 100000 each

fully paid up 46.42

Nit

2500 State Bank of Patiala of Ps 100000 each fully paid up 23.37 22.87

2.500
________ 258.29 ________ 373.69

In Pass Through Certificate PTC

Unquoted

Nil ICICI Bank Limited PlC XV of Ps 97 92 416 each 25.35

150 25.35

In Units of MutuaL Funds

Unquoted

Nil Kotak FMP 17 Months Series -IP Growth of Ps 10 each 5.00

5000000
20000000 Reliance FHF Plan Series IP Growth of Ps 10 each 20.00 20.00

20000000
Nil Lotus India FMP 14 Months Series III IP Growth of Ps 11 .00

11000000 10 each

Nit Peliance FHF AP Series IP Growth of Rs 10 each 60.00

60000000
Nit Peliance FHF AP -Series IP-Dividend of Ps 10 each 400.00

400000.000

100000000 Reliance FHF Series IP Growth of Rs 10 each 100.00 100.00

100000000
Nil Peliance FHF AP Series IP Growth of Rs 10 each 250.00

50000000
Nil Reliance FHF AP Series Growth of Rs 10 each 21 50.00

2.1 50000000

1328082463 Reliance Liquidity Fund Growth of Ps 10 each 1758.39 1618.34

13312.57.597

Nil Peliance FHF AP Series IP Growth of Ps 10 each 1650.00

1650000000

Nil Kotak FMP 6Month Series Growth of Ps 10 each 10.00

10000000
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Reliance Communications Limited

SchdUkfrn1ng pait of the aio1idatEd Balance Sheet. .-
...

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE Contd...

Ni Kotak FMP 14 Months Series 2-IP-Growth of Rs 10 each 30.00

3.0000000

Nil Reliance FHF AP Series IP Growth of Ps 10 each 250.00

50000000
425921833 LIC ME Income Plus Fund Growth of Ps 10 each 500.16

Nil

4428610 Reliance Money Manager Fund IP Growth of Rs 1000 each 528.56

Nil

451 78546 Reliance Interval Fund-Annual Series I-IP-Growth of Ps 10 each 50.00

Nil

1277356651 Reliance Medium Term Fund Growth of Ps 10 each 2320.84

Nil

50940244 JPMorgan India Treasury Fund Super IP-Growth of Rs 10 each 58.14

Nil

597330316 Reliance Liquidity Fund TP-IP-Growth of Ps 10 each 1276.76 13.20

80.39092

637923 Reliance Floating Rate Fund Daily Dividend Reinvestment Plan .65 0.06

63342 of Rs 10 each

74752679 Canara Robeco Liquid Plus Super IP Growth of Rs 10 each 99.02

Nil

700000000 Reliance FHF 10 Series Super IP Growth of Rs 10 700.00

Nil each

11 847475 BGI USD Liquidity First Fund Institutional Share Class of USD 70.82

38.60.1 9375 each 1552.13

Nil BGI Euro Liquidity First Fund Institutional Share Class of Euro 6.09

961448 each

Nil BGI Sterling Liquidity First Fund Institutional Share Class of 3.72

1718866 GBP each

Nil Ordinary Shares in 2i Capital PCC of USD 0.01 each 37.78

3434
6580 USD Liquidity Investment Fund of USD each 982.60 1096.45

26000
Nil SWFB of USD each 7.18

1785734

________ 8466.94 ________ 9380.95

9565.70 10999.63

Note Aggregate Book Value of Investments

Unquoted Investments 9116.45 10229.54

Quoted Investments Market Value Ps 455.82 crore Previous 449.25 770.09

year Rs.772.1 crore
_________ _________

Total 9565.70 10999.63
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ReLiance Communications Limited

Schedutes formtnf part othe CnnsoUdted Balance $heet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31St March 2008

SCHEDULE

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Stores and Spares 387.75 295.94

Communications Devices and Accessories 54.97 542.72 109.94 405.88

Sundry Debtors Unsecured

Due for more than six months

Considered good 851 .28 449.67

Considered doubtful 394.66 724.60

124.94 1174.27

Less Provision for doubtful debts 394.66 724.60

851 .28 449.67

Others

Considered good 3110.49 2272.70

Considered doubtful 65.36 59.30

31 75.85 2332.00

Less Provision for doubtful debts 65.36 59.30

3110.49 3961.77 2272.70 2722.37

Cash and Bank BaLances

Cash on hand 0.32 0.50

Cheques on hand 53.73 82.30

Remittances in Transit 114.83

BaLance with Banks

In Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks 483.37 259.31

In Current Accounts with Other Banks 278.75 27.1

In Export Earning Foreign Currency Accounts with 23622 77.60

Scheduled Banks

In Fixed Deposits with Banks 630.51 1682.90 216.51 878.18

Other Current Assets

Interest accrued on Investments Refer Note 15 Schedule 88.91 51 5.47

Deposits 1670.38 1601 .87

Others 2.1 1771.41 188.47 2305.81

Deposits include Ps 11 3647 crore paid against disputed

claims Refer Note Schedule Previous year Ps

829.47 crore

7958.80 631 2.24

Ps 0.70 crore being 0.02% Previous year Ps 5.94 crore being 2.01 is determined based on the First In First Out method

of Inventory valuation and the balance is based on Weighted Average method

Net of faw value change by Ps 56 crore
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedutes forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be

received

Considered good 6754.61 4268.18

Considered doubtfuL 32.1 291

6886.76 4397.29

Less Provision for doubtful advance 32.1 6754.61 29.11 4268.18

IncLudes subsidy receivable Ps 82.1 crore

Previous year Rs 141 .38 crore

Balance with Customs Central Excise Authorities etc 1.06 1.30

6755.67 4269.48

SCHEDULE

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors

Dues to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 26.52 41 .03

Refer Note ScheduLe

Others 4520.59 8653.77

Liability for leased assets 356.72 0.38

Interest accrued but not due on loans 109.74 114.95

Unclaimed Dividend 3.20 1.32

Other Liabilities 4883.84 2661 .34

Advance from Customers and Unearned Income 5971 .22 4148.46

IncLudes subsidy deferred Rs 53.24 crore

Previous year Ps 141.93 crore 15971.83 ____________ 5621.25

Provisions

Income Tax net of advanced tax 21 2.53 197.66

Fringe Benefit Tax net of taxes paid 2.24 4.20

Wealth Tax net of taxes paid 1.06 1.32

Disputed and Other Claims 1844.80 1905.20

Refer Note ScheduLe

Retirement Benefits 44.84 11 6.48

Commission to Non Executive Directors 0.60 35.00

Business Restructuring 1433.10 1796.1

Refer Note ScheduLe

Assets Retirement Obligations 277.22 219.28

Refer Note Schedule

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 54.80

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares 65.1

Tax on Dividend 28.06 4109.57 26.31 4456.37

20081.40 20077.62

Includes for CapitaL Expenditure Rs 41 70.57 crore Previous year Ps 5724.64 crore
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedutes forminq part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Rs in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

SERVICE REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Service Revenue 23215.92 18871.70

Less Service Tax 2473.01 20742.91 1723.22 71 48.48

Other 0peratin Income 1520.09 1733.81

Less Service/Sales Tax 2.46 1507.63 54.90 .678.91

IncLudes reatisation from teLecom terminals and accessories

debtors etc

22250.54 18827.39

SCHEDULE

OTHER INCOME

Profit on Sate of Investments 327.82 69.54

Profit on Disposal of Assets 0.19 0.1

Dividend Income 16.30 26.88

Miscellaneous Income 353.61 43.83

697.92 240.37

SCHEDULE

ACCESS CHARGES LICENSE FEES AND NETWORK EXPENSES

Access Charc7es 2381.67 2819.65

License Fees 1186.51 1238.64

RentRates and Taxes 292.07 27.22

Network Repairs and Maintenance 1378.84 809.86

Stores and Spares Consumed 103.87 51.62

Power Fuel arid Utilities 841.85 544.3

Cost of Service Contents and Applications 241.06 92.72

Other Network Operating Expenses 1558.65 575.03

7984.52 6259.07

SCHEDULE

PAYMENT TO AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES

IncLudinc Manaeriat Remuneration

Salaries 1444.13 982.87

Including Managerial Remuneration Ps 0.70 crore

Previous year Ps 0.53 crore

Contribution to Provident Gratuity and Superannuation Fund 94.41 85.11

Employee Welfare and Other Amenities 138.01 99.54

.676.55 1167.52
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Reliance Communications Limited

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Rs in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

SCHEDULE

SALES AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

SeLin Expenses

Commission 350.26 409.88

Selling and Marketing 676.82 423.58

Advertisement 386.65 501 .21

Customer Acquisition and Customer Care 421.70 415.96

Cost of Sale of Telecom Terminals and Accessories 285.33 2.1 20.76 509.18 2259.81

Provision for Doubtful Debts Loans and Advances 136.81 147.51

General Administration Expenses

Insurance 35.30 24.52

Rent Rates and Taxes 220.44 149.06

Repairs and Maintenance

Machinery 0.1 0.21

Building 16.80 21.51

Others 36.41 43.51

Travelling 116.26 123.54

Professional Fees 182.13 59.57

Foreign Exchange Gain/ Loss on Debtors/ Creditors net 23.66 148.35

Loss on Sale/ Discarding of Assets 0.06 5.28

Investment written off .93

Other General and Administrative Expenses 987.19 598.39

WeatthTax 0.64 1719.02 0.39 989.56

Payment to Auditors 9.66 9.06

3986.25 3405.94

SCHEDULE

FINANCIAL CHARGES NET
Interest and Other charges on Term Loans 563.74 553.77

Interest on Other Loans 648.10 1211.84 478.96 1032.73

Other Financial Cost 46.67 35.38

Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuation Gain/ Loss net 187.40 422.30

1071.11 64581

SCHEDULE II

FINANCIAL INCOME

Income from Investments and Interest Income 239.39 1045.51

Tax deducted at source Rs.4.73 crore

Previous year Rs 37.76 crore Refer Note Schedule

Distribution of income by Reliance Communications 338.67

Shareholders Trust

Refer Note 20 Schedule
___________ ___________

1578.06 1045.51
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Reliance Communications Limited

Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated Balance sheet and Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE

Principles of Consolidation

The Consol dated Financial Statements relate to Reliance Comrrun cat ons _im ted the Company and at of itc subsidiary compan
and the companies controlled that is the compan es over which the Company exerc ses control/ joint contro over ownership and

voting power and the associates and
jo

nt venture hereinafter collect vely referred to as the Group The Consolidated nanc at

Statements have been prepared on the follow ng bases

The Financ at Statements of the Company and ts subsid ares are consolidated on ineby ne basis by add ng together

the book vaLues of like items of assets liabilities incomes and expenses after fully elm nating intra group balances and intra

group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or tosses in accordance with the Account ng Standard AS 21 Consolidated

FinanciaL Statements as referred to in the Compan es Accounting Standards Rules 2006 Accounting Standard RuLes

In case of the foreign subs diar es and companies controLled by the Company revenue is consol dated at the average exchange
rate prevailing dur ng the year ALL monetary assets and liabil ties are converted at the exchange rate preva Ling at the end of

the year While non monetary assets and lab Lities are recorded at the exchange rate prevaiLing on the date of the transaction

or closing rate as appl cable Any exchange difference arising on consolidation of integraL fore gn operation and non integral

foreign operation recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and Exchange FLuctuation Reseive respectively

Investments in subsid aries are elm nated and differences between the cost of nvestment over the net assets on the date

of investment or on the date of the nanc at statements mmediately preceedng the date of nvestment in subsd aries are

recognised as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be

The difference between the proceeds from sposal of investment in subsidiary or in company controlled by the Company
and the proportionate carry ng amount of its assets less abilities as of the date of sposal recognised the Consol dated

Prof and Loss Account as the
profit or loss on sposal of investment in subsidiaries

nority Interests share of net profit or loss of consol dated subs aries for the year identif ed end adjusted against the

ncome of the Group in order to arrive at the net ncome attributabLe to the Equity Shareholders of the Company

Minority Interests share of net assets of consolidated subs diaries is identified and presented in the consolidated Balance

Sheet as sepante item from liab lit es and the Shareholders Equity

In case of assoc ates where the Company directLy or ndirectly through subs diaries holds 20 or more of Equity Shares

investments in assoc ates are accounted for using equity method in accordance th Accounting Standard AS 23 Account ng
for Investments in Associates in ConsoLjaatea Financial Statements as referred to the Accounting Standard RuLes The

Company accounts for its share in the change in the net assets of the associates post acquisition after eliminat ng unreal sed

profits and Losses result nq from transactions between the Company and its assoc ates to the extent of its share through

its Profit and Loss Account to the extent such change is attributable to the associates Profit and Loss Account based on

ave lable nformation.The difference between the cost of investment in the assoc ates and the share of net assets at the

time of acquisition of shares in the associates is identified the financial statements as GoodwilL or Cap tel Reserve as the

case may be

Interest in jointly controlLed entity is reported using proportionate consol dation

As far as poss ble the Consolidated Financ Statements are prepared us ng un form Account ng Policies for Like transact ons

and other events similar circumstances and are presented the same manner as the standalone nanc al statements of

the Company

Investments other than subsidiar es associates and joint ventures are accounted as per Accounting Standard AS Accounting

for Invectments as referred in the Accounting Standard Rules

Other Siqnificant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The nancial Statements are prepared under hstor cal cost convention and/ fair vatuat on under Scheme approved by

the High Court in accordance with the generally accepted accounting pr nciptes India and provisions of the Companies
Act 956 cad with the Accounting Standard Rules as well as applicable pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India the ICAI

Use of Estimates

The preparat on and presentation of Consol dated FinanciaL Statements requ res est mates and assumpt ons to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and sclosure of contingent liab Lit es on the date of the nancial

statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period fference between the actual

results and est mates is recognised in the period in which the results are known material sed

Fixed Assets

xed Assets are stated at cost/ fair value net of Modvat/ Cenvat VaLue Added Tax and include amount added on

revaluation less accumulated depreciat on amortisation and mpairment Loss any
ii ALl costs includ ng financing cost of qualifying assets commencement of commercial operations net charges of

fore gn exchange contracts and adjustments ars ng upto 31st March 2007 from exchange rate variations reLating to

borrowings attributable to fixed assets are capital red

iii Expenses ncurred reLating to project pr or to commencement of commercial operation are considered as project

deveLopment expenditure and shown under Cap tal Work in Progress

iv Telecom Licenses are stated at fair value less accumulated amortisation

Indefeasible Rights of Connectivity IRC are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
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Reliance Communications Limited

Slnlflcant Accountlrq Policies to the ConsoLidated BaLance sheet and ConsoLidated Profit and Loss Account

Lease

In respect of Operating Leases lease rentals are expensed on straight line basis with reference to the tease term

except for lease rentals pertaining to the period up to the date of commencement of commercial operations which

are capitalised

ii Finance leases prior to st April 2001 Rentals are expensed with reference to the term of lease and other

considerations

iii Finance Leases on or after 1st April 2001 The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum

lease rentals is capitalised as Fixed Assets with corresponding amount shown as liabilities for Leased assets The principal

component in tease rental in respect of the above is adjusted against liabilities for Leased assets and the interest

component is recognised as an expense in the year in which the same is incurred except in case of assets used for

capital projects where it is capitalised

Ce Depreciation Amortisation

Ci Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule

XIV to the Companies Act 956 except in case of the following assets which are depreciated at the rates as given

below

Ducts and Cables 18 20 years

Telecom Electronic Equipments years

Furniture Fixtures and Office Equipments 10 years

Customer Premises Equipments years

Vehicles years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the remaining lease term or useful life

Cable Systems Shorter of years or remaining useful life

In case of Falcon project the asset life of Sub Marine Cable Network and Terrestrial Network is estimated at 25 years

and years respectively

ii Depreciation on assets taken on finance lease on or after 1st April 2001 is provided over the remaining period of lease

from commencement of commercial operations

iii Expenditure of capital nature incurred on assets taken on operating lease is depreciated over the remaining period of

the lease term

iv Leasehold Land is depreciated over the period of the lease term

Cv Intangible assets namely Telecom Licenses and Brand Licenses are amortised equally over the balance period of

Licenses IRC and Software are amortized from the date of acquisition or commencement of commercial services

whichever is later The Rights in Cinematography Films are treated as intangible assets and are amortised over the

balance period of rights remaining after commencement of commercial operation The life of amortisation of the

intangible assets are as follows

Telecom Licenses 2.5 to 20 years

Brand License years

Indefeasible Rights of Connectivity 20 years

Software years

vi Depreciation on additions is calculated pro rata from the following month of addition

Asset Retirement ObLiation ARO
Asset Retirement Obligation ARO relates to the removal of cable systems and equipments when they wilt be retired from its

active use Provision is recognised based on the best estimate of the management of the eventual costs net of recovery

that relates to such obligation and is adjusted to the cost of such assets

Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value An impairment loss is charged

to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired The impairment loss recognised in prior

accounting period is increased reversed where there is change in the estimate of recoverable value The recoverable value

is higher of the assets net
selling price and value in use

Investments

Current Investments are carried at lower of cost and market value computed Investment wise Long Term Investments are

stated at cost Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments is made only if such decline is other than

temporary in the opinion of the management

Inventories of Stores Spares and Communication Devices

Inventories of stores spares and communication devices are accounted for at cost determined on weighted average basis

or net realisable value whichever is less except in case of certain subsidiaries where cost is determined on First In First Out

basis
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Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within tweLve months of rendering the service are classified as short term empLoyee

benefits These benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness Leave The undiscounted

amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by empLoyees are

recognised as an expense during the period

Lonq term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Companys contribution towards Employees Superannuation Plan is recognised as an expense during the period in

which it accrues

ii Defined benefit plans

Provident Fund

Provident Fund contributions are made to Trust administered by the Trustees Interest payable to the Provident Fund

members shaLL not be at rate Lower than the statutory rate Liabibty is recognised for any shortfall in the Income of

the fund visd-vis liability of the Interest to the members as per statutory rates

Gratuity Plan

The Companys gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan The Companys net obligation in respect of the

gratuity benefit scheme is calcuLated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return

for their service in the current and prior periods that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair

value of any plan assets is deducted

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan Is determined based on actuarial valuation using

the Projected Unit Credit Method

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The discount rates used for

determining the present value of the obLigation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on

Government Securities as at the BaLance Sheet date

Actuarial pains and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account

iii Other Long term employment benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the

employee renders the related services are recognised as liability at the present value of the defined benefit obkgation

at the Balance Sheet date determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method The discount

rates used for determining the present value of the obhgation under defined benefit plan are based on the market

yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of quaLifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost

of such assets upto the commencement of commercial operations qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial

period of time to pet ready for intended use Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the year in which they are

incurred

Issue Expenses and Premium on FCCBs

The premium payable on redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs is charged to Securities Premium Account

over the period of the issue Issue expenses are debited to Security Premium account at the time of the issue

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of the

transaction

ii Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates In case of monetary
items which are covered by forward exchange contracts the difference between the transaction rate and the rate on

the date of the contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised

over the life of the contract

iii Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost

iv Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the

Profit and Loss Account

Any income or loss arising out of marking derivative contracts to market price is recognised in the Profit and Loss

Account

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised as arid when the services are provided on the basis of actual usage of the Companys network

Revenue on upfront charges for services with lifetime validity and fixed validity periods of one year or more are

recognised over the estimated useful life of subscribers and specified fixed validity period as appropriate The estimated

useful life is consistent with estimated churn of the subscribers

ii Capacity contracts for Indefeasible Right of Use IRUs relate to specific assets and are accounted for as unearned
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revenue as legal title does not pass to the customer Revenue exclusive of Value Added Taxes is recognised over the

term of the contract Billing
to customers are based on satisfaction of the relevant criteria for revenue recognition

and are included in unearned revenue Certain customers have committed to purchase capacity from the Company at

future date under signed capacity credit agreements Amounts received under these agreements and the capacity

credits granted to suppliers are recorded as unearned revenue until the date the credits are utilised at which time the

unearned revenue is recognised as earned Amounts receivable under these capacity agreements are reflected within

sundry debtors in the accompanying Balance Sheet

iii Standby maintenance charges are invoiced separately from capacity sales Revenues relating to standby maintenance

are recognised over the period in which the service is provided Any amounts billed prior to providing of service are

included in deferred revenue

iv Network revenues are revenues derived from the sale of managed bandwidth leases Internet Protocol IP services

Revenue associated with short term utilisation of capacity to customers is recognised as operating revenue Restoration

revenues are derived for repairs and restoration of damaged network which are recovered from the customer on the

agreed basis and are reflected in the Profit and Loss Account for the year

Sales on Handsets and accessories are recognised when goods are suppied and are recorded net of trade discounts

rebates commissions to distributors and dealers and sales taxes It does not include inter company transfers

vi Interest income on investment is recognised on time proportion basis Dividend is considered when
right

to receive is

established The Group recognises income from the units in the Fixed Income Schemes of Mutual Funds where income

accrued is held till the declaration or payment thereof for the benefit of the unit holders

vii Revenue is recognised net of taxes when the Base Transreceiver Station BTS Towers is Ready for Installation of

customer equipment and as per the terms of the agreements

vii Activation fees in resepct of DTH is recognised on upfront basis at the time of activation of services in customers

premises Subscription revenue towards initial customers are recognised upfront as and when it is realised and the

monthly subscription is recognised on accrual basis net of service tax entertainment tax and trade discount

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances

Provision is made in the Accounts for doubtful debts loans and advances in cases where the management considers the

debts loans and advances to be doubtful of recovery

Miscellaneous Expenditure

Miscellaneous Expenditure is charged to the Profit and Loss Account as and when it is incurred

Taxes on Income Fringe Benefit Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for Income Tax is made on the basis of taxable income for the year at current rates Tax expense comprises of Current

Tax Fringe Benefit Tax and Deferred Tax at the applicable enacted or substantively enacted rates Current Tax represents the

amount of Income Tax payable/ recoverable in respect of the taxable income/ loss for
the reporting period Deferred Tax

represents the effect of timing difference between taxable income and accounting income for the reporting period that

originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods The Deferred Tax Asset is recognised

and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the asset will be realised in future However

where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws Deferred Tax Assets are recognised only

if there is virtual certainty of reaisation of assets MAT credit is recognised as an asset only if there is convincing evidence

that the Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period

Government Grants

Subsidies granted by the Government for providing telecom services in rural areas are recognised as Other Operating Income

in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions of the scheme and agreement

Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is present obligation as

result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources disclosure for contingent liability is made

when there is possible obligation or present obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources

When there is possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote

no provision or disclosure is made Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements

Earning per Share

In determining Earning per Share the Group considers the net profit affer tax and includes the post tax effect of any extra

ordinary/ exceptional item The number of shares used in computing Basic Earnings per Share is the weighted average number

of shares outstanding during the period The number of shares used in computing Diluted Earnings per Share comprises the

weighted average shares considered for deriving Basic Earnings per Share and also the weighted average number of shares

that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares unless the results would be anti dilutive

Dilutive potential Equity Shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at later date

Employee Stock Option Scheme

In respect of stock options granted pursuant to the Companys Employee Stock Option Scheme the intrinsic value of the

options excess of market price of the share over the exercise price of the option is treated as discount and accounted as

employee compensation cost over the vesting period
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SCHEDULE

Previous Year

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified whereever required Previous years figures are not comparable
with that of the current year on account of the effects of the Schemes and on acquisitions/ liquidations made during the year

Consoidation

The following subsidiary companies are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
Sr Name of the subsidiary company Country of Proportion of

No
Incorporation ownership interest

Reliance WiMax Limited India 100.00%
formerly Gateway Systems India Limited

Reliance Digital Home Services Limited India 00.00%
Reliance Gl3bal IDC Limited India 00.00%
Reliance Wabstore Limited India 00.00%
Reliance Inocomm Infrastructure Private Limited India 100.00%

Campion Properties Limited India 00 00%
Reliance Big TV Limited India 00 00%
Reliance Teh Services Private Limited India 89.00%
Reliance Te.ecom Limited India 100.00%
Reliance Ccmmunications Infrastructure Limited India 100.00%

11 Reliance Inirratel Limited India 89.71
Reliance Mobile Limited India 00.00%
Matrix Innovations Limited India 00.00%
Netrzen Rajasthan Limited India 100.00%
Reliance Communications Investment and Leasing Limited India 00.00%
Reliance Globalcom By The Netherlands 00.00%

formerly Reliance Infocom By
17 Reliance Communications UK Limited United Kingdom 100.00%

Reliance Communications Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 00.00%
Reliance Communications Singapore Pte Limited Singapore 100.00%

20 Reliance Communications New Zealand Pte Limited New Zealand 100.00%
21 Reliance Communications Australia Pty Limited Australia 100.00%
22 RCOM Maleysia SDN BHD

Malaysia 00.00%
23 Anupam Global Soft Limited

Uganda 90.00%
24 Reliance Globalcom Limited Bermuda 87.67%
25 FLAG

Pacific Limited Bermuda 87.67%
26 Reliance FLAG Pacific Holdings Limited Bermuda 87.67%

formerly FLAG Pacific Hodings Limited

27 FLAG Telecom Singapore Pte Limited
Singapore 87.67%

28 FLAG Atlantic UK Limited United Kingdom 87.67%
29 Reliance FLAG Atlantic France SAS France 87.67%
30 FLAG Telecom Taiwan Limited Taiwan 52.61
31 FLAG Telecom Taiwan Services Limited Taiwan 87.67%
32 FLAG Teleccrm Group Services Limited Bermuda 87.67%
33 FLAG Telecom Deutschland GmbH

Germany 87.67%
34 FLAG Telecom Hellas AE Greece 87.67%
35 FLAG Telecom Asia Limited

Hong Kong 8767%
36 FLAG Telecom Nederland BV The Netherlands 87.67%
37 Reliance Globalcom UK Limited United Kingdom 87.67%
38 Yipes Holdings Inc USA 88.58%
39 Reliance Globalcom Services Inc USA 88.58%
40 Yipes Systems Inc USA 88.58%
41 YTV Inc USA 88.58%
42 Reliance Infocom Inc USA 88.58%
43 Reliance Communications Inc USA 88.58%
44 Reliance Communications International Inc USA 88.58%
45 Reliance Communications Canada Inc USA 88.58%
46 Reliance Netway Inc USA 88.58%
47 FLAG Telecom Development Limited Bermuda 87.67%
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48 FLAG Access India Private Limited

49 FLAG Telecom Development Serv ces Company LLC

50 FLAGWEB Lim ted

51 FLAG Telecom Network Services Limited

52 Retance FLAG Telecom Ireland Limited

53 FLAG Telecom Serviz Italia SpA

54 FLAG Telecom Japan Limited

55 FLAG Telecom Espana Network SAU

56 FLAG Telecom Ireland Network Limited

57 FLAG Telecom Network USA Limited

58 FLAG Telecom Belgium Network SA

No

Seoul Telenet Inc

FLAG Holdings Taivvan mited

Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Cyprus Holdings mited

Lagerwood Investments Limited

Reliance Vanco Group Ltd

formerly Vance Group Ltd

Euronet Spain SA

Net rect SA Properietary Ltd

Vance India Pr vate Lmited

Vanco Shanghai Co Ltd

Vance ApS

Vance Asia Pac fic Pte Ltd

Vance Australasia Pty Ltd

Vance EpE

10 Vance Sp Zoo

11 Vance Euronet Sro

Vance Gmbh

Vance Hong Kong Solutions Ltd

14 Vance Japan KK

Vance Net Direct Ltd

Vance Net Direct Ltd

17 Vance NV

Vanco SAS

Vanco South America Ltda

20 Vance SrI

21 Vance Sweden AB

22 Vance Switzerland AG

23 Vance Deutschland GmbH

24 Vance BV

25 Vance Benelux BV

26 Vance UK Ltd

Egypt

Bermuda

Ireland

Ireland

Country of

Incorporation

Korea

Taiwan

Cyprus

Cyprus

Country of

Incorporation

MaId yes

do Spain

do South Afr ca

do India

do China

do Denmark

do Singapore

do Austral

do Greece

do Poland

do Czech Republic

do Germany

do Hong Kong

do Japan

do United ngdom

do Ireland

do Belgium

do France

do Brazil

do Italy

do Sweden

do Sw tzerland

do Germany

do The Netherlands

The Netherlands

United Kingdom

87 67%

87 67%

87.67/c

87.67%

87.6 7%

87.67%

87.6 7%

87 67%

87 67%

87.67%

87 67

Proportion of

ownership interest

42.96%

43.84%

0.00%

00

Proportion of

ownership interest

20.00%

21 .00%

21.00%

87 67

87 67%

87 67/

87 67%
87 .67%

87.67c

87.67%

87.67

87 67

87 67%

87.6797

87 67%

87.67

87 67

87 67o

87 67
87 67c

87 67 0/

87.6 0/

87 67

87 67o

87 67
87 67H
87.67

87.677

India

Italy

Japan

Spain

Ireland

USA

Belgium

The Company also consol dates the following companies as it exercises control over ownership and/ or composition of Beard

of Directors

Sr Name of the subsidiary company

No

The associate compan es considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are

Sr Name of the company

Warf Te ecom International Pr vate mited

Macronet Private Limited Ind

Macronet Mercantile Private mited e.f 4th March 2009 India

The fellow ng subsidiary compan es acquired during the year also form part of Consolidated nancial Statements

Sr Name of the subsidiary company Country of Proportion of

No Incorporation ownership interest

w.e.f 25th May 2008 United Kingdom 87 67%

do

wef 25th May 2008
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27 Vanco International Ltd

28 Vanco Row Limited

29 Vanco Global Ltd

30 WANcom Gmbh

31 VNO Direct Ltd

32 Vanco US LLC

33 Vanco Solutions Inc

34 Reliance WiMAX World BVI

formerly eWave World Limited

35 Reliance WiMAX World BV

36 Reliance WiMAX World Limited

37 Reliance WiMAX World LLC

38 Reliance WiMAX Congo Brazzavilie BV

39 Interconnect Brazzaville

40 Reliance WiMAX Guinea By

41 Acess Guinea SARL

42 Reliance WiMAX Sierra Leone

43 Equatorial Communications Limited

44 Reliance WiMAX Cameroon

45 Equatorial Communications SARL

46 Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited

do

w.e.f 4th April 2008

w.e.f 26th Aug 2008

w.e.f 26th Aug 2008

w.e.f 23rd Sep 2008

w.e.f 21st Oct. 2008

w.e.f 21st Oct 2008

w.e.f 10th Sep 2008

w.e.f 10th Sep 2008

w.e.f 8th Dec 2008

w.e.f 18th Dec 2008

w.e.f 8th Dec 2008

w.e.f 8th Dec 2008

w.e.f 1st Oct 2008

USA

British
Virgin Islands

The Netherlands

United Kingdom

USA

The Netherlands

Republic of Congo

The Netherlands

Republic of Guinea

The Netherlands

Sierra Leone

The Netherlands

Republic of Cameroon

Singapore

87.67%

87.67%

87.67%

87.67%

87.67%

87.67%

8767%

90.00%

9000%

90.00%

90.00%

45.90%

45.90%

54.00%

54.00%

67.50%

67.50%

45.90%

45.90%

100.00%

The following subsidiary companies/ companies controlled ceased to remain subsidiaries during the year

Sr Name of the company
No

Reliance Gateway Net Limited Subsidiary of the Company has been merged into the Company The Scheme is effective

from 3th july 2009 whereas appointed date of the Scheme is 31st March 2009

FLAG Telecom France Services Eurl France has been liquidated w.e.f 2nd ApriL 2008
FLAG Telecom France Network SAS France has been liquidated w.e.f 2nd April 2008
FLAG Telecom Korea Limited Korea has been liquidated w.e.f 2nd january 2009
FLAG Telecom Espana SA Spain has been liquidated w.e.f 3th March 2009

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 11 to of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number to 24 of and 46 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 25 to 32 of above

Holding Company of companies Listed in serial number 33 to 38 of and of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 39 to 42 of above

Holding Company of company listed in serial number 43 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 44 to 46 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 48 to 51 of above

Holding Company of company listed in serial number 52 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 53 to 56 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number 57 and 58 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in serial number to 24 26 and 31 of above

Holding Company of company listed in serial number 25 of above

do United Kingdom

do United Kingdom

do United Kingdom

do Switzerland

do United Kingdom

-do- USA

The following companies which are not subsidiary companies under purview of Section of the Companies Act 956 have
also been consolidated

47 Reliance Communications Haryana Private Limited w.e.f 1St April 2008 India 97.32%
48 Reliance Communications Maharashtra Private Limited w.e.f 1St April 2008 India 97.32%
49 Reliance Communications Tamil Nadu Private Limited w.e.f 1St April 2008 India 97.32%
50 Reliance Communications West Bengal Private Limited w.e.f 1st April 2008 India 97.3 2%
51 Reliance Broadcom Private Limited w.e.f 1st April 2008 India 97.32%
The following joint venture company formed during the year also forms part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Sr Name of the company Country of Proportion of

No
Incorporation ownership interest

Alcatel-Lucent Managed Solutions India w.e.f lstjuly 2008 India 33.00%
Private Limited
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Holding Company of companies Listed in serial number 27 to 29 of above

Holding Company of company Listed in seriaL number 30 of above

Holding Company of companies listed in seriaL number 32 and 33 of above

Holding Company of company listed in serial number 35 of above

Holding Company of companies Listed in serial number 36 to 384042 and 44 of above

Holding Company of company Listed in seriaL number 39 of above

Holding Company of company Listed in seriaL number 41 of above

HoLding Company of company Listed in serial number 43 of above

Holding Company of company Listed in seriaL number 45 of above

@Loss on disposaL of subsidiaries is Rs NiL Previous year Rs 1.02 crore

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs

The Company issued FCCBs in two tranches 500000 FCCBs for Year 4.65% USS 500 miLLion issued on 9th May 2006

and 0000 FCCBs for Year 4.95% USD 000 miLLion issued on 28th February 2007 Pursuant to the exercise of an

option by the FCCB HoLders and in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof the Company during the previous

year alLotted 18744801 fuLLy paid Equity Shares of Rs each at pre determined premium of Ps 475.68 per Share

against 203051 FCCBs and 667090 fully paid Equity Shares of Ps each at pre determined premium of Ps 656.23

per Share against 00 FCCBs respectively

ii During the year the Company has bought back and cancelled 350 nos of Year 4.95% FCCBs of the face value of USD

100000 each as per approval of the Reserve Bank of India at discount to the face value This has resulted in saving

of Ps 79.61 crore which has been reflected as part of Other Income Consequent upon such buy back and cancellation

the Companys obLigations to convert the said Bonds into Shares if so claimed by the Bond Holders and/ or to redeem the

same in foreign currency has come to an end vis-à-vis the cancelled Bonds Ps 7.68 crore Previous year Ps Nil being

premium on redemption has been reversed on buyback of FCCBs

Out of total FCCBs issued 296949 FCCBs and 9550 FCCBs were outstanding as on 31st March 2009

iii In the event these outstanding FCCBs are fully
converted into Equity Shares the Equity Share CapitaL of the Company wouLd

increase by approximateLy 9.11 crore Equity Shares of Ps each

iv In case of the above mentioned FCCB5 on and at anytime after 9th May 2009 and 28th February 2010 respectiveLy on

and prior to the maturity date the Company may subject to certain terms and conditions as per the offering memorandum

redeem the FCCBs in whoLe and not in part dt their Early Redemption amount provided that no such redemption may be

made unLess the aggregate vaLue as defined in the terms and conditions on each trading day during the period of not less

than 30 consecutive trading days ending not earlier than days prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption

is given was at Least 30 percent of the EarLy Redemption amount

FCCBs amount includes Ps 733.62 crore Previous period Ps 330.00 crore being the premium on redemption of FCCBs

computed on pro rata basis for the period up to 31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Foreign Exchange

On account of various factors including in particular an amendment to ScheduLe VI of the Companies Act 956 the Act

withdrawing the requirement to adjust changes in the amounts of liabiLity relating to Loans/ liabilities in foreign currency attributable

to Fixed Assets acquired by the Company in the cost of the said Fixed Assets the Group has decided after the end of the FinanciaL

Year 2008 09 and after the approvaL of the Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter and the year ended on 31st March

2009 that it would be more appropriate to account for the changes in the amounts of liabiLities consequent to changes in foreign

exchange rates as profit or loss of the Company for the year in which the changes take place without adjusting the amount of

the change in the cost of fixed assets

The accounting poLicy is in line with the Accounting Standard AS 11 The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Pates as

also in line with the accounting policy adopted by the Company in the Previous year ended 31st March 2008 and the accounting

poLicy followed by the Company for simiLar changes reLating to liabiLities expressed in foreign exchange other than those relating

to fixed assets

Accordingly in respect of the year ended on 31St March 2009 Ps 5998.56 crore being the foreign exchange difference

reLating to such Loans/ liabiLities which were earlier adjusted in the cost of fixed assets have now been charged to the Profit

and Loss Account and net foreign exchange gain of Ps 227 22 crore has been reversed Net amount of Ps 5771 .34 crore

has been withdrawn from the General Reserve of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Schemes of Arrangement

as determined by the Board and as referred in Note ii and iii below ConsequentLy there is no impact vis-à-vis
profits of

the year ended 31st March 2009 of such charge except for consequentiaL effects relating to depreciation etc which have been

appropriately dealt with

Further to the above during the year Loss of Ps 63.05 crore Previous year Ps 468.73 crore arising
out of marking related

Derivative Contracts to market has aLso been recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in compliance with the announcement

dated 29th March 2008 by the ICAI regarding Accounting for Derivatives The net gain of Ps 87.40 crore Previous year Ps

422.30 crore including gain on account of conversion of overseas bank balances amounting to Ps 36.71 crore Previous year

Ps 67.53 crore is refLected in FinanciaL Charges net as the effect of Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuation
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Schemes of AmaLgamation and Arranqement of earlier years

The Company during the past years undertook various Schemes including restructuring of ownership structure of telecom business

so as to align the interest of the shareholders Accordingly pursuant to the Schemes of Amalgamation and Arrangement the
Schemes under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956 approved by Honble High Court of respective judicature
the Company during the respective years recorded all necessary accounting effects along with requisite disclosure in the notes
to the accounts in accordance with the provisions of the said Schemes The cumulative effects of the Schemes in case of Equity
Share Capital of the Company have been disclosed below the respective Schedule to the Accounts Reserves pursuant to the

said Schemes include

Ci Rs 949742 crore credited to Securities Premium Account being part of the Securities Premium of erstwhile Reliance

Infocomm Limited PlC the transferor company representing the amount attributable to shares of RIC other than those

being cancelled under the Schemes

ii Rs 4829.88 crore credited to General Reserve pursuant to fair valuation of Passive Infrastructure by Reliance Infratel Limited

RITL and revaluation of remaining Fixed Assets by Reliance Telecom Limited RTL after adjusting by an amount equal to

write off of Passive Infrastructure by RTL consequent upon transfer thereof to RITL difference between the written down
value of Passive Infrastructure Assets arrived on SLM and WDV method of depreciation upon transfer thereof by RTL to

RITL The Scheme permits the Company to utilise General Reserve created at its own discretion including in particular for

additional depreciation

iii Rs 66.49 crore credited to General Reserve pursuant to the Schemes of Amalgamation of Reliance Infoinvestments Limited

PIlL and Synergy Enterprenure Solutions Private Limited SESPL into Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

RCIL
Civ Rs 4487.84 crore credited to Reserve

for Business Restructuring pursuant to revaluation of Companys investment in RCIL

consequent to RCIL recognizing in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement the additional value debited to Reliance

Infratel Limited RITL upon transfer to RITL of the Passive Infrastructure Division of the Company and of RTL After withdrawing

therefrom Rs 3200.74 crore being an amount equivalent to writing off Passive Infrastructure assets transferred to Reliance

Infratel Limited RITL to the Profit and Loss Account balance of Rs 1287.10 crore shall be available to meet the increased

depreciation costs expenses and losses including on account of impairment of or write down of assets etc
Cv Additional depreciation arising

on fair value of the assets has been adjusted to Provision for Business Restructuring

Cvi As prescribed under the Scheme for transfer of Passive Infrastructure Reliance
Infratel Limited RITL has during the year

withdrawn fuel expenses of Ps 91 .07 crore from General Reserve

vii Additional depreciation of subsidiaries consequent upon revluation of assets carried out has been adjusted to General

Reserve

Cviii Pursuant to the demerger the Company computed goodwill of Rs 2658.75 crore
arising on consolidation using the step up

method based on date of original
investment by Reliance Industries Limited RIL prior to demerger instead of considering

the date of demerger as the date of investment in absence of specific guidance in AS 21 in demerged scenario

Schemes of Amalqamation and Arrangement
Ci Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation the Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956

sanctioned by the Honble High Court of Bombay vide Order dated 3rd July 2009 and filed with the Registrar of Companies
RoC on 3th July 2009 Reliance Gateway Net Limited RGNL Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company engaged
in telecommunication allied activities and as holding company for all the offshore investments of the Company has been
amalgamated into the Company with effect from the Appointed Date as 31st March 2009

Upon the Scheme becoming effective

All the assets and liabilities as appearing in the books of RGNL as on the Appointed Date have been recorded at their

respective fair values by the Company

Cb In accordance with the Scheme the net effect on fair valuation of assets and liabilities of the Company identified

by the Board as prescribed to be fair valued based on market approach/ depreciated replacement cost basis by an

independent valuer for this purpose Identified Assets of Ps 2344.80 crore has been transferred to General

Reserve in Consolidated Accounts to be dealt with in accordance with the Scheme

Had the Scheme not prescribed this treatment in the Consolidated Accounts General Reserve would have been lower

by Rs 2344.80 crore

ii Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement the Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 956 sanctioned

by the Honble High Court of Bombay vide Order dated 9th June 2009 the Treasury Activities as defined in the Scheme
of Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited RCIL Subsidiary of the Company have been transferred and vested

into Reliance Telecom Limited RTL Subsidiary of the Company with effect from the Appointed Date as April 2008
Since the Scheme between two wholly owned subsidiaries uf the Company does not involve any movement of assets or

liabilities to any company outside the group controlled by the Company RTL is not required to issue any shares or pay any
consideration to either RCIL or to its shareholders

Upon the Scheme becoming effective all assets and liabilities pertaining to the Treasury Activities as appearing in the books
of RCIL as on the Appointed Date have been recorded at their fair values by RTL In Consolidated Accounts the effects of
the transactions between the subsidiaries have been reversed
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iii Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement the Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 956 the Honble

High Court of Bombay pronounced an Order on 8th July 2009 the Optic Fibre Undertaking as defined in the Scheme of

the Company shall be transferred and vested into Reliance Infratel Limited PITL Subsidiary of the Company engaged

in providing Telecom Infrastructure Services with effect from the Appointed Date 1st April 2008

As per the Scheme RITL is required to record in its books all the assets and liabilities pertaining to Optic Fibre Undertaking

as appearing in the books of the Company as on the Appointed Date at their respective fair values

The Scheme shaLl become effective upon the Company filing the Order of the Honble High Court sanctioning the Scheme

with the RoC as required by Section 3943 of the Companies Act 956 Pending such filing the Accounts have been

compiled as if the Scheme has become effective and consequently Rs 5771 .34 crore has been withdrawn from General

Reserve in the Consolidated Accounts

Project Development Expenditure

Details of Project Development Expenditure Included under Capital Work-in-Progress

Ps in crore

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Opening Balance 422.76 299.20

Add

Project Development Expenditure incurred during the year 1285.47 428.09

Interest on Term loans 337.68 1623.1 59.87 487.96

2045.91 787.1

Less

Capitalised during the year 1274.76 363.16

Sale of scrap 1274.76 1.24 364.40

Closing Balance 771.16 422.76

Provisions

Provisions include provision for disputed claims and others of Rs 1844.80 crore Previous year Ps.1 90520 crore

provision for
Commission to Non Executive Directors of Ps 0.60 crore Previous year Ps 35.00 crore and provisions for

Asset Retirement Obligation APO made by the Companys subsidiary in respect of undersea cables and equipments Rs

277.22 crore Previous year Rs 219.28 crore

Provision for disputed claims and others consist of disputed claims of Ps 1835.76 crore Previous year Ps 1896.1 crore

and for verification of customers Ps 9.04 dare Previous year Ps 9.04 crore

ii During the year an amount of Ps Nil Previous year Ps 49.52 crore relating to Access Deficit Charge ADC Ps 4.40

crore relating to commission to Non Executive Directors Previous year Ps 5.01 crore have been reversed An amount of

Ps Nil Previous year Rs 06.39 crore has been provided towards disputed interconnect usage charges an amount of Ps

31.18 crore Previous year Ps Nil has been reversed out of disputed interconnect usage charges and Ps Nil Previous year

Rs 25.77 crore has been provided towards disputed spectrum charges An amount of Ps NIL Previous year Ps 14.87

crore has been utilised towards address verification of prepaid subscribers an amount of Ps 29.22 crore Previous year Ps

Nil crore paid towards disputed liabilities and an amount of Ps 30.60 crore Previous year Ps 30.33 crore paid towards

commission to Non Executive Directors

iii The Board of Directors has approved the payment of commission to Non Executive Directors of Ps 0.60 crore at its meeting

held on 8th August 2009 which will be paid during the year 2009-10

iv Also refer Note 3v above

The aforesaid provisions shall be utilised on settlement of the claims if any thereagainst

Continqent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 31 60.87 14072.65

capital accounts net of advances and not provided for

ii Disputed Liabilities not provided for

-SalesTaxandVAT 109.51 177.09

Custom Excise and Service Tax 13.33 2.96

Entry Tax and Octroi 4.39 11.84

Income Tax 90.26

Other Litigations
34.02 .10

iii Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 26.76 14.56

iv Guarantees given on behalf of other companies for business purpose 145.97 28.49

Bonds executed in favour of Government Authorities 57.17 56.97
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10 Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The Company and its certain subsidiaries being in the business of Telecommunication Services Broadband Network and Internet

Services are eligible for deduction under Section 801A Tax Holiday of the Income tax Act 961 Since the Deferred Tax

Liability in respect of timing difference is expected to reverse during the Tax Holiday Period the same is not recognised in books

of accounts as at 31st March 2009 as per the Accounting Standard AS 22 of Accounting for Taxes on Income as referred

to in Accounting Standard Rules

The Deferred Tax Liabilities relating to other subsidiaries of the Company comprises of the following

Rs in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Related to timing difference on depreciation on fixed assets 14.25 232.56

Related to timing difference on revenue recognition 25.95 40.20 232.56

ii Deferred Tax Asset

Related to carried forward loss 11.32 29.1

Disallowances if any under the Income Tax Act 961 0.78 12.10 0.61 2980
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 28.10 102.76

11 Leases

Finance Lease as lessee

The details of gross investments and minimum rentals outstanding as at 31st March 2009 in respect of fixed assets

acquired on or after st ApriL 2001

Rs in crore
Due Gross Investment Unearned Finance Income Present Value of

Minimum Lease Payments

For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year

ended 31st ended 31st ended 31st ended 31st ended 31st ended 31st

March 2009 March 2008 March 2009 March 2008 March 2009 March 2008

Within one year 0.30 0.20 0.06 0.02 0.24 0.18

Later than one year

and not later than

five years 0.44 0.22 0.05 0.02 0.39 0.20

Later than five years

Total 0.74 0.42 0.11 0.04 0.63 0.38

ii General description of the significant leasing arrangements is as mentioned below

The lease agreement is valid for fixed non cancellable period from the date of commencement of lease rentals

Upon termination of the lease agreement the Company shall return the assets to the lessor

In the event the claim of lessor for depreciation is disallowed partly or fully
in their tax assessment the lease rentals

will increase to the extent of depreciation disallowed to the lessor

Operating Lease

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Estimated future minimum payments under non cancellable operating Leases

Not later than one year 4.83 31.72

ii Later than one year and not later than five years 2.65 40.95

iii Later than five years 66.72 183.53

Particulars of Derivative Instruments

Particulars of Derivative For the year ended 31st March 2009 For year ended 31st March 2008
Instruments acquired No of Value No of Value

for hedging Instruments Instruments

USD in crore Rs in crore USD in crore Rs in crore

Principal Only Swap 6.00 304.32 10 11.70 469.55

Currency Swaps 7.40 375.13 7.40 29673

Interest Rate Swaps FC 27 122.97 6237.12 35 105.10 421 6.61

Interest Rate Swaps INR 28 16.76 850.00 27 30.96 1242.00

Options FC 22 63.80 3236.12 34 147.59 5921.11

Options INR 15.00 760.80 12 61.00 2447.32
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No derivative instruments are for speculation purpose

In respect of Foreign Currency Swap and Interest Rate Swap transactions which are Linked with LIBOR rates and exchange

rate during the binding period of contract the gains Losses if any are recognised on the settlement day or the reporting day

whichever is earlier at the rate prevaiLing on respective day

Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are USS 305.81 crore Previous year USS

320.40 crore equivalent to Ps 550995 crore Previous year Ps 2854.00 crore

The unamortised premium of Buyers Line of Credit to be recognised is Rs 21.32 crore Previous year Ps 36.29 crore for one

or more subsequent accounting periods

13 Disclosure under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises DeveLopment Act 2006

Under the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 MSMED which came into force from 2nd October

2006 certain discLosures are required to be made reLating to MSME On the basis of the information and records avaiLabLe with

the Company the foLLowing disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro and Small enterprises

Ps in crore

Asat Asat

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

PrincipaL amount due to any supplier as at the year end 126.52 41.03

ii Interest due on the principaL amount unpaid at the year end to 1.54 0.47

any supplier

iii Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section of the

MSMED along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

iv Payment made to the enterprises beyond appointed date under 43.56 51.83

Section of MSMED
Amount of interest due and payable for

the period of delay in making 0.90 0.28

payment which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year but without adding the interest specified under MSMED

vi The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 2.42 .43

each accounting year

vii The amount of further interest remaining due and payabLe even in the 0.33

succeeding years until such date when the interest dues as above are

actuaLLy paid to the smaLL enterprises for the purpose of disallowance

as deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED

14 Earninqs per Share EPS
For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Basic and Diluted EPS before Exceptional Items

Profit/ Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders Rs.in crore 6052.41 41 34.53

used as numerator for caLcuLating Basic EPS

ii Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as 2064026881 2052028972

denominator for caLculating Basic EPS

iii Profit/ Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders Rs.in crore 6052.41 3757.16

used as numerator for caLculating Diluted EPS

iv Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as 21 55147125 2163263132

denominator for calculating Diluted EPS

Basic Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps 29.32 20.15

vi Diluted Earnings per Share of Rs each Rs 28.08 7.37

Basic and Diluted EPS after Exceptional Items

Profit/ Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders Rs.in crore 6044.93 5401 .14

used as numerator for calculating EPS

ii Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as 2064026881 2052028972

denominator for calculating Basic EPS

iii Profit Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders Rs.in crore 6044.93 5023.77

used as numerator for calculating Diluted EPS
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For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2009 31st March 2008
iv Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as 21 551 47125 21 632631 32

denominator
for calculating Diluted EPS

Cv Basic Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps 29.29 26 32

vi Diluted Earnings per Share of Ps each Ps 28.05 23.22

Fixed Income Schemes

During the year under the head Income from Investments the Group has accounted an amount of Rs 57.59 crore Previous

year Rs 464.58 crore being its share of accrued interest and realised gains on the units held by it in the Fixed Income Schemes
in the year in which such income accrues instead of the year in which such income is decLared or paid as the trustees are obliged

in terms of the trust deed to hold the income for the benefit of the unit holders

Exceptional Items

Amortisation of compensation includes further charge of Ps 7.47 crore Previous year Rs.1 6.1 crore based on intrinsic value

Options which have been vested under ESOS Plan 2008 and reflected as Excpetional Item in Profit and Loss Account During the

Previous year Exceptional Items included Ps 1282.78 crore being the net gain realized on sale of 5% of the Equity Shares of

Rehance Infratel Limited RITL Subsidiary company by Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Cyprus Holdings Limited RTIHL
subsidiary of Rehance Globalcom BV formerly Reliance Infocom By by virtue of its control of the Board of Directors and owned

by Trust for benefit of the Company and/ or its Shareholders

Restructuring of Share Capital of certain subsidiaries

Ci FLAG Telecom Group Services Limited FTGSL or Buyers Group being the acquirer has executed an Agreement for Sale

of Shares dated 25th May 2008 with Vanco Plc Seller to purchase the Shares of the Subsidiary Companies Refer Note

no Sr no to 33 above at cash consideration of about Ps 281 .26 crore Consequent to the said Agreement the

Buyers Group and thereby Reliance Globalcom Limited PGCL formerly Flag Telecom Group Limited Bermuda Company
which is the Holding Company of the Buyers Group has indirectly acquired control over the said Subsidiary Companies

ii Pursuant to the above RGCL during the period upto 31st December 2008 extended loan of Ps 369.70 crore to Reliance

Vanco Group Limited PVGL and to certain of its subsidiaries The said loan alongwith the right to receive repayment or other

satisfaction of the said loan have been assigned to FTGSL wholly owned subsidiary with effect from 9th March 2009

Consequently RVGL has against the said loan issued 51000 new shares of GBP 0.001 each at premium of GBP 1000

per Share to FTGSL

18 GeneraL Reserve

During the year the Company has in Consolidated Accounts combined the balances of GeneraL Peserve II III and IV and disclosed

as General Reserve General Reserve and II had been created pursuant to the Schemes of Demerger of Telecommunication

Undertaking of Rehance Industries Limited into the Company and the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement of Group
Companies respectively in earher years General Peserve IV has been created pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation with

PGNL Refer Note above

Goodwill

Consequent upon the acquisition of subsidiaries during the year Refer Note above the Company has accounted for Ps

138344 crore as Goodwill on consolidation

20 Income from Investments

Income by way of distribution received from Reliance Communications Shareholders Trust the Trust consists of distribution by the

Trust to Subsidiary of the Company of amounts received by the Trust by way of dividends from Reliance Telecom Infrastructure

Cyprus Holdings Limited RTIHL Board Controlled Subsidiary of the Company PTIHL had declared the dividend in the year

ended on 31st March 2008 out of gains realised from sale of shares of Reliance Infratel Limited RITL Subsidiary of the

Company held by it As the Trust is the sole shareholder of RTIHL the
profits of RTIHL consisting primarily of gains from the saLe

of the said shares of PITL were in that year excluded from the profits of the Company as representing profits attributable to the

Trust

21 Related Parties

As per the Accounting Standard AS 18 ofRelated Party Disclosures as referred to in Accounting Standard Rules the disclosure

of transactions with the related parties as defined therein are given below

List of Related Parties

Name of the Related Party Relationship

Ci Reliance Innoventures Private Limited Ultimate Holding Company

ii AAA Communication Private Limited Holding Company

iii Reliance Capital Limited Fellow subsidiary

iv Reliance General Insurance Company Limited Fellow subsidiary

Cv Shri Anil Ambani Person having control during the year

vi Shri Hasit Shukla Key Managerial Personnel
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Transactions during the year with ReLated Parties

Figures in bracket represent Previous year

Fellow Others

Subsidiaries

ReLiance Capital Limited

Unsecured Loan

Opening Balance as on 1St ApriL 2008

Add Loan taken during the year

Less Repayment during the year

Closing Balance as on 31st March 2009

ii Sundry Debtors

iii Sundry Creditors

iv Income

Service Income

Other Income

Interest Expenses

vi Rent Rates and Taxes

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

Advances

Balance as on st April 2008

Add Advances made during the year

Less Repayment during the year

as on 31 March 2009

ii Sundry Debtors

iii Income

Service Income

iv General and Administration Expenses

Person having control during the year

Shri Anil Ambani Sitting fees

Key ManageriaL Personnel

Shri Hasit Shukia Managerial Remuneration

0.65

17.34

17.27

0.02

0.03

0.70

0.53
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22 Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Company operates two Employee Stock Option Plans ESOS Plan 2008 and ESOS PLan 2009 which cover eligible employees
of the Company the HoLding Company and its Subsidiaries ESOS Plans are administered through an ESOS Trust The vesting of

the options is on the expiry of one year from the date of grant as per Plan under the respective ESOSs In respect of Options

granted the accounting vaLue of Options based on market price nf the share on the date of the grant of the option is accounted
as deferred employee compensation which is amortised on straight line basis over the vesting period Each Option entitles the

holder thereof to appLy for and be aLLotted one Equity Share of the Company of Rs each upon payment of the exercise price

during the exercise period The maximum exercise period is years from the date of grant of Options

The Company has estabLished Trust for the impLementation and management of ESOS
for the benefit of its present and future

employees Advance of Ps 59.00 crore has been granted to the Trust Ps 54.91 crore has been utilised by the Trust for

purchasing 92 lac Equity Shares during the period upto 31St March 2009

Amortization of compensation includes further charge of Ps 7.47 crore Previous year Ps.1 6.1 crore based on intrinsic value

Options which have been vested under ESOS Plan 2008 and refLected as Excpetional Item in Profit and Loss Account Amounts
earlier charged in respect of surrendered Options under ESOS Plan 2008 have been reversed during the year No amount is

chargeable in respect of Options granted under ESOS Plan 2009

Employees Stock Option PLans

Particulars PLAN 2008 PLAN 2009

Number of Weiqhted Number of Weighted

Options averaqe Options average
exercise exercise

price Rs price Rs
No of options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 14991185 371.24 NiL

Number of Options granted Nil 13217975 206.00

Total number of Options surrendered 13217975 369.10 NiL

Number of Options vested during the year 1607320 394.06 Nil

Total number of Options exercised NiL Nil

TotaL number of Options forfeited/ lapsed 65890 382.98 1938980 206.00

No of Options outstanding at the end of the year 1607320 394.06 11278995 206.00

If the entity would have estimated fair vaLue computed on the basis of Black SchoLes pricing model the compensation cost for

the year ended 31st March 2009 for ESOS PLan 2008 and ESOS Plan 2009 would have been Ps 6.64 crore and Rs.9.25 crore

respectively The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options are given below

Particulars ESOS Plan 2008 ESOS Plan 2009

Pisk-free interest rate 7.27% 5.00%

Expected life year year

Expected voLatility 37.58% 70.00%

Expected dividend yield 0.1 386% 0.4301%

Price of the underlying share in market at the time of option grant Ps 541.1 Ps 174.00

23 License Fees

The Company accounts for its liabiLities in respect of Licence Fees payable by way of Revenue Share to be computed on the Gross

Revenue of the Company dfter taking into account the decision of TeLecom Dispute Settlement And Appellate Tribunal TDSAI
dated 30th August 2007 specifying that revenues not related to UAS and Other Licences under which the Company operates

are not to be included in the computation of Revenue Share The TDSAT has by its decision dated 26th March 2009 applied

the said decision dated 30th August 2007 to the Company The decision of the TDSAT is the subject matter of Appeal pending

before the Supreme Court No provision is considered necessary in this regard

24 Joint Venture

ReLiance Communications Infrastructure Limited RCIL Subsidiary of the Company has intered into joint venture iv with

33% interest The detail of the said jV are as under

Name of the Joint Venture ALcatel-Lucent Managed SoLutions India Private Limited

Name of the Other Venturer AlcateL Lucent India Limited

Percentage of Interest of PCIL 33%
Percentage of Interest of other venturers 67%

25 EmpLoyee Benefits

Gratuity In accordance with the applicable Indian laws the Company provides for gratuity defined benefit retirement plan

Gratuity PLan for all its empLoyees The Gratuity Plan provides Lump sum payment to vested empLoyees at retirement or

termination of employment an amount based on respective employees Last drawn salary and for the years of employment with

the Company
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The following table set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Ps in crore

Gratuity Gratuity Leave Leave

Encashment Encashment

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March 2009 31st March 2008 31st March 2009 31st March 2008

Obligation at year beginning 27.11 16.22 113.83 82.53

Service cost 9.69 5.23 54.76 45.23

Interest cost 2.44 1.46 6.20 6.41

Actuarial gain/ loss 0.57 5.56 .24 7.1

Benefits paid 2.87 1.34 60.60 27.45

Obligation at year end 35.79 27.12 112.91 113.83

Defined benefit obligation liability as at the balance sheet is wholly funded by the Company

ii Change in plan assets

Plan assets at year beginning at fair value 25.51 2.78

Expected return on plan assets 2.31 .1

Actuarial gain/ loss 1.84 0.49

Contributions 2.50 12.44 60.63 27.45

Benefits 2.94 1.35 60.63 27.45

Plan assets at year end at fair value 25.47 25.51

iii Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 25.56 27.67 103.20 111.49

Present value of the defined benefit

obligations at the end of the year 36.51 24.96 9.52 2.34

Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 10.31 .61 112.73 11 3.82

iv Cost for the year

Service Cost 9.71 5.23 54.77 45.23

Interest Cost 2.44 .46 6.20 6.41

Expected return on plan assets 2.60 .07

Actuarial gain/ loss 1.23 5.04 1.25 7.12

Net Gratuity Cost 11.23 10.60 59.71 58.75

Investment details of plan assets

100% of the plan assets are invested in Balanced Fund Instruments

vi Actual return on plan assets 0.40 3.70

vii Assumptions

Interest rate 7% 9% 7% 9%

Estimated return on plan assets 7% 9% 7% 9%

Salary Growth rate 6% 8% 6% 8%

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation seniority promotion and

other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market

Provident Fund The guidance on Implementing AS Employee Benefits revised 2005 issued by the ICAI states that the

benefits involving employer established Provident Fund which require interest shortfalls to be recompensed are to be considered

defined benefit plans The actuary of the Company has expressed his inability to reliably measure provident fund liabilities pending

the issuance of the guidance note from the Actuarial Society of India Accordingly the Company is unable to provide the related

information

The Employee Benefits as disclosed above pertain to the Company and its significant subsidiaries like Reliance Communications

Infrastructure Limited Reliance Telecom Limited Reliance Webstore Limited Reliance Tech Services Limited Reliance Infrastructure

and Investment Private Limited and Reliance Wimax Limited formerly Gateway Systems India Limited
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26 Consolidated Segment Information

The Company has identified five reportable segments viz Wireless Broadband Global Investment and Others The segments have

been identified and reported taking into account the nature of services provided the differing risks and returns and the internal

business reporting systems The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the

Company with following additional potcies for segment reporting

Revenue and expenses have been identified to segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment
Revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as whole and are not allocable to segment on reasonable basis

have been disclosed as Unallocable

Segment assets and tab lities represent the assets and habilities in respective segments Tax related assets and other assets

and Habilities that cannot be allocated to segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable

Primary Segment Information

Wireless Broadband Global Investment Others Unalo- Elimi

cable nations

Segment Revenue

ExternaL Revenue 5980.97 1981.78 4180.44 327.82 477.45

14 517 11 35260 2837.54 15269 207.82

Inter Segment Revenue

Net Revenue 17367.63 2524.27 6790.94 327.82 675.03
521 3.54 1786.73 5475.06 152.69 277 82

Less Finance Expense 1258.51

1068 11

Add Fnmce Income 1765.46
Income from Investments

4279.21 815.00 855.66 327.82 580.43 506.95

4125 10 626.28 837.12 152 63 347.32 39970

Less Prove ons Except onat

vnd Non Recurr ng items

Less Prov son for Taxation 51.79
283 62

Scgnent ResuLt after Tax 4279.21 815.00 855.66 327.82 580.43 551.25

4.125 10 62628 837 12 152 63 347.32 139886

Other Information

Particulars

Segment Result before

Exceptional and non

recurring items

interest taxes 4279.21 815.00 855.66 327.82 580.43
4125 10 62628 837 12 152.63 347.32

segment PrsuT before

except onal and non recurring

tems taxe

Rs in crore

Total

22948.46

19 067.76

1386.66 542.48 261 0.50 97.59 4737.23
69643 434 13 2637 52 70.00 3.838.08

4737.23 22948.46
3.838 08 9067.76

5697.26

5393.81

1258.51

.068

1765.46

1467.81 1.467 81

6204.21

579351

7.48

1.282.78

51.79
283 62

6248.51

6792 67

1.01452.32

77 162 66

9672.90

20077 62

754.67

296.68

39598.85
2835539

31 50.09

21.27598

31.74 3607.70

22 13 2805.26

Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

Rehance Telecom Limited Reliance Infratel Limited lcatel-Lucent Managed Solutions India Private Limited and

the retail operations of Reliance Communications UK Limited Reliance Communications International Inc Reliance

Communications Canada Inc Reliance Communications ustralia Pty Limited Reliance Communications New
Zealand Pte Limited

7.48

1282.78

6244.53
5093.58

1237.41

803.18

19980.05

1465527

9054.99

6055.33

9565.78

11 381 00

3657.12

2379 17

456.75

321.34

31225.26

25 039 37

6.41 6.40

14681.59

Segment Assets 57945.20

38432 29

Segment Lab ties 821 5.80

8484.09

Othe Corporate Assets

Other Corporete abil es

CnpitaL Expend tu 7592.86 764.59

17242.52 144110

Deprec ation 2394.74 342.51

1959.32 239 28

The reportable Segments are further described below

The Wireless segment includes wireless operations of the Company

27.1 65.62

19818.02

5708.45
10267 91

754.67

296.68

39598.85
28 355 39

3645.90

2571.40

769.05

556 60

1146.74

20.96

133.14

7219
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The Broadband segment includes broadband operations of the Company Reliance Communications Infrastructure

Limited and Reliance WiMax Limited formerly Gateway Systems India Limited

The Global segment include National Long Distance and International Long Distance operations of the Company and

the wholesale operations of its subsidiaries viz Reliance Globalcom BV and its subsidiaries

The Investment Segment includes investment activities of the Group companies Reliance Telecom Limited Rehance

Infratel Limited Reliance Webstore Limited Reliance Globalcom By Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited Reliance

tnfocomm Infrastructure Private Limited and Reliance Wimax Limited formerly Gateway Systems India Limited

The businesses which were not reportable segments during the year have been grouped under the Others segment

This mainly comprises of the customer care activities of Reliance Webstore Limited
Facility Usage activities of Reliance

Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited and DTH activities of Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and

Reliance Big TV Limited

ii Secondary Segment Information

The secondary segment relates to geographical segments viz Operations within India and outside India

Ps in crore

Within India Outside India TotaL

Segment Revenue External Turnover 18.1 82.42 4766.04 22948.46

16767.73 300.03 19067.76

Segment Assets 81852.59 19599.73 101 452.32

65749.17 11710.17 77459 34

Segment Liability
9705.49 9967.41 19672.90

14727.67 5349.95 20077.62

Segment Capital expenditure 0048.33 3101 .76 13150.09

18670.11 2605.87 21275.98

The reportable secondary segments are further described below

The Within India segment includes the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries in India

The Outside India segment includes the operations of the Companys subsidiaries viz Reliance Globalcom BV and its

subsidiaries
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Reliance Communications Limited

Consolidated Cash Ftow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2009

Ps in crore

For the year For the year

ended 31st March 2009 ended 31tMarch 2008

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Loss before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 61 96.72 7076.29

Adjusted for

Provision for doubtfuL debts Loans and advances 136.81 147.51

Amortisation of IntangibLes and depreciation 3607.70 2805.26

ExceptionaL and Non Recurring items 7.47 266.61
Discount on buyback of FCCB 79.61
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes net 279.72 359.48
Loss on sale discarding of Assets net 0.13 5.1

Profit on saLe of Investments 327.82 69.54

Dividend and Other Income 16.30 26.88
FinanciaL expenses 1258.52 1.06811
FinanciaL Income/ Income from Investments 1578.06 1.045.51

Investment written off 1.93

2728.86 1169.95

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 8925.58 8246.24

Adjusted for

Receivables and other Advances 245.75 4.21 5.14
Inventories 133.86 76.24

Trade PayabLes 1.645.87 555.1

2.025.48 3583.73
Cash Generated from Operations 6900.10 662.51

Tax Paid net 392.57 21 5.98

Net Cash from Operating Activities 6507.53 4446.53

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions of Fixed Assets 12258.38 17 393.00
SaLe of Fixed Assets 15.82 0.24

Purchase of Investments 111040.61 66955 58
Sale of Investments 112597.33 63976.50
Financial income 677.90 776 36

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 10.007.94 9595.48

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds from Short term Borrowings 1420.77 9639.02
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 10354.80 7891 .97

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 1425.62 7456.46
Dividends Paid IncLuding tax on dividend 179.23 118.28
ReLiased Forex Loss Transferred to General Reserve 7O8.65
Financial Charges 1.377.44 1.022.71

Net Cash from Financing Activities 4243.09 8933.54

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 742.68 62 5.41

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 878.18 7200.64

Add On addition of new Subsidiaries 82.1 71.44

Less On cessation of Subsidiaries 960.33 175.82 7096.26

Effect of Exchange Gain Loss on

Cash and Cash Equivalents 20.11 2.67

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash EquivaLents .682.90 878
Notes

Cash and Cash Equ vatent includes cash on band cheques on band rem ttances n- transu and bank ba ance nc ud ny xed Depos ts th Banks

Unrealsed exchange difference of As 4062.69 crore has not been shown
seperately as adjusted by wtbdrawai from Genera Reserve

Refer Note Notes on Accounts

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Chaturvedi Shah For Co Chairman Anhl Ambani
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Lala Natrajan Ramkrishna Ramachandran
Partner Partner rectors Talwar

Membership No 35671 Membership No 032815 Deepak Shourie

Purwar

Mumbai
8th August 2009 Company Secretary and Manager Hasit Shukia
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